NEVADA
COMMISSION ON TOURISM

Wednesday, December 14, 2016
1:00 P.M.

MEETING LOCATION:

Phone Conference Only
Also at
401 N. Carson Street
Carson City, NV 89701

Phone Conference Call Number:
888-363-4735
Access Code 4878739






NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING

Nevada Commission on Tourism

NEVADA Department of Tourism and Cultural Affairs

COMMISSION

ON TOURISM MEETING LOCATION:
Teleconference Only &

Commissioners NCOT —Laxalt Building

Lt. Governor Mark 401 N. Carson St

Hutchison, Carson City, NV 89701

Commission Chair*

g;’;‘:."sfgﬁ:‘a" Vice Chair® VIDEO CONFERENCE LOCATION:

Don Newman* None

John Wagnon*

Rossi Ralenkotter* TELECONFERENCE NUMBER:

dennifer Cunningham* 888-363-4735; Access Code: 4878739

Herb Santos*

Mike V. i*

Dallos Hours. MEETING DATE:

Bob Morse* Wednesday, December 14, 2016 - 1:00 PM

Bob Stoldal

Rk ammold AGENDA

*Voting Member

THIS MEETING IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE “NEVADA OPEN MEETING LAW" AND HAS BEEN PROPERLY
NOTICED AND POSTED AT THE FOLLOWING LOCATIONS:

Nevada Commission on Tourism, Carson City, Nevada
Legislative Counsel Bureau, Carson City and Las Vegas, Nevada
Nevada State Library, Carson City, Nevada
Clark County Library, Windmill Branch, Las Vegas, NV
Websites: www.TravelNevada.biz and www.notice.nv.gov

_—— — — e rE— e o s ———— e e e -

s  Action may be taken on those items denoted “For Possible Action”.

e |tems on this agenda may be taken in a different order than listed.

* Two or more agenda items may be combined for consideration,

® Anitem may be removed from this agenda or discussion relating to an item on this agenda may be
delayed at any time.

e  Public comment will be allowed at the beginning and at the end of the meeting. Because of time
considerations, the period for public comment by each speaker may be limited to 3 minutes at the
discretion of the chair, and speakers are urged to avoid repetition of comments made by previous
speakers.

s Meetings are audio-recorded as part of the public record. Speakers are requested to identify
themselves before speaking.

» Note: Please provide NCOT with electronic or written copies of testimony and visual presentations if
you wish to have complete versions included as exhibits with the minutes.



Mevada Commission on Tourism
December 14, 2016 | Agenda

I. Roli Call

A. Call to Order and Confirmation of Proper Posting
B. Roll Call and Determination of Quorum

Il. PublicComment

Public comment is welcomed by the Commission. A period of public comment will be allowed at the
beginning and at the end of the meeting. Because of time considerations, the period for public comment by
each speaker may be limited to three (3) minutes at the discretion of the Chair, and speakers are urged to
avoid repetition of comments made by previous speakers.

Hl. For Possible Action — Approval of Minutes

A. Approval of the September 21, 2016 Commission Meeting Minutes
B. Approval of the October 11, 2016 Commission Meeting Minutes

IV. For Possible Action — Additional Funding for 7 Magic Mountains Art Installation

A. Nevada Museum of Art is requesting approval of additional sponsorship funding in the amount of
$150,000.

V. For Possible Action — FY17 2" Cycle Rural Marketing Grant Recommended Allocation

A Review and Approval of the FY17 2 Cycle Rural Marketing Grant Applications

Grant funds are intended exclusively to develop, promote and improve tourism to and within
the State of Nevada. They may be used for no other purpose, and must be obligated and/or
expended for invoices due in the same fiscal year as awarded. Grant funds will be used by the
Division of Tourism on behalf of o grantee or distributed to political subdivisions of the state, to
fair and recreation boards, and to local or regional organizations, which promote travel and
tourism. For the complete grant guidelines, please visit TravelNevada.biz.

VI. For Discussion - Reports

A. Chair's Report

B. Administration
a. Financial Overview — Recap of the FY17 budget to date

b. Recap of the 2016 Governor’s Global Tourism Summit — Review of the conference with
attendee feedback and general stats.



Nevada Commission on Tourism
December 14, 2016 | Agenda

c. Las Vegas office space update — The new office location for the Division of Tourism Las Vegas
sales team, the southern Nevada IT Technician and the Las Vegas office of the Nevada Arts
Council has opened at the corner of Flamingo/Eastern. Update on the office move/agency
integration logistics.

C. Public Relations
a. Nevada Broadcasters Association PSA Program — Recap of the program components and
results to date.
b. Public Affairs/Legislative Qutreach — The Division is working with the Abbi Agency to craft
outreach to legislators. Information item provides an update on those efforts and the plans for
ongoing communication before and during the legislative session.

D. Marketing

a. Fall/Winter Campaign Performance to Date — Snapshot of the preliminary results of the current
marketing campaign.

VIl. For Possible Action - Upcoming Meetings

A. Schedule of Suggested 2017 Meeting Dates

Vill. Commissioner Comments

IX. Public Comment

Public comment is welcomed by the Commission. A period of public comment will be allowed at the
beginning and at the end of the meeting. Because of time considerations, the period for public comment by
each speaker may be limited to three (3) minutes at the discretion of the Chair, and speakers are urged to
avoid repetition of comments made by previous speakers.

X. For Possible Action - Adjournment

The public may acquire this agenda and supporting materials, pursuant to NRS 241.020{2) by contacting Dee
Chekowitz-Dykes, Executive Assistant, Nevada Commission on Tourism, (775) 687-0621 or via email to
ddvkes@travelnevada.com. Materials are available from the Nevada Commission on Tourism office, 401 N. Carson
Street, Carson City, Nevada or on www.travelnevada.biz

Persons with disabilities who require special accommodations or assistance at the meeting should notify Dee
Chekowitz-Dykes at the Nevada Commission on Tourism at (775) 687-0621 or ddykes@travelnevada.com.




- L L2

-

8 |




September 21, 2016
Commission Meeting

Draft Minutes

For Approval

TRAVELNEVADA.COM ¥ #TRAVELNEVADA






Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

MINUTES of the NEVADA COMMISSION ON TOURISM
September 21, 2016

The Nevada Commission on Tourism held a Commission meeting at 1:00 p.m. on September 21, 2016, at
401 N. Carson Street, Carson City, NV, by video at 555 W. Washington Ave. Las Vegas, NV and by phone
conference.

Call to Order
Vice Chair Carano called the meeting to order at 1:01 p.m.

Commissioners Present:
Cindy Carano, Vice Chair
Ryan Sheltra

Jennifer Cunningham
Don Newman

Herb Santos, Jr.

John Wagnon

Julia Arger

Bob Stolda!

Commissioners who are absent/excused:
Lieutenant Governor Mark A. Hutchison, Chair
Richard Arnold

Bob Morse

Rossi Ralenkotter

Dallas Haun

Mike Vaswani

Staff present:
Claudia Vecchio, Director
Larry Friedman, Deputy Director

Roll Call and Determination of Quorum

CARANO: I'd like to call to order the Nevada Commission on Tourism Meeting for September
21, 2016. With that, we'd like to have a roll call. Lieutenant Governor Hutchison is
not available to attend today. Bob Morse, unable, excused absence. Jennifer
Cunningham?

CUNNINGHAM: Present.



CARANO:

NEWMAN:

CARANO:

SANTOS:

CARANO:

SHELTRA:

CARANO:

WAGNON:

CARANO:

STOLDAL:

CARANO:

STOLDAL:

CARANOQ:

STOLDAL:

Public Comment

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Cindy Carano, present. Dallas Haun? Unable to attend. Don Newman?
On the phone.

On the phone. Rossi Ralenkotter is unable to attend. Herb Santos?
Present.

In Carson City. Ryan Sheltra?

On the phone.

On the phone. Mike Vaswani? Expecting him to be on the phone. And John
Wagnon?

Here.

Here, very good. | believe we have a quorum.

Bob Stoldal, Las Vegas.

Julia Arger? Richard Arnold? Bob Stoldal.

Present.

Very good, thank you very much. And you're on the phone Bob?

Yes.

CARANO: Okay. Great. We'd like to open it up to public comment. Anybody on the phone for
public comment? In Carson City? | don't see anyone in Las Vegas. Okay, seeing
none. Approval of the minutes.

Approval of Minutes

CARANO: Do | have any additions or questions on the minutes of June 29'?

WAGNON: Move to approve the minutes of June 29",



CARANO:

NEWMAN:

CARANO:

GROUP:

CARANO:

Reports

CARANO:

ARGER:

CARANO:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Call for a second?

Don Newman, I'll second.
All those in favor?

Ayes around.

Any opposed? Minutes approved. Okay.

It's my turn as Vice-Chair to report. As | was telling Claudia, this is short and sweet
because that's always in fashion.

We all read Claudia’s report for the Top 10. | thought a couple of things stood out.
One of the things that | spoke with Lieutenant Governor Hutchison about when he
first asked if { would be his Vice-Chair, was how to engage the Commissioners
further in the process and be more involved in assisting tourism for the State of
Nevada. John Wagnon and | had an opportunity to testify in the Interim Finance
Committee to help share what tourism does for the State of Nevada. We got almost
everything that we wanted, to release our hard-earned tax dollars back into our
marketing budget. | thought that was very interesting for us. We have some key
messages that were handed out to all of the Commissioners. | encourage all to
spread the good word throughout Nevada, as to what tourism does for the entire
state’s economy, not just for the owners of the casinos and hotels. | think that was
a very positive thing,

Northern Nevada is in the midst of our special events season and as you can tell, it's
the first day of fall. We go by the calendar, we have four seasons. It's kind of
blustery out there today. We finished with a fantastic Burning Man and its
awesome. I'm looking forward to seeing NCOT's pictures. The photography
opportunities out there are amazing. I've never gone, but one of these years... The
good news about the Air Races is having more coverage on NBC Sports. What a
tremendous opportunity for all of Nevada to get this coverage throughout the
world. Those are world-wide media opportunities. That being said, that’s my Chair
report. Off to Item No. 4B, Administration.

Sorry to interrupt, this is Julia Arger joining the call.

Great Julia, thank you. This is Cindy, I'm chairing today.



ARGER:

CARANO:

VECCHIO:

PETERSOMN:

Mevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Thank you Cindy.
Off to FY '17 Budget/YTD Financials.

Thank you Commissioner Carano. This is Claudia Vecchio. [Vl introduce David
Peterson our Chief Financial and Operations Officer who will go through the budget.
Obviously we are in FY “18-'19 budgeting mode at present. We use these numbers
that are actuals in the authority as a baseline for how we plan to move forward into
the upcoming year. That will all happen in the legislative session. At this point,
we’re still very much in '18-"19 development mode. We wanted to give you a good
snapshot of where we are with our particular budget categories to date. David, if
you could come up and provide an overview. This isn’t extreme detail by any
stretch of the imagination, but it does provide an overview of where we are per
category. Thank you David.

Good afternoon Vice-Chair Carano, fellow Commissioners. For the record, David
Peterson, Chief Operations and Finance Officer. In your packet you will find two
reports that I'm going to be walking you through. They are right after the green tab
that’s labeled Reports in your Commissioner packet,

The first sheet is a budget summary of the current biennium. We are in FY '17 right
now, the second year of the current biennium. I'd like to start with FY '16. I'm not
going to go through every category line by line, | just will hit the highlights and then
if you have questions, feel free to ask me.

As you can see, we ended the year just under $22.6M. In terms of the lodging tax
revenue, that was a 10.3% increase over FY '15. We had just under $37,000 in
registration fees, those come through the Global Tourism Summit, as well as Rural
Round-Up.

In looking at the expenditure side, | want to highlight a couple of the categories and
| asterisked them, Category 31 and Category 40. Category 31 is our marketing and
advertising and Category 40 is the Rural Grant Program. Obviously you can see
those are the largest categories that we have. Those were the two categories that
were impacted by the April IFC, where we added some additional funds for
television and some other projects into Category 31. We added an additional
$250,000 to the Projects Relating to Tourism Marketing Grant Program.

A couple of quick highlights of those particular categories. You can see everything
highlighted in pink, those are the different transfers that come out of our budget
account to fund the other sister agencies within the Department of Tourism and
Cultural Affairs. Based on the final revenues and expenditures, in FY ‘16, we

4



CARANO:

PETERSON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

balanced for just under $5.5M. You see that as the second RGL Line 2512. That was
our balance forward. Our reserves at the end of FY 16, again, just under $5.5M.
That becomes our starting reserve number for FY '17. That's the first row that you
see in terms of FY '17 authority.

In terms of FY '17—unless there are guestions on '16?
No.

Okay. So, FY '17, what you see in front of you, this is the authority as it stands right
now today. It's based on a couple of different things and I'll talk through how these
numbers are where they are. Based on the last legislative session, revenue was set
at $21.244M for FY '17. You can see | have parenthesis, as of our budget
submission, we’re projecting about $23.75M in lodging tax for FY '17.

What will happen as we get through the year and we start to get actuals coming in,
at the end of the FY “17, so next summer, we will do a work program that will true
up that revenue. Today on paper, it sits with the legislative approved amount which
is the $21.244M. | just want to clarify, that’s what was set during session but right
now we're projecting about $23.75M for FY '17.

In terms of expenditure amounts, these all reflect what were legislatively approved
in the 2015 session. The exceptions being the transfers to the Division of Museums
and History, the Nevada Arts Council and the Indian Commission. Those are in the
specific categories: 61, 62, 63, 64, 65, 66 and 68. Those numbers reflect the dollars
that were approved at the August IFC, that Vice-Chair Carano mentioned, as
transfers to our sister agencies. That's why you'll see significantly larger numbers in
those particular categories in FY '17.

On paper, right now, we're showing a reserve ending balance next June of just
under $3.8M but keep in mind, we expect to see roughly another $2.3M of lodging
tax revenue come in over this legislatively approved number of $21.2M. | think we’ll
be around $6.1M, $6.2M, in terms of our year ending cash balance or our reserve
balance at the end of this current fiscal year. That would be with the assumption
that all of our expenditure categories, that we spend every dollar, That’s not always
necessarily the case. Personnel, sometimes we came in a little bit lower than the
actual legislative authority. Any category that we under spend, those dollars also
balance forward and they go into our reserve balance.

If there are any questions about 16 or 17, I'm happy to answer those before | move
on to the international office budget for this fiscal year.



SANTOS:

PETERSON:

SANTOS:

PETERSON:

CARANO:

CUNNINGHAM:

PETERSON:

WAGNON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

For the record, Herb Santos, Jr. For the reserves, is there any type of statutory
mandate that there has to be any specific amount of reserves each year or can it be
zero?

For the record, David Peterson. What we are trying to keep is a 60-day reserve, at
the end of any given fiscal year or at least at the end of the biennium. We're there
right now. It's not set in stone, per se, in statute, but that is an agreement with
have with the Budget Office is for us to maintain a 60-day reserve. It helps us cross
over and bridge the fiscal years tc make payments. Because lodging tax revenues
are on a two month lag in terms of when they’re collected versus being remitted.
That helps us to bridge each fiscal year into the next. 60-days is what we’re aiming
for.

And, what would a 60-day reserve be?

For the record, David Peterson. It’s in the mid to upper $3.5M, $3.8M range. It
fluctuates of course, depending on—there’s a couple of different reserve
calculations. | should back-up. There's cne reserve calculation that takes in to
consideration our operating budget without the transfers. Then there's another
calculation that’s also used, that includes the transfers. When we’re looking at the
60-day reserve, we look at that in terms of our operating budget, excluding the
transfer. Yes, | think Claudia is right, it's somewhere between $3.5M and $3.8M to
get us to 60 days.

Any other questions?

For the record, Commissioner Cunningham. I'm curious, | see that you have $50,000
for Nevada Magazine in prior fiscal year. it's zero for '17-'18. Where is that funding
going to come from?

For the record, David Peterson. The $50,000 transfer that you see in FY ‘16, that
was approved by the Legislature. Our original request and what was moved forward
as Gov Rec during the last session was, to transfer $50,000 in each fiscal year, ‘16
and 17 to assist Nevada Magazine with doing some direct marketing mail-outs to
try to increase their subscriptions to the magazine. Unfortunately, during the
legislative phase, the money was only approved in FY '16. That’s why you see a zero
in FY ’17. It was removed during the legislative phase of the budget process.

John Wagnon. Just a question. This could be that I'm not necessarily reading it
right. The increase projected from 2016 to 2017, that is 100% balance forward from
previous year's $5.5M. When you look at the expenditures, the marketing and
advertising, is projected to drop by $800,000, rural grants by another $250,000.

6



PETERSON:

CARANO:

PETERSON:

CARANO:

PETERSON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Then when you look at the Museum and Historical Society, Arts Council, that block
from Line 60 to 68, it's a $1.6M increase. What's the explanation for the balance
carry forward and the reduction in marketing expense and the significant increase in
the expense going to the Museums and Art Council?

For the record, David Peterson. When you look at Category 31 and Category 40,
when we went to IFC in April, we received an additional $1.2M, $250,000 of that
went Into Category 40. It was $900,000 and change went into Category 31. The
original legislative authority, those amounts were less, but that work program that
we went to IFC for the approval, increased the amounts then that we could spend in
those two categories. Excuse me, for just for FY '16. Yes, so the amounts that are in
FY '17, are based on what were legislatively approved during the FY '15. When we
went to IFC in August, the work program was specifically for FY '17. So all of those
dollars are a part of column 2 which is FY ‘17. That's why you see the increase in
what you're talking about, the block from 61 to 68, because those dollars are being
spent this fiscal year. They were approved as FY '17 one time expenditures across
the board.

Just to clarify, we could go to the legislature this year or in April of next year, will
there be there another IFC and then increase our marketing budget for another one
time because we'll have more funds through '17?

For the record, David Peterson. You're absolutely correct. Typically the IFC's are
every other month. But yes, we could go to an Interim Finance Committee Meeting
next spring and do the same thing. We could make a request to utilize existing
lodging tax or reserves | should say, technically speaking we’re pulling from
reserves. But yes, knowing that we’re anticipating lodging tax revenues to come in
higher, we could put together a work program for ourselves, to add the additional
funds to do additional advertising in market or international efforts. Yes, that's
correct.

Any other questions? Thank you David, very good.

For the record, David Peterson. The second sheet that’s in your packet, is after the
budget summary. This was included in reference to Vice-Chair Carano’s previous
request to see the breakdown of the FY ‘17 International Office Representation
Budgets. What I've done is to lay out two categories right now. The sales and the
PR costs come from Category 31. That's our large category for marketing and
advertising. The annual service fees come out of Category 43. This provides a
layout so you can see how the dollars are allocated internally between sales and PR
by country and then what the annual service fee amounts are. Unless you want me
to, | won't read through each line item.

7



CARANO:

VECCHIO:

CARANO:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Okay, thank you. Any questions? On the phone? Okay. Thank you very much
David. Now we're going to the Staffing Update.

Claudia Vecchio for the record. | just wanted to introduce our new staff folks. I'm
thrilled to welcome them to this team. | think we really have put together a
wonderful team for Nevada tourism and these folks are certainly adding to the
passion and intelligence of our ability to keep moving higher, faster, stronger and
better.

Let me introduce Devon Blunden. Devon just started on Monday and he’s our
Marketing Specialist. He'll be working on Brenda’s team. | don’t think you've met
Brenda yet in her new role. He will be working on our event sponsorship program
and will be the key contact for that, as well as for TravelNevada.biz. He'll also be
working on the cooperating marketing program in conjunction with Madden Media
and a variety of different programs. He brings a great skill set to us and we're
thrilled to have him here.

Brenda Nebesky is our new Chief Marketing Officer. She’s been in that position for
a couple of months. Boy, she’s just set the world on fire in the marketing team and
we're thrilled to have her in her new role. If you recall, she was Art Director before
and she has moved into this new pasition and is really doing great things.

Mary Hummel is on Larry’s team. She's an Administrative Superstar. She is assisting
Larry and his team with all the travel they do. She’s really taken that on and she's
still smiling. She keeps coming back to work, so we're thrilled about that. Who else
have | not introduced?

All right, so that's it. | just wanted to introduce you to our new staffers. Janet's
going to introduce her new editor when we get to that point. We're thrilled to have
all these folks here. Are there any questions on the staffing update?

We also have a new Systems Administrator, Ron Webster. He’s not here this
afternoon. He will be hiring two new IT people on his team so we continue to grow
with our IT expertise.

Once again, | hope that you find that these are tremendous new members to an
increasingly proficient team.

Great, welcome everybody to the Commission on Tourism and TravelNevada. Look
forward to getting to know you. | see you're from Elko, right? With the BOLO tie.
Welcome. Looking forward to it and good ltuck taking care of Larry’s team.

8



VECCHIO:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Then just a quick update on the Governor's Global Tourism Summit. It will be here
before we all know it, October 9-11. You have a preliminary draft agenda in your
packets and | have a couple of highlights. Governor Sandoval will speak to us at 3:00
on the 11, so we'll all want to be part of that. He’ll do a State of Industry as well as
a welcome to the conference.

Richard Cutting-Miller who is with Resonance Consultancy will be talking about
Global Tourism Trends. His session is a really good foundation and will set a nice
tone for the whole meeting. He will engage the audience in determining what
trends are most important to Nevada. We'll have some good insights when we get
through with that session.

We're going to talk a lot about Chinese travel and celebrating the year of the
US/China Tourism agreement between the Department of Commerce and Chinese
National Tourism Administration. We’'ll have a dinner that will be attended by a
member of the US Department of Commerce. We'll have Chinese entertainment
and all sorts of fun things for that night. We’ll also hear about the Millennial
Chinese traveler. The Chinese traveler is evolving incredibly quickly and the
millennials in China are an interesting group for us to look at. We look at many
generational nuances of domestic travelers and now we'll look at the burgeoning
Chinese visitor,

The next day we'll start out with a State of the International Traveler and how the
international travelers see Nevada, again setting a foundation for the day. Dave
Bratton of Destination Analysts, whom we work with on many occasions, will talk
about how Nevada is perceived in the world.

Then we'll do a general session which | think will be really interesting. It's going to
evolve around the social and the political and economic issues that impact the US
brand abroad and also inbound travel to the US, especially of course to Nevada.
We'll have Jonathan Grella who is with US Travel Association, Mike Fullerton from
Brand USA and Elina Xiang who is with East West Marketing. She’ll be joining us
from Beijing to talk about how the US is perceived in China. | think we have some
interesting potential impacts based on a number of things going on in the world;
both economically, politically and some social issues as well. They'll address those
and give us a good overview of what's going on in the world.

Then, the rest of the morning is spent doing what people come to this conference to
do and that is the extraordinary one-on-one sessions with the international buyers
and new for this year, the international media. Larry, Bethany and team have been
working really hard to get a wonderful group of buyers and media here. We all

9



FRIEDMAN:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

attend many conferences, IPW, a number of tradeshows and this exclusive
opportunity for the Nevada’s tourism industry is second to none. My hats off to
Larry and his team and Bethany and her group for putting this together and
providing the Nevada industry with these singular opportunities to meet with some
of the best in the business from around the world.

We're baffled as to why everybody in Nevada doesn’t come to this, but it really is an
extraordinary opportunity. We're going to do something new this year and that is
to have an opportunity for people to become Certified Culinary Tourism
Professionals. Culinary is a wonderful thing for international travelers to gain a
sense of place in food. There's nothing that brings the world together better than
food. Erik Wolf's sessions will provide attendees a tremendous opportunity to dive
into the breadth and depth of culinary tourism.

Jeff Saltz, who is a cuitural anthropologist will be with us at lunch. Then we have
great breakout sessions, including the International Sales and Marketing Overview
that we’'ve done in the past. Erik's sessions continue and then we’re looking at a
third session which I'm just nailing down. The session will be a China ready program
to ensure that your destination is ready for the Chinese traveler. The number of
Chinese travelers is up ten-fold year over year and they're looking for specific things.
Most importantly, they're looking for destinations that connect from a signage and
written materials standpoint, in other words, that these things are in Chinese and
they welcome the China traveler. Frankly, they’ll go where those things are. For us
to not be providing that to them is a huge missed opportunity. We'll talk a little bit
about being China ready.

That's the conference. We're still lagging a little bit in registrations, so we would
encourage everyone to tell their friends and neighbors who are in the tourism
industry about this conference. We have flyers that can be distributed to your
databases if you are so inclined to do that. Any other ideas people have for how we
get this word out, we're open to. We think it's a tremendous opportunity and we
hope the industry does as well. That’s the conference coming up.

One of the wonderful things happening with this particular conference are pre-
conference fam trips. Larry and his team have been working with our partners
across the state and | want him to share with you some of the extraordinary ways
they've responded to these requests. Larry will provide an overview of that.

The other day | was reviewing the two fam trips that we are doing with Claudia and

the amount of dollars that are being donated by our partners across the state
showing their belief in the quality of the buyers that we’re bringing.

10



Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

We have approximately 60 buyers, domestic and international. All of the
international buyers are required to participate in one of two fam trips. Being that
we are the state, the two fam trips both start in Las Vegas, one is called “Historic
Towns and Ghostly Haunts.” It starts in Vegas and it will travel up Highway 95 to
Reno. The other is called “Parks and Nature.” It starts in Vegas and will come up on
Highway 93, on the other side of the state, going to Great Basin National Park, Ely
and then across the loneliest road, finishing at Lake Tahoe before coming to Reno.

We cut the participation off at 50 buyers. We have 30 on “Parks and Nature” and
we have 20 on “Historic Towns and Ghostly Haunts.” One of the things | wanted to
share with you though is that, from our partners, we have over $60,000 from our in-
state partners in in-kind contributions, hosting these buyers. Some of the real
generosity and big ticket items include 49 room nights being hosted by Bellagio. In
addition to Bellagio, between the two fams, they are staying hosted at Treasure
Island, the Golden Nugget, at two different properties in Henderson that were
coordinated by Henderson, both at the Westin Lake Las Vegas and the Hilton Lake
Las Vegas.

Also Papillion is hosting 32 seats on Grand Canyon Helicopter Tours. The group will
start at Speed Las Vegas. Both fams start at Speed Las Vegas, a new attraction
there. They are all being hosted. Dinner for both groups, for 50 tour buyers and
tour operators, will be at the Tropicana and breakfast hosted by the Cosmopolitan
the next day. One group is being hosted 32 room nights at the Hyatt Lake Tahoe for
their last night.

It's not just urban Nevada that’s participating. Beatty Cowboys, the cowboy group
in Beatty is hosting the buyers of one of the fams to lunch. Ely is hosting a
breakfast. Even the National Park Service is participating and is hosting 32 people to
cave tours at Lehman Caves. The Wyndham, the Marriott and Gold Dust West are
all hosting lodging and meals here in Carson City for one of the groups.

Then in addition to all of those people deserving credit for believing in the buyers
that we are bringing, | do also want to mention the airlines that are participating.
United Airlines from Australia is hosting the entire Australian delegation. Delta
Airlines in South Korea has hosted the air, every year we’ve done this, from South
Korea. Delta is hosting their air once again. Volaris in Mexico is hosting the air for
the entire Mexican delegation and are sending their two top sales people from
Guadalajara as well to participate. American Airlines is participating in the
marketplace, as is Hainan Airlines from China. Hainan will be joining one of the fam
trips as well.

11



CARANO:

VECCHIO:

NEBESKY:

Nevada Commission on Tourism { September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

If we take them up on hosted air with all of the donations from our in-state
partners, it comes to approximately $85,000, which is also our entire international
fam budget for the year. We truly can only do this with all of our in-state partners
believing in the quality of the people that we are bringing. Our thanks to all of
them.

Do we have comments from the Commissioners? Okay, thank you.

Thank you Larry. That kind of wraps up the ltem B-C. The Global Tourism Event
update. If anybody has any questions, again and if you would like to help with
distributing information about that, please let me know.

We can move on now to the marketing update. We're always thrilled when
Fahlgren Mortine can be here to talk to all of us about what recommendations they
have, in collaboration with the TravelNevada marketing team. Today we are talking
through FY '17 which starts July 1*. We will go through June 30"™. We have a full
winter campaign. We have a spring/summer campaign and the always on, digital
campaign that works within those “shoulder seasons” to continue getting the
message out about Nevada tourism.

In your packets, you have the deck for this FY ‘17 Integrated Marketing Program. |
will turn it over to Fahlgren Mortine. Marty McDonald and Carissa Richardson are
here and then Brenda Nebesky from our marketing team, they’ll all be part of this
presentation to showcase what they have in mind for FY "17. Come on up.

For the record Brenda Nebesky, Chief Marketing Officer. Good afternoon. Today
we present the creative plan for the third evolution of the “Don’t Fence Me In”
Campaign. As you know, DFMI was inspired by the song, the wide-open,
adventurous spirit that song invokes. The second campaign brought that spirit to
life, through characters that embodied experiences only available in Nevada.

This new campaign will intensify the focus on real Nevadans who stories define this
un-fenced in place who represent the freedom to wander, to find adventure, to
discover the unusual and the timeless. We'll build on the strengths of DFMI leading
with character driven stories that easily navigate the visitor to tools they need to
experience Nevada themselves.

While the focus on stories remains at the core of our creative, our motivation is
always the traveler, our partners and our commitment to our mission. With that
little DFMI crash course, I'll turn it over to Marty McDonald who is the head of our
Fahlgren Mortine team. Thank you.

12



MCDONALD:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Marty McDonald for the record, good morning Vice-Chair and Commissioners. It’s
nice to be with you again. Thank you Brenda for the DFMI preamble. We'll go
quickly through this. | know we could spend a long time going through the
complexities of a marketing plan. We'll try to stay high level today. There is an item
that’s for possible action, so we’'ll give you as much detail as you'd like. We’re
happy to field questions.

What we plan to do is, give you high level overview of our Integrated Marketing Plan
and direction. | have brought my colleague, as Claudia said, Clarissa Richardson is
here with me to talk about specifically the media recommendation. We have two
parts and we'll get started.

The first slide here that we put together, again, | won’t belabor these, these are in
your packet, but we wanted to of course ground ourselves in results and
performance. You'll see here, anchoring back to the Strategic Plan and the Key
Initiatives, we aim to serve with the marketing program. Paramount in all of that is
driving ROI. For the dollars we put to work, we want to make sure we're increasing
the ROl and the investment we get back in the form of spending.

You'll see the red and blue line really just kind of paint a picture for you of
performance. There’s a little bit of seasonality, so don’t fret about this slight decline
at the end. We're really looking at an increase in spring/summer campaign, to
spring/summer campaign year over year. We're trending upward also for looking
year over year at fall/winter push and fall/winter push the following year.

The dotted line to the bottom is when we hit the scene here and started working on
the campaign. That gives you a little bit of a visual picture of how the IME
performance is tracking and trending.

On the right hand side, we did just want to give you & quick visual. | know you've
been getting Claudia’s 10 on 10 Reports about awards and things. We’'ve had an
incredible run with awards this year. Just wanted to call attention to a couple of
those. We're extremely proud of that and grateful for getting to do this great work
with you.

The two most recent would be national recognition from the Public Relations
Society of America for the program overall. Most recent would be the US Travel
Association recognizing us for Best PR Program for a State Tourism Entity
nationwide. Those are judged by entities like Google and the world’s biggest brands
in travel. We're extremely proud of those. The categories we’re in are not best
print ad or best TV spot, they're for the best use of analytics, overall measurement
and return on investment. We're very proud of that work.

13



Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Again, won't go through the communications goals for you, those are in your packet
but that's what anchors us as we go forward.

I do want to talk for a minute and set your expectation about geography. We’ll see
a little bit of adjustment in geography in the markets where we’ll put the dollars to
work. Carissa will come and give you more detail on that front but what you'll see
this year, the core markets are the same. We'll have video and digital supportin LA,
San Francisco, Phoenix, Salt Lake City, Las Vegas and Reno DMAs. We know there’s
a low barrier with residents in terms of traveling the state. We think there’s
opportunity there. We do have some investment that we're putting inside the state
but primarily focusing on those core markets. Then digital support only in Boise.
That’s a change. We were putting TV dollars to work in Boise and we’re not quite
seeing the performance we would like. The performance is fine but we think we can
do other things with those dollars. We’re redirecting a bit and rather than going TV
in the Boise market, we're going to put those dollars to work in digital in two new
markets. Those two new markets will be Dallas and Portland. We'll talk more about
why that is.

We have some new flights coming online and seeing a lot of potential in the Dallas
market. Then Portland, we will focus on our core audience, which is not changing,
the millennials and access to the state. We want to set a benchmark and a baseline
in both Portland and Dallas because of the audience match. We're happy to answer
any questions about that as we go forward, but just wanted to heighten your
awareness of those two subtle changes.

Again we talked about audience. No departure there. We're still targeting this
adventure mindset. We want to make sure we're not abandoning our boomers and
our core market.

That brings us to DFMI, what we're calling 3.0. When we came to you, DFMI was
here, it existed. We brought the character driven approach to the table and we're
going to be evolving that further, not a departure, certainly not a revolution but an
evolution of the campaign.

Before we do that and talk about what that looks like, again, just a reminder of what
grounded us. It's not just the subjective insight or opinion of an art director, this is
all very much informed by a lot of research. We're also grateful to have the benefit
of great research to lead us in this work.

These are the things that used to inform our position and our evolution. Pay
Performance, the KPIs and the optimization. As we're running these campaigns,

14



Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

we’re doing daily monitoring on performance to do {inaudible] testing to see what’s
performing and what messages resonate. We're making changes and modifications
all the time. That informs us in the go forward plan.

Consumer concept testing that we did back in 2015. When we tested with
millennials to understand what they liked about our campaign and the core
platform. We’ve also done some advertising effectiveness studies where we did
more quantitative look at what was resonating. We have the IME studies of course
for each seasonal push, website usability. We actually had the opportunity to sit in
and virtually be behind the glass to watch people interacting with our site and what
was intuitive and what was not, We've made madifications based on all of that.
We've listed the logos at the bottom of some of our key informants in this work.
TNS and Destination Analysts and also of course, Google Analytics.

This is the slide that makes you groan a little. | promise this is the only really copy
heavy slide. We’ll go quickly but these points are very important.

The conclusion of all that work and insight and learning, these are the takeaways:
surprising or unexpected scenery still sells. There's still a lot of surprise factor in
terms of what Nevada has to offer. People think they know what's here in the state.
When we serve them imagery that they’'re not aware of, that really resonates.
We’re going to continue to do that in our campaign.

The character approach is working. We want to continue to skew toward raw and
authentic. We want to lean into authentic and continue to evolve the campaign in
that direction. The character approach is something that's really resonating with
our audience.

DFM! is strong. What we heard from our targets is that they want more of the DFMI
idea. They want to see it embedded more fully into the site experience, into our
campaign. It's something that’s empowering, it's a message that speaks to
millennials about individuality so they want more of that.

Personalization and customization of the content is key. We’'re going to shift from
these buckets of content to more sophisticated story lines. Then you're going to see
more emphasis in the program on CRM, email targeting, those kinds of things.
Planning content should be more robust. That's another key shift you’ll hear in the
media plan is when we’re evolving a campaign or introducing a new idea, there’s a
lot of that dreamer work we need to do; the awareness and attention getting. As
we go forward and drive frequency, we can shift and we’ll need the campaign to
start to dig in a little harder, focus more on conversion as we deliver more frequent

15



SPEAKER:

MCDONALD:

CARANO:

MCDONALD:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

messages. You're going to see a little bit of a strategic shift in skew toward more
planner content and that means some different media partners for us.

Wwe'll speed up now. A quick look back in the rearview. DFMI in '15 really was the
TV spot you've seen. We had the song bed by the Killers. We pulled out the DFMI
identity, gave it a logo and a treatment. When we did 2.0, that was where we
introduced this character idea and you saw that embedded throughout our
campaign.

3.0, again, as | mentioned up is going to be really about the authentic characters. If

you recall on the site experience you see today and in our spots, we had a fixed cast
of characters. We had them kind of embodying these buckets of different kinds of
experiences. People were telling us, | want to know more. We had the biker dude.
We had the outdoor adventurer. The snowboard gal. People really want to know
their specific stories, so we want to enable that in the future of our campaign.

Now we have Kelsey and we want to tell Kelsey's story. She’s a burner artist based
in Reno working at the Generator. We have Rob, a mountain biker and we want to
be able to provide their own individual authentic stories to our audience 50 you're
going to see that come to life.

Quickly, the logo evolution. We want to be authentic in the way we work. We went
from this kind of logo with some subtle changes, we freed it. With “Don’t Fence Me
In,” this feeling of being fenced in, we wanted to put some air in the logo to make
sure we don’t box in the identity treatment. A subtle change but a change
nonetheless. Again, the shift to more of this planner content.

Did you take the accent off Nevada?

We did take the accent off Nevada. That was a little tricky, a little confusing for
people so we simplified.

That was a Jeopardy question. [laughter]

All right. This is our existing TV spot. What we know is that this spot still has work
to do in terms of, it's not overused. I{'s still effective for us. We still need more
frequency behind it. We're going to continue to use this and just as a refresher,
we'll show this video to you quickly.

we'll still be incarporating that in our campaign. Then you will see at the end of our
presentation we'll show something new that we’ve produced. Working closely with
the team here at TravelNevada, we have a new production schedule. As you all

16



Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Departrment of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

probably know, it's a really complex environment today so we need to produce a lot
of things and put ourselves in a position to be able to resize and re-edit for
Facebook specifically, for different platforms specifically. We do have a production
calendar for us to go out and capture the character driven stories. We'll show you
Kelsey's story today. We call it Space Whale and it's the story of Kelsey working at
the Generator, constructing a piece of Burning Man art, but making a beautiful
connection to the brand and why artists are attracted to this place and what else is
available to people who share that identity throughout Northern Nevada. We'li
show you an example of that as soon as we get through.

Quickly, we’ll just go through some high-level visuals so that you can get a sense of
how this starts to translate through our marketing ecosystem for the campaign. On
the hub, the core change, you'll see a departure from the core, stand-up cast of
characters. We're going to draw out these individual stories. That’s Kelsey you see
in the background, it’s a little dim on the screen there. You're going to see them
front and center, see their faces, get a feeling for what they're about, that draws
you in.

The buckets at the bottom there, the kinds of things you can click into. We are very
strategic in why they're there and why they were selected, but there will be insider
info for more stories like Kelsey's and others that we've collected. There will be
adventure content specifically to speak to our millennials and what they're after.
Then road trips specifically with our focus on planner content. We want to make
sure there are things that are actionable. If you want to have an experience, you're
attracted to something, we want to show you exactly how you can do more, visit
more places, extend your trip into an overnight. We’ve got six road trips that canvas
the state and all territories. Things like the ET Highway and the Burner Byway, that
have been giving us a lot of traction in PR and we want to make those easy to find
on a site,

Just again, a few visuals. This will be the adventure home page. If you come in
through an adventure banner, this is what you'll see first. You'll see the story of Rob
there in the background, this will be video drawing you in. This will be Nevada
Insider, the personal stories home page. This will be our road trip home page. Then
again, a subpage. If you click in a little further, it will just give you a quick sense of
what that looks like. You'll be linked to on Maps that show you how to easily
convert over to plan your experience more fully. Things like the interactive map
showing up on the bottom right there. This will be a rich media banner. We'll just
kind of show you how that comes to life with another character driven story, you
can click in and learn more about. Just a few clicks. Then some standard banner
treatments here. Again, characters front and center, drawing you in.

17



SANTOS:

MCDONALD:

RICHARDSON:

SANTOS:

RICHARDSON:

SANTOS:

MCDONALD:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Another new element of our campaign is something we're calling Disruptive Ideas.
The IME Study tells us several things. It tells us for every different platform on
which we reach a target, the likelihood to convert goes up and their memory of us
goes up. We're going to try some different things to really stand out. The study also
indicates opportunity in LA, a key market for us.

It's maybe hard to see on the screen here but this is something we're going to be
incorporating this year. You got this in your packet. It’s taking over the escalator
experience at LAX. We like the way this connects in many ways. The characters will
have a role in this execution. Ways to interact and learn more online about the
characters you see in the artwork here. We like the connection to the core brand
and the duality that exists in the State of Nevada. We like the fact that there’s an up
and a down escalator, that there’s a day and a night. Two completely different
types of experiences here. We can tell the story of ghost towns and mining. We can
tell the story of some of the more eccentric paranormal in ghost towns and
supernaturat things. We've had an early resonance with this idea. This is something
we'll be testing and hopefully we’ll be building into our integrated plan other ways
to activate around this. We’ll be going desk side with media at the time this rolls
out to make sure we get the full bang for our buck in LA.

You’'ll see the characters kind of coming into the experience, that's at the top of the
escalator here where the spaceship is hovering above you.

Herb Santos for the record. Where in the LAX airport is that going to be? |s that the
Southwest terminal or elsewhere?

I'm going to ask my colleague, do you know which terminal?

Once we get approval, we'll have to work out the details. They've been in contact
with LAX, but we don’t know the exact location. We can definitely tell you once we
get that worked out. It’s up to the discretion of LAX at this point.

It will be in a terminal that has a |ot of flights to Nevada, right?

Absolutely, yes.

Okay.

All right. Then a quick connection to how this all integrates on the PR side. Of

course, we maintain a PR driven approach. We’'re going to be evolving our
messaging from the core buckets, The wanderlust, the adventure—hard and soft

13



CARANO:

WAGNON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

adventure and then our taste buckets. Those will be evolved into story lines that
are character driven.

A quick look at some of our execution here. We will continue to have a master
content editorial calendar. We will be overhauling the online press room to make
sure character content is readily available and that we can accommodate the needs
of more media more quickly. We’'ll be doing media tours in key markets. We've
already completed the Denver Boulder Mission. We'll be going back to New York
City this fall. In the spring we'll be in LA pretty heavily and also Boise because we
are not going to be going back to Boise with the TV, we want to make sure we're not
losing emphasis on the market. We'll be talking with freelancers and writers and
potentially some consumers in that market. Let’s see, the LAX activation, you can
see the rest of the list listed out for you there.

Then just to mention, again, I'm going to click through just a couple visuals of the
ecosystem. TravelNevada.com, it will be an enhanced content hub with deep
integration of social content. You can just see a couple of visuals here of what that
will start to look like and how this all pulls through and connects.

Finally, we mentioned our increased emphasis on CRM and personalization of our
message. We've been working very feverishly with the team here at TravelNevada
to enhance and up our game on the CRM frant. Inserting more sophistication in our
targeting and segmentation. That was a quick look quickly at how all of the
characters pull into that.

Happy to answer any questions for you but I’'m going to have Carissa come up and
walk through quickly the media recommendation. Thank you.

Does anybody have any questions?

Yes, John here. Not necessarily a question, but a couple of thoughts. I'm sure
there’s more in the presentation to come, but just looking at this so far, it's a great
evolution of the campaign. | think it’s real subtle but really an important shift in
kind of where it's going. These lines like for those who have seen it all before, begin
where the beaten path ends. It starts to transition much more to an attitude or
personality and away from kind of a contrived sort of set up. The only thing that’s
really going to resonate with people, particularly with millennials is does this place
really have an attitude? Does it have a personality? Is it unique? Is it different, is it
genuine, is it authentic? Not, can we create cute ads, you know what | mean, it
really has to be real. | love the logo evolution it was great, to break outside the
fence there.

19



MCDONALD:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

One thing | didn’t see in the communication goals was this concept of inspiring
people. | think all too often people are forgetting that the number one function of
marketing, particularly when it comes to state tourism. It is to inspire people to
want to take another step in the process or to want to be connected. If 'm not
inspired after | see something or if I'm going through the process of just gathering
information in general, if something doesn’t inspire me, you can put all the ads in
the world in front of me. You can ship all the stuff to my iPhone you want, I'm not
touching it.

The number one goal is to create that spark of interest or that inspiration that
makes people go, wow, I'm going to go there sometime, I've got to go there.
Eventually they'll take themselves down that path. It might not happen
immediately, but they'll take themselves down that path. | think this campaign has
the ability to do that. | think the campaign or the concept of “Don’t Fence Me In”
and the attitude that goes with it has the ability to inspire people to want to go one
step further with whatever communication we put out there.

Particularly I like this concept of this shift to more authenticity. The ad is great, it's a
great ad, no doubt ahout it. It definitely communicates the unique aspects of the
State and it creates those characterizations of what makes this state different.
Again, if you're talking to millennials, it better be real, authentic, genuine, it has to
resonate. As much as | like the concept of building or supporting that ad or that
kind of first tier of communication with authentic real stories of real people who
actually embody the character or the personality of the State.

It seems to me that’'s where you're headed with that. I'm concerned, it's too soon
to actually say that. | want to make sure that somewhere along the line, we're
focusing enough energy in this marketing effort to create those authentic
storytelling opportunities that really, truly inspire people to want to go, come here
and do something. Take it to the next step. Not just putting banner ads in front of
people because frankly banner ads really don't inspire people. Stories do and video
does like in spades and so do still photos. | think we've all been there where you
see a photo of something, wherever it is, whether it's South America or France or
whatever and you just, psst, I'm going there. From that point on, you can almost do
everything else wrong and the person will still figure cut how to get there.

Marty McDonald for the record. Thank you for your feedback. | appreciate that. |
feel very confident about what we're trying to do. | appreciate what you're saying
and | agree wholeheartedly. Part of the invisible part of what we’re trying to do—
you know, it’s not as much fun to talk about the ecosystem we’re building or the
improvements and the enhancements that are below the line on the website.
We're making sure that we have set up an infrastructure so that we capture

20



SANTOS:

MCDONALD:

CARANO:

MCDONALD:

CARANO:

RICHARDSON:

SANTOS:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

someone with the spark of the dreamer and give them the opportunity to join the
brand so we can continue our conversation with them.

Things like retargeting, you're going to see more focus on that in our campaign, so
there’s a second touch and a third touch and CRM message. That's really important
to us because yes, we want to capture them with hero message upfront. Hopefully
then, we have an environment that allows us to capture their information or
capture their pixel or whatever the case may be, and continue our connection with
those people. That's been working well and we’re really proud of those
improvements. But thank you, we appreciate the guidance.

Herb Santos for the record. | just want to add to what John said. When you give the
characters identity and | think you nailed it, it gives credibility. To me, it's as simple
as that. That credibility is huge. Also, as a trial attorney, I'm really big on focus
groups and your consumer concepts testing. If it's at all possible, | would really
enjoy like, to be able to review that raw data. Every time V've gone through a focus
group, I've learned so much information and | think that would really help me as a
Commissioner, getting a better understanding as from the folks that you talk to,
what their thoughts and ideas were. | know what my thoughts and ideas are, I'd like
to be able to expand that to learn about other folks. That'd be very helpful for me.
I’'m not sure about anyone else. Thanks.

Thank you. All right.
I have one question.
Please.

Thank you. Commissioner Carano, for the record. | have a question about your
media buys and your still in Reno and Las Vegas. I'm wondering if you have data on
whether our TV buys have inspired travel within the state? Do we have data on that
or is that your job?

Carissa Richardson for the record. According to the IME study, we definitely do see
those intent to travel markers that that are performing well in both Reno and Las
Vegas. It's definitely something we keep an eye on and we make sure that we're
still seeing that. The fact that they are seeing the ads is actually contributing to
them wanting to get out and explore the rest of the state, so yes.

Herb Santos for the record. | can say, it worked with me. | went and looked at the
Car Cemetery in Beatty that | never knew was there. Inspired me to just drive down
a dirt road and check something out that | never knew existed.

21



RICHARDSON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Great! Well, | will continue. Carissa Richardson, Media Director with Fahlgren
Mortine.

Like Marty said, we know last year with the introduction of the characters, we really
wanted to get that awareness push. We did still focus on planning but this year we
know we have that awareness, we have a really good base there. Our focus is to try
to start pushing people through the purchase funnel and get them from that
planning to booking. That's our main goal this year. You'll see with the partners, we
have a little bit of a shift, but | think it's definitely going to help push people further
through that journey.

Connection strategy. The biggest thing we always say with any of our media buys
and plans is that we’re always based in research. We start with the audience.
Getting a great understanding of them. We have so much research at our
disposable with Nevada, we love it, that we can really make sound and strategic
decisions for everything we do. It's really great.

We also know that the media landscape is moving at a very rapid pace. While we
continue to focus on building successful partnerships, we always kind of keep an eye
to the future. What is a new audience, what partner could open up a new audience
to us, could expand our reach, could provide a little bit more cutting edge targeting,
things like that. We always are kind of locking at that next step of what we can do
to evolve the media plan to make it as modern as possible.

Obviously we want, like | said, to kind of focus on partners this year that is going to
really increase that planning stage partnership, versus more of a dreaming stage as
well.

Then also making sure that we focus on not just the paid side of everything, but as
we're putting the paid media plans together we're looking at it from an integrated
perspective. As Marty said, in Boise, we know we’re cutting back on TV, so making
sure we're adding some PR there. Just making sure that it's all looked at in a very
well rounded way and integrated way.

The biggest thing with our audience is less focus on the demographic attributes of
the audience and more on the psychographic. Whether you're a boomer or a
millennial, if you have this adventure state of mind and you’re in this adventure
mindset, we want you to come and we want to make sure we're targeting you with
our ads.

22



Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

The recommended media approach, similar to last year. We want to focus on year-
round efforts, but we also want to make sure we're getting those seasonal pushes in
there.

Core markets. As Marty mentioned, in the new markets that we're focusing on,
we're going in with digital only right now, just to kind of get a baseline and see how
those perform. Then next year, we can reevaluate and go from there. [ think it will
be nice to get into those markets. They really match well with the audience | just
spoke about, as well as having the ability to get here very easily. Especially in the
case of Dallas, there’s a lot of direct flights. Want to really try to take advantage of
that and get into that market.

This is an eye chart for you but | wanted to display graphically how we are taking
that always on approach. You can see, towards the top we have a lot of always on
elements that are going to be on from the start of the media buy in November, all
the way through the end of August next year. While we'll also heavy up in the
seasonal pushes, those fall/winter and spring/summer campaigns.

As far as the always on, we are looking at travel focused partners. We don't really
care what time of year somebody is on these sites, we want to make sure our
message is there when they get there. National partnerships sites like Travel
Channel, Lonely Planet. OTA sites like TripAdvisor and the Expedia network. No
matter when people are there, we want to make sure that our message is there.
Those are really important to be always on partners. As well as, with the network
partner, like Sojourn where they're serving ads to people who have expressed
interest in traveling. They've gone on Marriott.com and searched for Reno, but
didn’t book. We want to make sure we're hitting them with an ad, again after that.
All year round, not just during the season, seasonal pushes.

During those seasonal pushes we get a little more into the dreaming stage partners.
It's more about making sure we’re surrounding the audience during those times so
we start to incorporate mobile partners. We start to incorporate native content to
make sure that our content is mixed in with the content people are engaging with
on a regular basis.

Here’s a top line look at the partners that we've chosen. | know, we said the same
thing last year, but we do hold off on our spring/summer plan so we can make sure
we can evaluate how the fall/winter campaign performs. Like | said, everything is
based in research. We want to have the freshest research possible. We will do that
at a later date, once we have a little bit more info in how the fall/winter partners
have been performing.

23



Mevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

If you have any questions on any of these individual partners, please ask. | don't
want to get into the weeds too much, unless you have specific questions.

Really, like | said, the always on is really that travel mindset reaching them. No
matter when they’re in market, we want to be there. Paid search does that. The
travel planning partners do the content, partners with Lonely Planet and Travel
Channel. While the fall/winter is more about capturing people, maybe in more of a
lifestyle situation. They might be on Hulu watching a video, but we might be able to
take them from that dreaming to the planning stage, because of the seasonality of
the ad. We also have incorporated retargeting all around as Marty mentioned. A
lot of these partners built in to their plans have retargeting. Once they do see our
ad during the seasonal pushes, they will be retargeted with a follow-up ad later. We
are increasing those exposures and that really helps push people into planning and
then we hope eventually into the booking stage the more we can get our message in
front of them.

Just some highlights | just wanted to share of some of the newer things that we're
doing this year. Based on your previous comments, | think you’ll really happy with a
lot of these things. Travel Channel, we didn't have a partnership at least for the past
few years with the Trave! Channel. Obviously that’s a great partner to have. So not
just having ads on their website, but actually having vignettes on air that are going
to be running. I'll show you an example, just a screen shot, of what those are going
to lock like. Those are going to be designed to educate the audience on what we
have here and the different activities. Just kind of surprise people and hopefully
spark that interest and wow, | didn’t know that was there now | really want to go
visit. That's a great audience to do that with.

Along with Expedia, Expedia has exploded. They've acquired Orbitz. They have
Travelocity, they have everybody now. Running with them is really essential. Again,
not just putting ads, not just having a landing page but actually doing user
generated influencer programs with them. We’re going to team up with some
influencer programs. it's going to give us a chance to get the locals in Nevada on
board with the campaign and have them have a little bit of input into what these
influencers are going to go out and do. It will kind of get the backing and get
everybody on board, which will be fun to get the community involved.

Lonely Planet. It will be a partnership with content. Again, it's going to be very
visual. There’s going toc be beautiful photos. If you've ever been on Lonely Planet,
it's a very visual platform. | think it's a great partnership for the State of Nevada
because there are such good visuals that we can put out there to inspire people to
come visit.

24



CUNNINGHAM:

RICHARDSON:

CUNNINGHAM:

RCIHARDSON:

WAGNON:

CARANO:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Then Matador has been a long time partner. We've used them generally for
content, which we’'re going to keep doing in some form. We’re also going to run an
influencer program with them which will be more adventure focused. Expedia will
be a little bit more broad while Matador will give us those real adventure
influencers and it will also help us to expand our audience to the followers of those
adventure influencers that are most likely very interested in the same types of
activities.

This is the Travel Channel vignette. It's just a clip of the front but basically it would
be a 10-second or a 30-second ad. We got three facts so they can see three
different things about the state and then we can put a 5-second tag on the end.

Lonely Planet Microsite, this is just a mock-up but you can see it’s really visual. We
have a lot of space to work with there. Atlas Obscura pointing out landmarks and
things to do around the state, so people can start to kind of plan their trip.

Then, just an investment breakdown. This is pretty typical to what we’ve seen in
the past. A little bit heavier TV. It's a more expensive medium so that will kind of
always be the case, but then most of the rest going to digital with a little bit of print.
Then out of home, like you saw for the execution at LAX.

This is just kind of an overall visual. We just wanted you to see the integrated
approach and kind of how everything connects back to the hub of the website and
all of that, Any questions?

| would love to get a digital spreadsheet of your media buy and where we can
laminate on top of it, especially since there’s an overlap in some of the markets, it'd
be terrific.

Yeah, absolutely.

Great plan. | think it is nice, comprehensive and | like your media mix, for sure.
Thank you.

Thank you.

Yes, | agree with that. Great move with Travel Channel and the Expedia influencer
content and the custom microsite, great. Good move.

Thank you, anyone else on the phone?

25



NEWMAN:

RICHARDSON:

CARANO:

MCDONALD:

CARANO:

NEWMAN:

CARANO:

WAGNON:

SANTOS:

CARANOD:

GROUP:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

This is Don Newman, I'd just like to chime in and just say, Marty, you and your team
in conjunction with the TravelNevada folks, | just feel that you guys have really
rolled up your sleeves and kind of gotten down and dirty. My takeaway from all of
this is that, you've just gotten involved in the state and you've put together a feeling
that comes through in all of this. | commend you for these efforts. | really think this
is a great campaign and the direction that it's headed, 3.0, is definitely headed down
the right road and you guys should be congratulated.

Thank you.
Great, thank you very much.

Thank you. Marty McDonald for the record. The last thing, | just wanted to close
with the Space Whale video. I'm sensitive to time. | know we've taken a lot of your
time today, so we'd be happy to send it as a follow-up or if you'd like us to play it,
it's about two minutes. It's up to you. Two minutes, all right. We will roll tape,
thank you very much.

That is great. I've been over to the Generator and | have donated some things to
them. They have open doors for anybody who wants to go in and see what's going
on over there. It's absolutely amazing. It's not just Burning Man stuff, it’s art for
every day. It's just really awesome, great job in creating that.

This is Don Newman, real quick. What my takeaway, just listening to that, it just
amazes me that a function that takes place for a week and a half in the middle of
the desert is now a city. Black Rock City is a two-week event that, you know, it’s just
amazing how this has become so powerful and is actually titled a City out of a dusty
event. The art scene is just incredible. This whole evolution, it's amazing.

Quite the opportunity for Northern Nevada to transform its identity. I'd like to call
for approval. | understand we need to approve this report to accept the Integrated
Marketing Plan from Fahlgren Mortine.

| move that we approve the Integrated Marketing Plan presented, awesome plan.
Second.

All those in favor.

[ayes around]

26



CARANO:

VECCHIO:

RUNYAN:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Opposed? There we go. The plan is approved. Thank you very much. Great job,
exciting.

Thank you Commissioners, thank you Fahlgren Mortine for your time. For the
record, Claudia Vecchio. We'll move on now to Research. As we said several times
during that presentation, we are grounded in research. Everything we do, every
decision we make is based on research and some years of insight into this industry,
| want to turn the time over now to Dean Runyan. We do a variety of types of
research. Some of our research measures are advertising. Some of it looks at how
people are engaging with the brand. Other pieces of advertising, equally as
important, look at the economic impact of tourism and how we are shaping the
economy of the state. As we go into the legislative session and the dialogue that is
starting to happen now regarding statewide lodging tax and other pressures on
state funds, having this understanding of how powerful tourism is to this state and
how impactful it is will be critically important. That will definitely be part of the
talking points that you will get from Bethany and her team for the next legislative
session.

Dean has been working with us for years. Arguably, the best economic impact
expert in the tourism industry. We’re thrilled to have him as a partner. We’'ll tee up
his presentation and allow him to showcase some of what this extraordinary
industry does for the State of Nevada. Thank you Dean.

Dean Runyan and Associates, Portland, Oregon. Thank you very much for the
opportunity to meet with you today. This is work we've done for some time. We
enjoy it very much. We hope it's useful for you.

There’s a fairly detailed report that we prepare each year that we've delivered that
includes quite a lot of detail. Much more than | can go into today. | can respond to
any questions you have about that. There’s also a website that we manage for you
that allows users to go on and extract the sort of information they may want
interactively about travel and tourism throughout the state. We try to make it as
easy as possible to get at this information. Call us any time you have any questions
about it as well.

The work you'll see here is prepared by Bill Klein, primarily in our office in Portland.
Tanya Mamchik has also assisted him on a number of these things. I'll be the one

talking with you about it today.

Let me just run through a few overview slides first. I'll get into some data. | can
certainly go into any questions you have along the way.

27



Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

| first wanted to spend just a moment talking about national trends. It's very useful
to have this as a perspective when you're talking about what’s happening in any
particular state. | have just a little information here but | think it sets the stage
pretty well.

Travel spending, which is a basic measure—this is direct spending by travelers
throughout the United States. You can see about 15 years’ worth of data there.
You can see what has happened. In the 2008, 2009 period, we had a very major
downturn. They had followed a good long period of growth. Subsequent te that, it
has grown again. At the national level, it topped off just this last year. That’s not so
much a measure of a decline or a leveling off of the travel industry, it's a change in
the structure and expenditures to represent the reduce cost of gasoline and other
fuels. Travelers are actually spending or they're traveling just as much, they're
actually spending a touch less on fuel. That results in what looks like a leveling of
the industry. It actually isn’t. It is a leveling of total expenditures.

Just one other measure, employment is particularly important. You can see that
that is generally following the same pattern and has grown steadily ever since the
downturn. It has yet to reach the peak that it had 10-15 years ago. Again, this is
nationally. But, it did grow last year and is continuing to show steady growth.

At the state level, spending has shown largely that same pattern. A big downturn,
actually quite a steep downturn in 2008, 2009. After bottoming out, it has come out
of that quite strongly and surpassed those levels in the last few years. The most
recent number is around $34B a year. This is direct spending. That's about a—
somewhat over a 3% increase year to year. It's a healthy pattern. | recall the
national pattern was a flat pattern.

Employment, up 1.8% this last year. Around 280,000 employees. Again, this is the
employment that’s directly—it's attributable to the direct expenditures of travel. It
has not yet reached however the peak, in the early part of the decade. It's getting
close, a few more years, if it were to grow at the same level, it will be back up there.
In part, that's because of structural changes in the industry. They're just getting
more efficient in employment. To some degree, it's changed in the expenditure
pattern of travelers.

Earnings are what employees take home and also the earnings of working
proprietors, of businesses. You can see that has grown to surpass the previous peak
and it has grown nicely this last year. About 3.7%, that's a good number. It's up to
about $12M.

28



Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Tax receipts, always important to the state. Again, this is total taxes that are
directly attributable to direct expenditures of travelers. It's up to about $38 and up
over 4% this last year. The increase in tax receipts has actually exceeded the
increases in sales and in employment and earnings. In part, that's because of
changes in the tax structure. For example, local jurisdictions, by increasing the rate
of their lodging tax, it can be the result of increased inventory in lodging say, so
there is more lodging tax.

Just a reason for it, you see the room demand in the state has gone up, that’s an
important reason why this has occurred. It's well above the peak earlier in the
decade.

Air travel. Visitors arriving by air are a particularly important part of your market.
They tend to spend the most, they stay the longest. You can see that after the peak,
early in the decade. It flattened for some time and it's just recently started to
increase again. | think that's a healthy sign. | hope that can continue.

Where the money is coming from? We like to break out spending in terms of the
type of accommodation that travelers are using. Nevada is quite unique because as
you can see here, the proportion of expenditures from travelers staying in
casino/hotels is just dominant. There's nothing like that in any other state. 80 some
odd percent of the expenditures are from that type of a traveler. A chunk is from
travelers staying in other lodging that is non-casino oriented. Commercial lodging,
or in camping, that kind of lodging. Unpaid lodging is friends and relatives and in
Nevada, that's quite a small portion, In most other states, that will be a significantly
larger portion but we've got a lot of cash flow as it were here and not that many
peaple. And day travel is not too significant. There are very few population centers
that are close enough to Nevada that they can support much travel during a day.

The tax revenues, we like to break it out in terms of where it's going. This is state
and local tax combine. You can see the largest portion is what we call, other sales.
That's really sales primarily on food and beverage and retail. Travelers are
supporting a good portion of that industry in the state and tax receipts from that are
very substantial. It's our largest category. Lodging taxes follow and then the taxes
oh gaming revenue,

This is quite a diverse picture that | wouid consider good. You've got taxes on
travelers coming from multiple sources. That just helps when there’s any kind of
dynamics in the industry, you've got some diversity.

All that said, the proportion of state tax revenue that is originating with travelers
has declined a bit. It declined last year. Although the revenues, if you recall,

29



Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Taurism & Cultural Affairs

increased, other revenues that is not from the travel industry increased even more.
That is not a bad thing at all. | think it represents the diversification that’s going on
in the state. You've got other kinds of industries, other kinds of activity that is
growing well and delivering tax revenue to the state. That is not to the detriment of
your travel industry at all. So, in a way, this is a healthy picture. The revenue has
not, again, reached the levels that it was earlier in the decade.

Economists like to measure industry characteristics using this concept of Gross
Domestic Product or Gross State Product. It's just a way of looking at industries
where you can focus on the value that the industries add to the state and get rid of
what in effect is the money this is turning over that is really not adding value. A lot
of that, that you're trying to get rid of is, purchases of things that the industries are
making from out of state in order to do their business. Even though that’s money
that's flowing through the state, it doesn’t really do the state any good because it's
money that’s flowing out.

A good example is a retail grocery store. They spend a tremendous amount of their
gross on wholesale purchases of goods. Those purchases are typically made out of
state and they don't really benefit the state. Gasoline stations are also along those
lines. Other businesses are much more service oriented, labor oriented and they
have much less of that. Looking at gross product is one way to compensate for that.

This is a picture of the state where we look at both the direct and the secondary
impacts by way of getting at that gross product. We build a model to do this that
takes the primary spending numbers that we looked at a moment ago and cranks
those through and then looks at all of the impacts throughout or across all of the
industries in the state. This looks at both the direct—that is the ones that are
attributable to direct sales of travelers. Then the secondary which are indirect and
induced effects. You can see the accommodation and food service is by far the
largest of these economic activities. Most of that is direct. A piece of that out at
the end there that is secondary.

Professional services, however, this is doctors, lawyers, accountants, various
contractors, architects. Essentially all of those economic benefits to the state are
secondary. They tend to be related to the expenditures of the businesses that are in
the travel industry. Government, similarly, has a major effect of a secondary nature.
Arts, entertainment and recreation has a little bit of primary but again, a lot of
secondary. And so down the line. You can see the extent to which primary
expenditure in the travel industry spreads through the remainder of the economy
and really effects essentially all of the remaining primary segments of the economy.
it doesn’t affect so much agriculture and food processing or mining. Maybe a little
bit but certainly a number of the other important components of the economy.

30



Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Departrent of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

I might add that in say, professional services, the salaries are good. These are
important secondary benefits.

Looking at the nature of the types of businesses that really benefit the most, there’s
a much more detailed chart than this that's in the report, but | pulled out those
industries that are most oriented to exporting some kind of good or service from the
state. Export industries are industries that bring money from the outside into the
state. Travel and tourism does that. Not so much that we’re exporting a good or
service, but people come in, spend their money and then leave. That is an export
industry. But, manufacturing will build something and sell it outside the state.
That's a classic export industry. A lot of agriculture or mining is in that same
category.

You can see the travel of these export industries is by far the largest. There's no
other state that looks like this. It is a very highly significant industry.

Professional, technical and scientific, those are what might be traded services. That
might be software manufacturing, consulting, design, marketing and so on that’s
here and is sold outside the state. Manufacturing, mining, information, is typically
computer related, manufacturing or services. Those are significant. They're not
nearly as large as travel.

The old industries of the west, mining, ranching, forestry, you can see are down at
the bottom. In Nevada and most states, they have faded quite a lot compared to
these newer industries.

Just a few words about how these impacts distribute around the state. This data
represents everything in Nevada other than Clark County, Douglas and Washoe
Counties. We call it the rural, that is the non-urban portions of the state. We did
Jjust some analysis separately of that area. Again, there’s much more detail in the
report.

The picture though, it's interesting, is not a lot different than for the state overall.
There is still a substantial emphasis on casinos and casino revenue. Hotel/motels
that are not casinos are substantially larger proportionally than they are for the
state overall. This is representing people who are traveling who are doing outdcor
recreation. In some cases, business and so on, that are outside the urban areas.
Private home day travel and campground are also relatively larger than they are at
the state level.

31



WAGNON:

CARANO:

VECCHIO:

Mevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Again, the emphasis of the state on gaming extends throughout the state. It's most
dominate in the urban areas but it’s not absent in the remainder of the state.

Looking at the secondary total. We looked at this separately for the rural areas. We
built up a separate analytic model just for the areas outside of those three counties
and tried to understand the primary and secondary impacts. You can see there are
secondary impacts out there, of the sort that | mentioned before. They're
proportionally not as large as they are in the urban areas. That's because of the
small community. If you want to hire an architect or an accountant, you may have
to go to Reno or Las Vegas to find one. That expenditure leaks out of that area and
doesn’t stay there. The secondary impacts tend to be smaller.

Looking at different regions of the state. I've picked out employment here. This
could be earnings or spending. You can see it's very dominant in the Las Vegas area.
Almost 85% of all spending is in that area. Reno/Tahoe gets a portion and then the
remainder of the state gets about 3% of total spending. So, you're in a state that is
very bottom heavy, as it were, with Las Vegas down in the south.

If you look at that at the County level, this is a related measure of earnings from
travel and tourism as a percent of all earnings in a county. It's a measure within a
county of how oriented that county is to the travel industry. You can see, as you
might expect that Clark County is very high. Douglas County is very high. Washoe
isn’t quite as high. | think it fell just below the threshold on this map. Elko County
falls in that category as well. It does not have a very large tourism industry,
compared to Las Vegas, but it doesn’t have nearly as many people either. So it has
the same level of specialization.

I'm going to conclude on this. If you have any questions, again, there’s quite a lot of
detail in the report you can look at if you wish.

It all appears to be positive—positive across the board. Great, that's what we like to
see.

Great trends is right. I'm expecting that we will have this distributed to all the
Commissioners? Thank you.

Yes, the deck will be distributed to everyone. | apologize it wasn't in this packet. |
think the interesting thing that Dean showcased is really the ecosystem of tourism
and how it impacts so many different industries. | think that's a message that we
need to ensure that everyone is saying and everyone is using the same numbers. |
think people know how impactful tourism is, but we're just funded by lodging tax. |
think we miss a significant portion of how much this industry does impact the state

32



RUNYAN:

VECCHIO:

DRYSDALE:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

for a number of different industries. We'll look forward to putting those talking
points together for everyone. Thank you Dean.

Thank you.

Just quickly into Cooperative Marketing. More information about this will be
provided at the Summit. I'm very excited to be working with Madden Media on a
domestic international cooperative program. They do two print inserts that lots of
people are participating in. They're successful and those will continue for fall and
spring. For the spring, we're also going to start our domestic international program
which is a multichannel program that offers cooperative opportunities for our state
to advertise in—this year we're going to do Chinese, so in Mandarin speaking digital
print, in some broadcast outlets. Madden has done a tremendous job in putting this
program together and it really is a new opportunity for our partners to reach the
Chinese travelers, those who live in the US. Then they will connect, of course, off to
the agency we have working with us in China, so there will be a total string of both
the US and Chinese visitors. We look forward to that coming in October. They put
together a really nice program for us,

Brenda, anything additional from your team? | think that’s it from the marketing
side. Public Relations, Bethany, do you want to quickly go through some legislative
initiatives?

Hi, for the record, Bethany Drysdale. I’ll just touch on a couple of things. | wanted
to point out, in your packet you have some media clips. Most of those are results of
previous media missions and media desk side visits that we’ve done. That’s why we
do these. We were just in Boulder in Denver meeting with media there, had a full
roster of media to meet with over two days. We'll be going to New York in October.

This is why we do it. We had Elko on the cover of Via Magazine. That’s from an
ongoing relationship we have with a journalist who actually lives here. We meet
with her on occasion and pitch her on occasion. She’s able to come to us and say,
“I'm really interested in ... In this case it was Elko. So, how can you help me? What
can | get out of a trip there? What can | do?” We got the cover. This is why we do
this. |just wanted to point those out to you.

The Global Tourism Summit coming up. We have 25 media and PR reps from 8 of
our 10 markets coming out for that. We'll be sending them on two media trips
around the state. The two trips are themed American-indian culture and we’ve
been working with the Indian Commission. Sherry has been wonderful on that. The
other trip is a food and wine tour of Nevada. This will be very exciting to put on in
just a couple of weeks.

33



Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Moving on to the Public Affairs Plan. This is a plan that was approved by the
Commission, | believe at the last meeting if not the one before. You've seen this
before. It's nothing new. | wanted to point out our progress and why we're doing
it.

So much of the PR job is talking about Burning Man and about the ET Highway and
all these fun things to see and do. Then there’s this whole other side of it, which is
really the business of tourism. Why are we doing what we do? I'm glad | get to
follow Dean because he really set the foundation for this.

These numbers, increases in tax revenue directly impacting the residents of Nevada.
Those are the messages that we need to be out there with. That's the business of
tourism and that’s what we're talking about with this Public Affairs Plan.

I’'m not sure what page it is because | don’t have these pages numbered, but in that
Public Affairs Plan, when you get to the timeline of how we want to approach all of
these tactics, our August tactics are completed and we're well into September.
There are some things that we hope we can look to each of you for. Thank you to
Cindy and John for coming out to the IFC Meeting in August. It speaks volumes, no
matter what you say, it speaks volumes having you there on our behalf. Showing
the legislatures and the public that we have some pretty heavy hitters in the
tourism world that are relying on the work that we do and the work that you as a
Commission do. This is really important that you're able to speak on our behalf.

We provided some talking points to Cindy and John when they were there and |
gave each of you a copy of those. Those are our key messages. We will continue to
refine these with the new economic impact study. We'll add some new numbers to
that. We'll put these into more bite sized nuggets for you and we’ll really deliver it
any way you want. We want to arm you with the information that you need, how
you need it. Please, feel free to ask me, to talk to Claudia, about what you want to
be able to say. | hate the term elevator speech, but if you're stuck in an elevator
with somebody and they ask you about the value of tourism, we want you to be
able to say confidently, we employ so many Nevadans. We are 30% of the GDP. We
bring over $3B in tax revenue to the state. Qur ROl is 77:1 on our marketing. Those
are big numbers. If you have 77:1 on any investment, you're going to put more
money into that investment. That’s what we want the legislatures to know.

And, to know that this industry is valued. This is not just a wine and dine industry.

This is big business. This directly impacts every Nevadan and those are the
messages that we want everybody to bear for us,

34



CARANO:

DRYSDALE:

CARANO:

DRYSDALE:

CARANO:

VECCHIO:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Some things that we’ll be doing in the coming months. We'll be putting together an
editorial calendar and happy to share that, so you know the messages that will be
going out and when they’ll be going out. In October, if you get the Northern Nevada
Business Weekly, there will be an insert all about Nevada tourism and what it means
to the state. | believe we have eight stories and an insert in there. It will actually be
distributed statewide, not just Northern Nevada.

There are other targeted promotions that we’ll be doing around the state with a
very, very heavy business message. We're excited about that.

We'll be putting together some shareable social graphics. If you follow
TravelNevada or Nevada Tourism on Facebook and you see one of those graphics
and want to share it, please do. We would appreciate that. We’ll make them very
fun, very visual but really telling the story of why tourism matters in Nevada.

Then we’ll be doing some media training with TravelNevada spokespersons, which is
kind of on this side and happy to provide that to you as well. If you want to feel
better armed, if you're talking to the public or the media, we’re happy to do that as
well.

Those are some of the highlights of the schedule and the tactics. The key messages
you already have. What you have goes into why this is important and what our plan
for this whole Public Affairs Plan is all about. I'm happy to answer any questions, if
you have any.

Thank you Bethany. We were looking for the plan that you're referring to. Is this
the plan?

Yes.
Okay.

| handed it out to everybody. | emailed it to Don. Forgive me Ryan, | didn’t know
that you were on the phane, I'll send it to you as well. It didn't make it into the
packet, we were updating it as the packets were being produced. We’'ll email it out
to everybody as well, after the meeting.

Okay, great. We'll have a chance to read that. Thank you very much. Any other
questions from anybody? Thank you.

We'll move on to an update from our Sales and Industry Partner’s team, Larry
Friedman will lead that charge.

35



FRIEDMAN:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

We do have an updated show schedule for you. Our show schedule for the year was
in your June packet. There are two significant changes though to bring to your
attention, one being India and the other being China. | know China is on the agenda
but I'm going to start with India because of the significance.

Lieutenant Governor will be returning to India on December 1% and tentatively the
dates are December 1% through December 8". US Commercial Services, in addition
to our office in India have agreed to try to facilitate several key meetings, including a
meeting with the ambassador from the United States to India and with the Minister
of Tourism for India.

Claudia mentioned that this year is the year of tourism exchange between China and
the United States. Qur country is entering into an agreement with India for next
year, to facilitate and encourage travel between our two countries.

The Lieutenant Governor’s trip is very timely. Actually before most US destinations,
as it officially kicks off at SATTE at the end of January. We're glad to be going over
there two months sooner.

As for China, the original show schedule we had the possibility of a big trip at CITM
in November. After much discussion between ourselves and partners, the
Lieutenant Governor's Office and our office in China, it was decided to really do a
big reentry in January instead to be able to get the biggest bang for our buck and
the most attention for the visitor.

We are currently looking at dates. We will be inviting partners from throughout the
state to join us. We'll be going to Beijing and Shanghai with VIP receptions in both
cities. Media events, one-on-one meetings with tour operators and presentations
to travel agents. What we're waiting for, as far as dates is to find out when the
State of the State is going to be presented. We believe it's going to be around the
9" of January or earlier in January and then the Mission would be immediately
following that. We plan to go earlier than later in January because of the Chinese
New Year. Our office has suggested that the Chinese will be very interested in
attending parties and events. They will be on vacation in celebrating their own new
year from approximately the 21 on. We will definitely be back before the 21% as
the Lieutenant Governor is doing a TED Talk at UNR on January 21%. We’re looking
at somewhere between the 12 and the 20" for our re-entry.

Claudia did meet with our office in China when she was in China earlier this month.
I do have some Brand USA information, but if you have anything you would like to
add about China.

36



VECCHIO:

FRIEDMAN:

Nevada Commission an Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

I put this in the Top 10, this is Claudia Vecchio for the record. | was privileged to be
invited to join Brand USA and US Travel Association at the US/China Tourism
Leadership Summit which they hold on annual basis. It switches between China and
the US. Bruce Bommarito actually was integral in starting this event a decade ago.
This year it was in Yinchuan China which is a place that we had never been, none of
us had, but it was a good couple of days of meetings and briefings on the China
market and the continued evolution of the market from, you know, primarily group
based trave! market to one that has much more FIT business. | was very happy to
meet with our agency over there. As you know, we closed the office and we hired
East West Marketing to help us in China. They bring a very professional, long-
standing understanding of Nevada and so | think they’re going to be a tremendous
partner moving forward.

It was a nice opportunity to solidify Nevada's position in China and to be part of
panels and other discussions where we could showcase our continued commitment.
That’s the real reason for this re-entry, if you will, is to just showcase that. Beyond
the conversation that happened about our closing the office, that we continue to
show a very strong commitment to China in creating both business and government
relations. | think it’s going to be a tremendous event for us at that point.

Then as far as Brand USA, there are many different ways we work with them. First
the Brand USA shows throughout the world. Right now, Christian Passink is in Paris
with Top Recesa and the Brand USA Pavilion with many Nevada partners. Next
month, our office in China will be participating in the Brand USA Media Day and IT8
Asia in the Brand USA Pavilion, again with our office in China and | believe there are
seven other Nevada partners who will be participating.

Brand USA produces sales missions to India and China that we have participated in.
Then we participate in press strips and fam trips with Brand USA. When Brand USA
does a fam trip, they are required, from whatever country, to include more than one
state. One that we recently did from Brazil was Nevada and California. It started in
Reno, included the entire Reno/Tahoe area and then moved south through
Mammoth and ended up in Anaheim.

Periodically Brand USA will do what they call a mega-fam. This is where they bring a
larger number of tour operators and travel agents, go to multiple destinations and
they end up then with a final event in one destination. For an example, when
Australia did their mega-fam, they ended up in Honolulu, Hawaii. When the UK did
their mega-fam, they ended up in Los Angeles with everybody. The next Brand USA
mega-fam is from Korea. One group will be going to Washington and Oregon. One
group will be going to Northern California and Northern Nevada. One group will be

37



VECCHIO:

FRIEDMAN:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

doing Southern Nevada and the parks of Utah. Then for their final destination,
where all the groups are coming, joining cities like LA and Honolulu, they are all
coming to Reno/Tahoe. Yeah, it is very exciting. We have all of them coming here
for their finale before they depart. The Reno Airport is even ready for them and has
Korean signs ready to great them when they come on the mega-fam. That really is
wonderful because we all do watch in the industry where the mega-fams end up
and where they go. I'm very pleased that it's coming here.

Recently, we had a television program from the UK come with Travel Channel
through Brand USA. They came to five different states. The two western states
were Oregon and Nevada and their theme was ale. It's the UK. They went to
Virginia City, Reno, Tonopah, Boulder City, Fremont Street and Las Vegas Strip.
From what | understand, from the Travel Channel in the UK, Ollie the host who
Claudia has met, was at his top form and they loved it. They loved Tonopah where
they stayed at the Mitzpah and from what we understand, it was very successful
and we’re very pleased. | don’t know if you want to say anything about Ollie or the
show, but it's a great partnership with Brand USA.

Ollie is a personality and a half. Ollie and Larry in the same show would be like the
screen exploding, but he’s a tremendous host. If he loved Nevada, the world will
know about it.

Yes, and apparently, that's the feedback that we've gotten. That he was in top form
and loved our state. A good combination of North and South, rural and urban.

Then the final part is that, we do annually a letter of agreement with Brand USA for
$150,000. That's the amount we’ve done the past few years. Brand USA, in order
to get their federal money from the ETTA Funds, they need all of us in the industry
to match. That's our participation.

In August, Yennifer and | went back for a Brand USA Emersion where we met with
each key department and each key person in charge of a part of the world to
determine what programs we wanted to continue participating in and how to get
the biggest bang for our buck. They have over 150 different programs currently
available for destinations to take advantage of.

In your packet of information, | believe right before the PR part, shows what we are
planning to participate in with Brand USA with our current LOA. These programs
were decided upon, taking many things into consideration. One of them to
compliment what we are doing in market through our own reps. What segment of
the country they are reaching. What their reach is. What the value added from
Brand USA is. In all of these cases, Brand USA does a value added and they
participate financially in the programs.

38



Nevada Commission on Taurism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

The inspiration guide is what | think all of us do to support Brand USA and what
Brand USA is trying to do. That really is their visitor's guide. It's the visitor's guide
for the country. Just as the Go USA e-page is the website. The multi-channels for
Australia, China and India we felt were three countries where we wanted to make as
much of a bang with our re-entry into China, our entry into India. They all were
things that complimented what our local rep was doing.

Telegraph. One of the things we liked about it was the call to action with tour
operators that we know and we work with on a regular basis. America, As You Like
It, as a matter of fact is coming on one of the pre-fams and coming to our Global
Summit. America Unlimited is something we would like to do more with our LOA.
This is where they actually came to the state a year ago and produced a video and
they produced the whole thing using drones. Including Reno Air Races across
Highway 50 out to Great Basin down to Las Vegas. They did a drone video of the
state. It's very cool. They have now shortened it and want to do it in cinemas.
Brand USA was interested in this because they’re looking at how to use cinemas
around the world to promote the United States. They have something like that in
China. They're looking at other countries. They’ll take our money and they will add.
They don't call it a match, they don't call it a grant, they call it value added. They
will actually add dollars to our efforts with that.

These are the things that we plan to do this year. We also mention some of the
things were looking at in the future. American Journal is a publication in Germany
that we’ve actually done things with. I'm sure Bethany’s worked with them. Also,
some of our rural communities have received grant dollars to advertise in American
Journal.

Televisa is something that is in the works. They have said it will just have an
outstanding value added to it. The Televisa wants to work with Brand USA.

In language videos, we've done twice before in Chinese and in German. There were
a lot of challenges. It did not meet our expectations or other destinations like us.
That was part of the growing pains of Brand USA. They have identified the problems
and are working on them. That is what we look to do with Brand USA in the next
few months. Yennifer is our direct liaison with Brand USA and their marketing
programs.

As Claudia pointed out, although we have been investing $150,000, right now, the

amount of money that we're carrying over with our new $150,000 is actually more.
That is because we had, when Thomas Cook was looking to do their flight for the

39



CUNNINGHAM:

FRIEDMAN:

WAGNON:

CARANO:

GROUP:

CARANO:

ARGER:

CARANO:

SHELTRA:

NEWMAN:

CARANO:

GROUP:

CARANO:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

winter into the Reno/Tahoe area, we had agreed to assist with the marketing
commitment with Thomas Cook. We had some of our LOA tied up in that,

Once again, what was great about that opportunity was, Brand USA had agreed,
because it was Thomas Cook, to do 515,000 on top of it. Claudia and | have talked
about other things we can do in the future with Brand USA on behalf of our
partners, possibly a partner co-op program, but how to maximize our dollars and

the opportunities that Brand USA presents.

Claudia is reminding me that this item is for possible action. We would like to
request your approval of our proposed Brand USA activities for this fiscal year.

| move that we approve your proposed sales activity plans for the fiscal year.
Thank you.
Second.

We have a motion and a second to approve your marketing plan for Brand USA for
2017 Fiscal Year. All those in favor?

[ayes around]

Any opposed? Do | have anybody on the phone still?

I'm here, but I'm not voting.

I know, Ryan and Don, are you there?

I'm here.

Yeah, I'm here.

Okay, great. All those in favor.

[ayes around]

Any opposed? Great. Approved. Thank you. Thank you very much. we are now on
to Nevada Magaozine update for Item F in our Agenda. Thank you. Ryan, | don't

think we have any more action, so if you need to go, thank you very much for
staying on.

40



GEARY:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Good afternoon Commissioners, I'm Janet Geary, Publisher of Nevada Magazine. |
first wanted to introduce my new design team. I’'m very pleased to have Jody Corey
and Kippie Spilker. Jody is our Senior Graphic Artist. She is actually the one that’s
responsible for the Ghost Town Map. If you've seen it, Jody designed that on her
own. Kippie Spilker, we're very pleased to have her. She’s our new Art Director.
She has a lot of experience as a magazine art director and she’s really hit the ground
running. She helped get our last magazine out. We had a very short turnaround
time. Kippie and Jody are working on our historical calendar. We're putting
together some new territory calendars and also our November/December magazine
and Events and Shows. | just want to introduce Kippie and Jody. Thank you ladies.

The magazine is coming to the end of our 80" year. Our 80" anniversary. We have
one more addition of the magazine, our November/December issue. We have been
sharing some incredible stories this year, some ghost town stories in each edition of
the magazine. We also have ghost town videos that our editorial team have put
online. We have won a couple of awards for our ghost town stories. We also have
been highlighting one of the State Museums in each of our issues for the historical
80™ anniversary.

We also have an exhibit now at the Nevada Historical Society. If you get a chance, it
is in Reno. For our 80™ anniversary, they’ve honored us with an exhibit. We have
photos, prints of some of our most iconic covers, starting from the one in 1936 all
the way to the present time. We have our own room at the Nevada Historical
Society. We had a reception a couple of weeks ago. It is going to be through the
end of September. If you haven’t seen it, please stop by and see it.

We are into our second year of “Tour Around Nevada,” the last feature will be in the
November/December issue. This is where towns vote or residents of towns vote for
their favorite town. If they win, we do a story about them in the magazine. We also
go and present a plaque and a cover of the magazine to either their chamber or
their visitors center or at one of their meetings or events. This year's winners have
been Laughlin, Winnemucca, Mesquite, Elko, Genoa and Fallon. We've bheen all over
the state.

We also had our Second Annual Silver State Scavenger Hunt, which just finished up
last month. We had over 1,000 people participating and what they were doing is
going to different ghost towns, taking a selfie with the last edition of the magazine
and then sending it in. If they went to at least 10 of the 12 lacations, they were
entered in a drawing for a great prize. Range Rover partnered again with us this
year and had Weekend Range Rover Packages where they went out and they stayed
overnight in one of the ghost towns and actually drove a Range Rover around the
desert for a couple of days. We just finished up with that.

41



CARANO:

GEARY:

CARANO:

GEARY:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

We just got word of our 2015 Nevada Press Association Awards, which will be
awarded next week in Mesquite. In 17 categories, Nevada Magazine got 22 awards.
We're very pleased with what happened. | obviously can’t tell you about the
awards yet until they are presented.

We did complete a direct mail campaign, a very successful one with the money that
Jennifer was talking about, the $50,000 that we received. We sent out letters to
potential subscribers in the rural areas of Nevada. We received over 800 new
subscribers and their purchase was about $28.00 per person. We're still receiving
those in right now.

Our social media. We've had a tremendous uptick in our social media. We have
over 10,000 followers on Facebook right now from the US and 44 countries. |
counted them up yesterday, there’s actually 44 countries where we have Facebook
followers. We have 13,800 Twitter followers. Since we have put our ghost town
videos on Twitter and Facebook, we’ve seen a real big increase in our followers.

Of course, | still do my radio show on Friday mornings. (f anybody would like to
come on. This last year, we've had most of the Chairs of the Nevada Territories.
We've had the Reno Big Horns, we've had the Valhalla Tahoe Music Festival,
National Auto Museum, Pahrump Chamber, Beatty Chamber, Piper's Opera House,
Zephyr Cove Resort, City of Las Vegas Cultural Arts, etc. and so forth. We've had a
myriad of guests an the show. f you would like to be on the show, | would be more
than happy to have you as my guests.

| believe that's all | have. Any questions for me?
How many people made it through your Scavenger Hunt?

We had about 1,000 people that actually sent in photos of themselves doing selfies
with our magazine at one or more of our ghost towns.

So to get 10 out of the 12.

Yes, they didn’t all get 10 out of 12 locations. I’'m not really sure how many finished,
but believe we had a couple hundred that actually finished. We had 12 locations in
Northern Nevada and 12 in Southern Nevada they could choose from. We actually
had our first ones do it in one weekend. They traveled over 800 miles. They were a
little over zealous, but they actually finished in one weekend. Then we got a couple
of more within the first week. People really like it.

42



CARANO:

GEARY:

CARANO:

ARGER:

CARANO:

ARGER:

VECCHIO:

ARGER:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Yes, | was following that and | was thinking that maybe that was inspiring people to
get out into Nevada.

Oh, absolutely. The ghast towns have been extremely popular for us. Like | said,
Eric has done videos. In fact, one of the awards we’re getting at the Nevada Press
Association is Eric, for the Investigative Journalism Award for his Ghost Town Stories
and his Ghost Town Video. We're very pleased with that. Thank you.

Thank you very much. Okay. Are there any department agency updates from our
partner agencies?

This is Julia with the Nevada Arts Council. If the Division of Museums and History is
not available.

Okay, great. Do you have an update Julia?
I do.
Peter is here as well.

I'll be brief because the entire report will be included in the minutes (Addendum A),
but | wanted to start by saying that the Nevada Arts Council is thrilled to receive an
additional $267,254 for its FY "17 budget, thanks to an increase in lodging tax
receipts. The majority of these dollars, $207,254 will increase grant support for this
years’ breadth of arts and cultural activities. Performing arts series, exhibitions,
festivals, workshops and lectures, etc., of the 89 grantee organizations in Boulder
City, Carson City, Carson Valley, Elko, Eureka, Fallon, Henderson, Incline Village,
Mesquite, Winnemucca, Virginia City and Yerington, in addition to communities in
the Las Vegas Valley and the Truckee Meadows. We're really pleased about this
because we’re still—we’re still trying to regain the funding level that we had before
the recession. This is a great step in that direction.

There’s Arts Town Meetings will be starting, hitting the road. The first one is Friday
the 29" in Reno. Anybody in the Reno area who wants to attend, please check the
website so you can get the particulars. It's at the McKinley Art Building.

Then at the Nevada Art Museum, the tilting, the basin features at least 21 of the 30
participating artists in this exhibit currently at the Nevada Museum of Art have been
recognized with artist fellowships and will receive jackpot grants to support their
work from the Nevada Arts Council. We're really proud of all of these terrific artists.

43



CARANO:

BARTON:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

A project called the, “Nevada Students Create Ornaments for National Tree Lighting
Celebration.” The ornaments created by Las Vegas students working with artist, Roz
Knight and the City of the World Arts Organization will be displayed at the 94"
annual national tree lighting celebration in Presidents Park on the Ellipse in
Washington DC. The National Parks Service works with state arts agencies to
coordinate this component of the national event that features 56 smaller Christmas
trees representing all US states and territories. Student ornaments will be
recognized with signage on the website and in the National Christmas Tree Lighting
Event Program. This is a really great recognition for these students.

The Nevada Touring Initiative, the NIT is touring its newest exhibit, the Mountain
Picassos: Basque Arborglyphs of the Great Basin for the next two years. Mountain
Picassos are distinctive images and figures carved into aspen trees of the Great
Basin's high country meadows by bask sheep herders during the first half of the 20"
Century. There was a list of where these will be and when they will appear there
throughout the state. This is a great opportunity to see this exhibit as it tours the
state.

That concludes my report. The highlights of my report for today, thank you Chair.

Thank you Julia. Do we have any questions for the Arts and Culture? No? Okay.
So, Peter from the Division of Museums and History.

Good afternoon. For the record, Peter Barton. | begin with a word of personal and
professional gratitude to Director Vecchio and this body for your support of
museums through the actions of the Interim Finance Committee in August, we were
able to move forward two projects that are critical to museums. One develops new
visitor facilities at the very successful Boulder City Railroad Museum, which sits on
the threshold of major new development as the I-11 project is concluded. We will
be reconnected by rail to Downtown Las Vegas for the first time in 30 years, creating
all sorts of new opportunities for that museum which continues to demonstrate the
strongest growth in our system. We've exceed 45,000 riders per year at this point.
The growth over the last 15 years, since the museum opened. The other project
supports the development of additional museum collection storage facilities. We
are chronically short of space to store museum collections. Our Indian Hills facility
here in Carson City will move toward expanding that facility with some design work.
For both of these projects, we're not seeking to burden the State of Mevada with
the entire cost of capital development. We're actually propelling these projects
forward through design to enable us to identify and partner with other stakeholders
for the developments.

44



CARANO:

RUPERT:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

After 40 years in museums, | would say that I've come to conclude that at the core,
museums are incubators for memory. We stimulate memory, we inspire memory,
we create new memories and we feed memories.

Let me take you on just a very short, very brief little memory. it was the summer of
1938 when District Judge, Clark Joseph Guild was walking along North Carson Street
to get his morning newspapers. In a dark and dirty window in front of the former
US Mint Building he saw a sign that said, for sale. He copied down the phone
number, made a call and found out the building was available for $6,000. It took
Clark Guild over two years to raise the $6,000 but he bought the building and
created the Nevada State Museum. It opened to the public on October 31%, Nevada
Day, 1941. This year, it celebrates its 75" birthday on Friday, October the 28" with
a day long, in fact weekend long series of celebrations to honor the memories that it
has stimulated, inspired, created and fed over the last 75 years.

Judge Guild was an educator and a visionary. In 1953, he created the nation’s first
true mobile museum. A little air stream like trailer that was towed to every single
one of Nevada’s 99 schools until the mid-1960s when Nevada's growth prevented
them to visit every school every year. He left a legacy after 20 years that continues
to grow. We certainly want to invite you all to consider coming and visiting us on
October 28™, the daylong celebration. We expect the Governor will participate.
The Guild and Russell families who have meant so much to the museum over its 75
years will be there. Judge Guild’s grandson, Joe Guild, many of you may know his,
he's a rancher and a lobbyist, has just published a book, self-published book called
Seasons of the Ranch, the Great Basin. This is one of the most moving books | have
read since the Laxalt books about Nevada. This is incredible. If you see it, pick it up,
it's a wonderful book.

With that, | think that’s the updates. 75 years, we're celebrating that. We're
celebrating a victory with Claudia’s help to move some museum projects forward.
Thank you.

Thank you. | appreciate the railroad museums and maybe we’ll get more funds for
those, right? Okay. Now we have Sherry Rupert from the Indian Commission.

Good afternoon everyone. | too, want to thank you for your support at the IFC
meeting in August, we really appreciate it. Thanks to you Claudia also. As you
know or many of you know, | am the Director of Indian Affairs for the State of
Nevada. One of the components that we work really hard on is tourism. A big part
of that is through the preservation of the Stewart Indian School here in Carson City.
I'll start with that.

45



Nevada Commission an Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

We have several projects going, coming out of that IFC Meeting. Through that IFC
meeting we were able to add additional funds for an enhanced master plan of the
Stewart facility. We are working on that. That will now include an interpretative
plan, a marketing plan and a business plan; which it didn’t before. We're really
excited about that.

There’s also funding in there to hire an oral historian to move forward with the
National Historic Landmark Designation or an application for designation of the
Stewart Indian School. That is moving forward as well. We were able to go ahead
and draft that RFP. | believe that has been sent out to six different parties.

Funding was provided for renovation of Building 4, out at Stewart. There are over
80 buildings out at the Indian School on 110 acres. Building 4 sits right behind the
building that the Nevada Indian Commission is housed in and that will accommodate
two new staff coming on board after October 1*. We received funding for two
additional staff, a Museum Director and a Curator which will staff the culturai center
there and they will be housed in that building. They'll have a home, which is great.

One ather project that we're working on is the oral history project for Stewart. We
received some grant funding from the NV150 Foundation to do 15 complete oral
histories of former alumni of the school. We developed the RFP and sent that out
and awarded that to Terry McBride, She’s a local ethnographer and anthropologist,
has some really great experience in working with tribes and tribal people and has
participated for many years—I'm going to say 9-10 years, alongside the Commission
with Stewart and with the alumni. She's got some great existing relationships that
she can utilize for that particular project as well.

As you know, I'm the Chair of the Indian Territory. We are working on our Nevada
Tribal Tourism Conference coming up in April 2017. That will take place in Ely,
Nevada. We are doing that in collaboration with the Ely Shoshone Tribe. I'm really
excited about that because | think Larry talked about the Great Basin National Park
and how important that is to the area there. That really ties in with what's
happening on the national level.

I'm the President of the Board of Directors for the American Indian Alaska Native
Tourism Association and one of the projects we've really gotten a lot of recognition
for from the Park Service is the project at the Grand Canyon. It's the Desert View
Watchtower Project where National Park Service has collaborated with IANTA and
we have brought forth the 11 tribes of the Grand Canyon to provide interpretation
at the Desert View area.

46



CARANO:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

In going to Ely and incorporating the Great Basin National Park into the Mobile
Workshop that we're doing, I'm hoping to invite IANTA, their public lands person
and begin the discussions about bringing more tribal interpretation to that park. I'm
hoping that model will transcend to Nevada. We can share that with the rest of the
nation as well.

| think I've mentioned in this forum the NATIVE Act. The Native American Tourism
and Improving Visitor Experience Act. That Act had great support from our
congressional delegation here in Nevada, as well as from the Weastern States
Tourism Policy Council. | wanted to congratulate Claudia on being the new Chair of
that group. Great support from industry, great support from tribes on this Act. It
was passed through the Senate June 2016. |t just passed through the House on
September 12, 2016. It's on its way to the President’s desk for signature. There was
a lot of advocating on behalf of the Act and educating our congressional
representatives. What that will do is to really change access for tribes to the
tourism industry. I'm really excited about the implementation of that and IANTA
will work toward that. We're going to include a lot of that information on
implementation of that Act in our tourism conference here in Nevada. We want our
tribes to be more involved in the tourism industry. | think that the NATIVE Act will
help to do that. Will help to get our tribes more involved.

We just had our annual National Tribal Tourism Conference up in Tulalip
Washington, in Washington State. Beautiful resort that the Tualalip have up there.
We were able to rollout our Cultural Heritage Tourism Certificate Program. We had
our first class up there. It was overwhelming attendance. We had a waiting list.
That's something too that I'd like to bring here to Nevada and to our tribes here, to
build our industry professionals here in the state. That was in collaboration with the
George Washington University out of Washington DC.

| will be attending the Global Tourism Summit. | think that’s all | have as far as
tourism. Thank you.

You're a busy lady. Thank you very much. Does anybody have any questions?

Okay, thank you Sherry, tremendous. | urge everyone to go out and visit the
Stewart Indian School, it's just amazing. Great history.

47



Public Comment

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

I think that now we are finished with our agenda. Do we have public comment? On
the phone? | think Las Vegas is empty. Anybody in Carson City? Seeing none. We
have Commissioner Comments.

Commissioner Comments

NEWMAN:

CARANO:

NEWMAN:

This is Don Newman, | have a couple of things I’d like to bring up, if 1 may Cindy.
Okay, | was ready—there you go Don.

Okay, in the very back of your packet, you'll see a photograph that was recently
taken last week at the World Human Powered Speed Challenge. This is a—I'll call
them bicycles for lack of better definition. They're far from a bicycle but this was
the international entourage that was in Battle Mountain for this event. Over 11
international teams were there in Battle Mountain. There was, | believe 24 teams
altogether, many representing universities and private individual groups that had
graduated from universities that wanted to continue with this effort.

A land speed record was established at this past week’'s event. They raised the bar,
a team from Canada set a record of 89.5 mile per hour. Again, human powered. It's
just incredible. It's a four-mile long track that’s actually out on SR-305, about eight
miles outside of Battle Mountain.

Larry travels all over the world and lo and behold, we found him in Battle Mountain
with Kari Frilot. Again, he was able to welcome all of the 11 teams in their native
language, which was a big hit for everybody. Just an incredible event. There's so
much potential for this to grow and projects to come out of this. They're looking to
build a track that could do some testing as well as solar testing. All sorts of
opportunities. Just an amazing event.

! just want to say there was a film crew from Japan that was following the Japanese
team. There was actually a film crew from Al Jazeera Network that was there
covering the event. The international media, again in Battle Mountain, it was just
phenomenal.

Again, kudos to Paula Tomera and the folks there in Battle Mountain. This is the

15* Annual Event. If you get a chance to go out there next year, don’t miss it
because it was just amazing.

48



FRIEDMAN:

NEWMAN:

SANTOS:

FRIEDMAN:

CARANO:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Larry, | would turn it over to you. | don't know if we have that commercial. There
was a brief commercial we thought we might be able to show. Is that going to
happen Larry?

I think we’ll have to send it to the Commissioners, but it's a great commercial. It
was funded by the Grant Program. It ran a lot in the Reno area, during the news.
Personally, | was very proud because in Battle Mountain, it showed 11 countries
participating in this event.

Like Don said, 24 teams from 11 countries. The thing about Al Jazeera, just an
example of how global the media attention was for the event. If we can, I'd love to
send the Al Jazeera report and the commercial to the Commissioners.

Don, thank you very much for talking about it. Battle Mountain had a lot to be
proud of.

Oh, absolutely. It was a phenomenal event. Again, the Canadian team set a record,
89.5. The French set the women's record at 75.6 miles per hour. This is somebody
pedaling a contraption that looks like an egg going down the flat stretch of road.
Just Google Battle Mountain Bicycle and this will pop up. There’s about 15 different
media sources that covered it. Tremendous coverage and just amazing
international event. Again, hats off to Battle Mountain.

Hey Larry, what was your speed?
[laughs] Oh, sorry, a little faster than Don Newman.

Thank you Don. Any other Commissioner comments? Hearing none.

Upcoming Meetings

Public Comment

CARANO:

We have upcoming meetings. The full Commission Meeting will be on Qctober 11t
at the Governor’s Global Tourism Summit at 11:30 AM in the Grand Sierra Resort.
Also, we’ll have a telephone conference meeting on December 14 at 1:00 PM.

Now, any public comment, besides that? Okay, hearing none. Take a moticn for
adjournment.

49



WAGNON:

SANTOS:

CARANO:

GROUP:

CARANO:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016

'll move to adjourn the meeting.
Second.
All those in favor,

{Ayes around)

Here | get to use the gavel, meeting adjourned.

The meeting adjourned at 3:33 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Dee Chekowitz-Dykes, Executive Assistant
Department of Tourism and Cultural Affairs
Nevada Commission on Tourism

50

Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs



Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Addendum A

Nevada Arts Council
A Very Brief Report: Nevada Commission on Tourism
September, 2016

The Nevada Arts Council (NAC) is thrilled to receive an additional $267,254 for its FY17 budget, thanks
to an increase in lodging tax receipts. The majority of these dollars, $207,254, will increase grant
support for this year's breadth of arts and cultural activities (performing arts series, exhibitions,
festivals, workshops, lectures) of 89 grantee organizations in Boulder City, Carson City, Carson
Valley, Elko, Eureka, Fallon, Henderson, Incline Village Mesquite, Virginia City, Winnemucca and
Yerington, in addition to communities in the Las Vegas Valley and Truckee Meadows.

NAC grant recipients routinely send personal correspondence to state legislators, the Governor, and
members of the Nevada Congressional Delegation to explain the significance and value of these
awards for their programs and audiences. For this one-time additional funding, grant recipients will
be sending a similar letter to the Chair of the Nevada Commission on Tourisrm.

The remainder of this allocation will support NAC’s 50" Anniversary activities in 2017, including an
awards ceremony, a new traveling exhibition for the Nevada Touring Initiative, and a documentary
video featuring six decades of the Artist Fellowship Program.

Arts Town Meetings Hit the Road

What does a community "rich in art" look like? This fall, NAC launches a series of thirteen public Arts
Town Meetings (ATMs) and nearly a dozen focus group discussions in urban
and rural communities across Nevada to explore the Silver State's "state of
the arts." NAC's planning process is an interactive initiative designed to
assess the needs of Nevada's communities, maintain active partnerships with
communities and stakeholders, and update the agency’s strategic plan,
Values & Vision.

ATM host communities include Carson City, Elko, Ely, Fallon, Henderson, Las Vegas, Moapa Valley,
North Las Vegas, Pahrump, Reno, Tonopah, Winnemucca and Yerington.
Focus Group discussions are planned for Fernley, Hawthorne,
Minden/Gardnerville and Virginia City. ATM schedule through October:

* Reno - Friday, September 30, 2016, 9-11am; McKinley Arts and Culture Center - Co-sponsors: City
of Reno Arts and Culture Commission, Sierra Arts Foundation

51



MNevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

e Pahrump - Tuesday, October 4, 2016; 6-7:30pm; Pahrump Community Library — Sponsor:
Pahrump Arts Council

e Moapa Valley - Thursday, October 6, 2016; 4-5:30pm; Moapa Valley Community Center -
Sponsor: Moapa Valley Revitalization Project

e Tonopah - Thursday, October 18, 2016; 6-7:30pm; Tonopah Library = Sponsor: Town of Tonopah

¢ Ely - Wednesday, October 19, 2016; 5:30-7pm; Ely Art Bank - Co-sponsors: Bristlecone Arts, Ely
Renaissance Society

» (Carson City - Tuesday, October 25, 2016; 5:30-7pm; Brewery Arts Center — Sponsor: Carson City
Visitors Bureau, Brewery Arts Center

Tilting the Basin Features Artist Fellowship Recipients

Tilting the Basin, Nevada Museum of Art’s exhibition, curated by JoAnne Northrup of NMA and Las
Vegas-based consultant Michele Quinn, features more than 30 of Nevada’s
brightest artists. NAC is proud to be a funder of this important exhibit, and
delighted that 21 of the 30 participating artists have been recognized with
Artist Fellowships and/or received Jackpot Grants to support their work.

Nevada Students Create Ornaments for National Tree Lighting Celebration

Ornaments created by Las Vegas students, working with artist Roz Knight and the City of the World
arts organization, will be displayed at the 94™ Annual National Tree Lighting
celebration in President’s Park on the Ellipse in Washington, D.C. The National
Park Service works with state arts agencies to coordinate this component of
the national event that features 56 smaller Christmas trees representing all
U.S. states and territories. Student ornaments will be recognized with
signage, on the website, and in the National Christmas Tree Lighting event
program.

NAC Welcomes New Board Member

Governor Brian Sandoval has appointed Joe O'Neill, Theatre Program specialist for the City of Las
Vegas Office of Cultural Affairs, to the NAC Board. O'Neill entered the world
of arts administration at the Reed Whipple Cultural Center, and as teaching
artist with The Smith Center of Performing Arts, after a career dancing with
Walt Disney World Entertainment. In his current position, he coordinates
cultural festivals and performing arts events for the City's Arts Connection
Program. He replaces Phil Hooper, who stepped off the board to attend
Divinity School in Berkeley, CA and pursue a path of service in the Episcopal
Church.

Losses to Nevada's Arts and Cultural Community
The State lost three cultural treasures recently:

» Dr. Michael E. Cleveland - professor and Department Chair of the UNR School of Music, former
president of the Nevada Music Educators Association, and founder of the Sierra Women's
Ensemble, now known as Bella Voce.

52



Nevada Commission on Tourism | September 21, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

* Marilee Swirczek - writer, founder of Lone Mountain Writers, faculty member at Western
Nevada College, and the driving force behind the highly acclaimed “Always Lost: A Meditation on
War” photo exhibition.

* Lynn Rubel - opera singer, pianist, educator, and co-founder and executive director of Elko’s
Northern Nevada Concert Orchestra now known as Ruby Mountain Symphony, which held its
first concert in 1987.

Nevada Touring Initiative

The Nevada Touring Initiative (NTI) is touring its newest exhibit, The Mountain Picassos: Basque
Arborglyphs of the Great Basin, for the next two years. "Mountain Picassos”
are distinctive images and figures carved into aspen trees of the Great Basin’s
high country meadows by Basque sheepherders during the first half of the
20th century. NTI exhibitions “on the road” through the end of year include:

* Thru Sept 30 | Mountain Picassos: Basque Arboglyphs of the Great Basin — Pershing County
Library, Lovelock

e Thru Oct 15 | Words + Images: Broadsides from the Black Rock Press - Western Nevada College

* Thru Oct 21 | Panorama: Selections from Nevada Arts Council's Artist Fellowship Program -
Sheppard Contemporary Gallery, UNR, Reno

» Thru Oct 31 | Honest Horses: A Portrait of the Mustang in the Great Basin — South Valleys

Library, Reno

* Thru Nov 17 | A Brushwork Roundup: Western Paintings and Drawings by Craig Sheppard ~
TMCC, Reno

* Oct 10 - Dec 2 | Mountain Picassos: Basque Arboglyphs of the Great Basin — Courthouse Gallery,
Eureka

53



qqqqqqqqqqqq




October 11, 2016
Commission Meeting

Draft Minutes

For Approval

TRAVELNEVADA.COM % #TRAVELNEVADA






Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

MINUTES of the NEVADA COMMISSION ON TOURISM
October 11, 2016

The Nevada Commission on Tourism held a Commission meeting at 12:00 p.m. on October 11, 2016, at
the Grand Sierra Resort, 2500 E. Second Street, Rena, NV 89595 and by phone conference.

Call to Order
Vice Chair Carano called the meeting to order at 12:12 p.m.

Commissioners Present:
Cindy Carano, Vice Chair
Ryan Sheltra

Jennifer Cunningham
Don Newman

Herb Santas, Jr.

John Wagnon

Julia Arger

Dallas Haun

Mike Vaswani

Bob Stoldal

Commissioners who are absent/excused:
Lieutenant Governor Mark A. Hutchison, Chair
Richard Arnold

Bob Morse

Rossi Ralenkotter

Staff present:
Claudia Vecchio, Director
Henna Rasul, DAG

Roll Call and Determination of Quorum

CARANO: Good afternoon and welcome to the Nevada Commission on Tourism, Commission
Meeting for October 11, 2016. | am Cindy Carano, Vice-Chair of the Commission
and I'd like to call roll.

Lieutenant Governor Hutchison is not in attendance due to the Special Session down
in Carson City for the Las Vegas Room Tax, very important. Bob Morse, not able to
attend. Jennifer Cunningham?



Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

CUNNINGHAM: Present.

CARANO: Dallas Haun?

HAUN: Present.

CARANO: On the phone. Don Newman?

NEWMAN: Present.

CARANO: Rossi Ralenkotter? Not able to attend. Herb Santos?

SANTOS: Here.

CARANO: Ryan Sheltra?

SHELTRA.: Present.

CARANO: Mike Vaswani?

VASWAN!: On the phone.

CARANO: Great. And John Wagnon?

WAGNON: Here.

CARANO: Julia Arger?

ARGER: Here by phone.

CARANO: Thank you. Richard Arnold? Bob Stoldal?

STOLDAL: Present.

CARANO: Great. We have a quorum. We have some changes to the Agenda, is that correct?
VECCHIO: Yes, this is Claudia Vecchio for the record. Within Item 3, Presentations, we’'ll move

the Nevada Museum of Art Presentation first so they can do their presentation
before we do the international presentations.



Public Comment

CARANO:

Presentations

STOLDAL:

CARANO:

STOLDAL:

CARANO:

WALKER:

CARANO:

STOLDAL:

WALKER:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Great. Any objections? Seeing none. Okay. It's time for public comment. Do we
have any public comment? Any on the phone? Hearing none.

We can hear the Chair very clearly but we're unable to hear the previous person
speaking.

That was Claudia, thank you Bob. Claudia was mentioning that we’re going to move
the presentation for the Nevada Museum of Art in front of the International
Tourism Presentations.

Thank you.

We will work on the technical. David Walker, from the Nevada Museum of Art.
Thank you.

Thank you Vice-Chair Carano and thank you.
Bob, can you hear him?
Yes, thank you.

Thank you Commissioners. This will be the third time I've had the pleasure of
presenting to you. We have a little something for you that Mary Ann McAuliffe is
going to hand out while we get our clicker in place.

We have a little update on 7 Magic Mountains in Las Vegas. The big project that
we're here to talk about today. We will get started with a short video.

So, that's kind of fun huh, to see how that all came together. During the five years it
took to produce this extraordinary project and obviously it's become an
international pop icon in our culture, we're fortunate to have many partners and
many financial supporters. | want to thank the Nevada Caommission on Tourism for
your early interest and support in the project. You gave us a lot of confidence to
move forward with the project.

Here at the ribbon cutting ceremony, Clark County Commission Chairman Steve
Sisolak is handing 7 Magic Mountains artist, Ugo Rondinone the key to the Las Vegas
Strip. Obviously he was thrilled and surprised. Jim Murren there, Chairman of

3



Mevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

MGM is smiling but later in his remarks wondered why he doesn’t have a key to the
Las Vegas Strip.

As you know, this public art installation resides on BLM land, just south of Las Vegas.
It's also within Clark County and we were very happy to work with John Ruhs, the
Nevada State Director of BLM and also with Commissioner Steve Sisolak to make
this possible.

Some of you expressed concerns about safety when we presented to you in 2014
and 2015 and we took those concerns very seriously. Working closely with Las
Vegas Paving Corporation, we did create a significant parking lot that can
accommodate 30-40 cars at any given time. By the way, that’s full most of the time.
We also installed a left-hand turn lane going southbound on Las Vegas Boulevard,
into the parking lot, alleviating any potential for collisions for those motorists
heading south. Then of course, we worked closely with the Nevada Department of
Transportation and they installed some wonderful signs up and down Highway 15.
We worked with these organizations to make sure that safety was a top priority.

Finally, we have also worked with law enforcement, down in the Las Vegas area.
Specifically with the Nevada Highway Patrol. They now get off the highway in Jean
and come up Las Vegas Boulevard and they make regular stops throughout the day,
throughout the evening, just to have their presence felt there.

Now, we have been very fortunate that we have had no incidents in connection with
this project since it opened on May 10™. The only high profile incident was the
vandalism by graffiti, which seemed to get as much attention as the piece itself
when it opened. We're happy to report that within 24 hours, we were able to fix
that problem. It only took three hours to do so.

This is Nevada limestone, these boulders. We have anticipated that they could be
vandalized by graffiti and so they are coated with an anti-graffiti coating and this
allows us to remove graffiti very quickly. However, we're convinced that it was a
Californian who came in and sprayed these boulders, because Nevadans have grown
to love this piece. They have embraced it. They have reverence for it. Actually
there are many, many, many of them out there on a regular basis, just patrolling the
installation, making sure there’s no “hanky panky”, picking up trash and also
reporting anything that looks suspicious to the Nevada Museum of Art.

We're really grateful for that. Also, | should say that Republic Services in Las Vegas
has provided the trash receptacle in the parking lot and on a pro bono basis is also
doing all of the trash hauling for us every week. This is a two-year donation. Just
another way you can see the community pitching in here.

4



HORN:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Clearly 7 Magic Mountains has elevated the brand of Las Vegas and Nevada, but
what you really want to hear about today is the extraordinary attention Nevada has
received since the May 10™ opening. I'd like to now introduce to you the talented
person who is responsible for this success. She is Amanda Horn, the Nevada
Museum of Arts, Director of Communications. Amanda?

Thank you David. Before | get into the media report, I'm going to put on your table
up there the press book just from the opening press. This is really just a snapshot of
what we received in the first week of opening. | made a couple of copies there for
you to thumb through after the presentation today.

About three weeks after 7 Magic Mountains opened, we received a call from the
Editorial Board of the New York Times to let us know that in all of their years they
had never seen an artwork or exhibition receive the international buzz that 7 Magic
Mountains has since the opening. It's pretty phenomenal just to get a call from the
Editorial Board because we’re like on texting basis anyway now, which is amazing,
but to hear that sort of response was more than we could’ve possibly dreamed of.

The logos you see here on the slide represent only a small fraction of the more than
500 earned media placements around the globe that 7 Magic Mountains has
received since the May 10" opening and it still continues. These top tier media that
you see here before you represent not just listings or mentions, but feature stories.

The onslaught of the media coverage kicked off with a major Sunday feature in the
New York Times by the Arts Writer, Randy Kennedy, with whom | had the pleasure
of spending two full days. He flew to Reno, we spent a day at the museum, He
interviewed David. We drove to Las Vegas. We went through all of the places on
that long road to Las Vegas. Then we spent a full day in Las Vegas with the artist at
7 Magic Mountains.

I just received word this morning that a long awaited piece that we've been waiting
for with CBS Sunday Morning is on the schedule for this Sunday, which is incredible.
They just kicked off their new season. As you may know, Jane Pauley is now the
new anchor and it’s on the schedule. As we know, those are familiar with media,
that can always change last minute, but the producer let me know just before |
came here today that it is on the schedule. That's incredible. That alone is the
biggest news magazine show in the United States and for art or culture, there is no
other slam dunk than C8S Sunday Morning. Again, it not only features 7 Magic
Mountains but they also spent a day at the Museum. Again, it’s two places. It's
showing you both Reno and Las Vegas, the Nevada Museum of Art as well as 7
Magic Mountains.



Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

I'm reminded of something Clark County Commission Chair Steve Sisolak said when
we first began speaking to him about this project. He said, that 7 Magic Mountains
would be more famous than the Welcome to Las Vegas Sign. Well, a recent feature
on the Discovery Channel's Canadian based show, the Daily Planet said verbatim,
that 7 Magic Mountains is the new unofficial welcome sign for Las Vegas. Chairman
Sisolak, | think that we’ve achieved what you had imagined.

Stories have appeared around the world. The UK, Belgium, the Netherlands,
Germany, France, Italy, Switzerland, Sweden, China, Japan, South Korea, Thailand,
India, Mexico, Brazil, Canada and Australia, just to name a few countries. Speaking
of Australia, we have just learned that in the November issue, 7 Magic Mountains
will be featured on the cover of Qantas Airlines in-flight magazine. Which as you
know, is the airline of Australia. Again, another incredible slam dunk. And it does
look beautiful on a cover, | must say. This is Juxtapose Magozine, which is an art
magazine, this is this month’s issue. Just to keep bragging because it’s so cool, this
is one of the luxury Asian publications that featured 7 Magic Mountains and they
actually gave it about 10-pages of real estate. They included behind the scenes
images as well. It's truly a beautiful and incredible spread. This is just a couple
here.

To summarize, there have been across multiple vertical markets, so travel, luxury,
mainstream news, fashion, art, academic publications, science and lifestyle to name
a few. We have received over 500 earned media placements since opening May
10", A total TV audience of 4.3 million to date, and of course, when CBS Sunday
Morning comes up, that will raise that by about 6 million, so that's pretty awesome.
A total estimated online news visitors to date, 150,574,715. The exhibition was also
just included in a round-up at the United Nations, as part of a feature exhibition
they have called Future Forest. 1 mean, really, | could go on but why brag, right?

With social media too, | want to hit on a few highlights. Truly, this is where aside
from the incredible earned media placements that we have just talked about that
you can really see the success. For public art, which is truly there for the public, for
people to embrace, to take ownership of, to enjoy and to really believe in it as their
own, social media is where you're going to see if that is successful or not.

The hashtags #7MagicMountains and #SevenMagicMountains, have already a
combine average of more than 300 mentions per month on Twitter since the
opening and it continues to aggregate and escalate as we continue to be open.
There so far have been more than 280,000 likes on Instagram since the opening
with incredible engagement, averaging almost 3,000 comments per month, which
for four months is pretty awesome. We have so far about a combine hashtag usage

6



CARANO:

WALKER:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

on Instagram of over 16,000 and counting. We actually, at the gallery in the Nevada
Museum of Art, we made an interpretation center so that people here in the North
could connect with this project in the South. We have some of the objects from our
archive because we do now own this archive as part of our Center for Art and
Environment Archive Collections. We have a live, real-time Instagram and Twitter
feed on the wall because we just thought it was so incredible to see how frequently
people engage with us whenever they go out to 7 Magic Mountains.

Speaking of visitor engagement. Over the summer months, which as you know in
Las Vegas, it is hot in the summer. Even still, with it being as hot as it is, there have
been an estimated 600 to 1,000 visitors per day at the exhibition visiting which is
phenomenal. As the weather begins to cool, this is only going to continue to
increase,

Now, we've so far had to use anecdotal evidence correlated with what we see,
snapshots in the parking lot which is full at any given time. As well as, using social
media as our marker for how many people are visiting and what kinds of pictures
they take, because you can see it. The parking lot is constantly full.

There has been at least one engagement that we know of, because it went viral on
social media. There has been a couple that flew from Canada to have a wedding
there because they emailed me asking permission, if they could do so. There have
been maternity photos taken. Famous dogs of Instagram, famous moms of
Instagram, posing their children there. Famous pop icons like DJ Tiesto who is a
pretty big deal. Jay-Z and Beyonce as well, have visited and Tweeted about it.
We've even given a private tour to British royalty, Princess Eugenie, who I've
learned is the daughter of Duchess of York and Prince Andrew.

My phone number for better or worse is the number that’s associated on Google
with Seven Magic Mountain, so | can tell you, just even the people that are lost, | get
about 20 calls per day. I've stopped answering when | see numbers come through
and | just send people to the website.

Really, it has been just a phenomenal success. We knew it was going to be
incredible, but | don’t know that any of us could’ve anticipated that it would be this
successful. It really just continues to increase in popularity. Thank you.

Thank you.

Okay, we're almost done. | know we all take great pride and success in this
monumental achievement. | should also say that although this is not the purview of
the Commission, we are also heavily engaged in Las Vegas with the Clark County

7



CARANO:

CUNNINGHAM:

CARANO:

CUNNINGHAM:

WALKER:

CARANO:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Schools, lesson plans, curriculum, working with all the teachers throughout this
large school district. We also have a range of exhibitions that are on view and are
coming online in the next two years. Also a lot of public programming. We're really
engaging the Las Vegas Valley, the community in the arts at large and this 7 Magic
Mountains Project is really kind of an icon that's gotten everybody’s imagination
excited about the future of the visual arts.

The Nevada Museum of Art here in Reno contributed nearly $500,000 to this project
over the last five years. We also raised an additional $2.6M. Last year, we were
grateful to receive a check in the amount of $100,000 from the Nevada Commission
on Tourism to help us with this project.

Unfortunately we still have about a $350,000 deficit that we’re trying to close right
now. This is largely related to left-hand turn lanes and other infrastructure that was
not in the original thinking. It's important to note that the Nevada Museum of Art,
unlike many of the wonderful events that you sponsor throughout the year, this is a
free program. There is no revenue to be gained by the Nevada Museum of Arts.
This has been a labor of love and a very intense project that is taking a lot of our
time in addition to money. We would greatly appreciate your considering another
gift this year or donation in the amount of $150,000. That would be tremendously
helpful in helping us close this $350,000 gap. For this potential total $250,000
contribution from the Nevada Commission on Tourism, I'd like to offer up our new
Sky Room, on the roof of the Nevada Museum of Art. | think most of you have seen
it. We would like to offer this to you as a benefit to hold one of your wonderful
meetings, whatever you want to do with it. It's a great way to show off Northern
Nevada and it’s ready to go. With that, | thank you very much.

Thank you David. Do we have any questions from the Commission?

| have a comment.

Okay, Jennifer.

David, | would just like to acknowledge and applaud you and your team for
increasing awareness of the arts and culture in our State. It's something in Northern
Nevada that we're trying to capitalize on but you've really made the State smaller
and helped us to partner with Southern Nevada and the other territories, so thank
you, great work.

Thank you very much.

Thank you. Ryan?



SHELTRA:

HORN:

SHELTRA:

HORN:

SHELTRA:

HORN:

WALKER:

HORN:

SHELTRA:

HORN:

WALKER:

CARANO:

NEWMAN:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

A question for Amanda or perhaps David, you may be able to answer this.
Tremendous amount of media coverage. Congratulations. That's absolutely
fantastic. Have you put a dollar value to the exposure that you've brought to the
State?

Working on it.
That's something that we do a lot, right?
Right.

That number is going to be very, very high. In my wildest dreams, David, when you
came and first presented to us, | didn’t see this. | didn’t have the vision to see this
kind of success. It is tremendous. | am sure Claudia will be bringing something
forward to us, but | definitely would be supportive of additional funds to this
project.

Thank you so much.
Thank you Ryan.

I can say, as a snapshot from the media aggregated that | used, currently it's
trending at a few hundred thousand dollars for the publicity value but | don't have
an exact figure to give you which is why I'm hesitant to say at this juncture.

If you ask our staff, that kind of coverage, this is millions.
That's why | said, it's not a perfect report yet.

This is one area where we’re not expertise in it and so, any assistance and counsel,
we'd greatly appreciate.

We may be able to offer up some assistance with that. Don?

| echo Ryan’s comments. You know, the first time we saw the vision and some of
the comments you hear from time to time is, anybody can go out in the desert and
stack rocks and paint them like that. Again, it's the whole concept. In the
presentation you showed the efforts that went into making something like this a
reality. The visitation is important, the “Welcome to Las Vegas” sign | will defend
and say, the visitation there is quite spectacular. The coverage that you show, the
presentation that you gave us, you can’t buy that. If we did have to put a price on

9



CARANO:

SANTOS:

WALKER:

SANTOS:

WALKER:

SANTOS:

WALKER:

CARANO:

WAGNON:

CARANO:

ARGER:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

that, | would have to say the ask is very much worth the reward. It's risk and reward
and we've been rewarded. Good job and we'll see where we can go budget wise
once we run the numbers.

Comments?

| was just going to ask, with the amount of folks that are enjoying it, is there
anything thought of extending for more than two years?

We have had a very good conversation with the BLM. You can imagine your early
feelings about the project, the BLM wanted this to go away. | think it turned out to
be a very positive story for the BLM. lohn Ruhs, who is the new State Director is a
great guy. He's very open to extending the special permit lease on the project if
that's something we’d like to do down the road. It could have a much longer life in
the area.

Is that the consensus is from you folks, that you’d like to extend it?

| think our sense and we’re talking to a lot of folks in Las Vegas, this piece should
stay somewhere in Las Vegas forever. | think it's an icon. It's part of popular
culture. | think we would like to move it out of the desert, out of BLM land
eventually and see it in the City of Las Vegas.

Maybe at a new football stadium?

We'll know more tomorrow.

John, any comments?

lust echoing what the other Commissioners have said about the kind of leap of faith
that we took. It takes a lot of vision to see that original presentation and see how
this is going to work, but | mean, incredibly impressive in the results. Obviously the
artist has a lot to do with drawing that kind of exposure. Impressive coverage and
numbers. Great investment on our part.

Thank you. Anyone on the phone that would like to comment?

Yes. This is Julia Arger. | also want to add my kudos and congratulations to you
David and to Amanda and your whole team. | think it's a perfect example of how art

and culture can enhance the tourism picture in our State and how the North and the
South can collaborate and we all benefit. Thank you so much.

10



WALKER:

STOLDAL:

CARANO:

STOLDAL:

CARANO:

NEWMAN:

WALKER:

CARANO:

WALKER:

HORN:

CARANO:

VECCHIO:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Thank you Julia.

Bob Stoldal, Las Vegas.

Yes Boh.

} know we're the Commission on Tourism but this piece of artwork is also important
to the citizens. It says a lot about who we are and | know it brings in tourism, but
it's really an important piece of art for all of us that live here.

| agree. This is Cindy Carano. In Reno, we have been working on public art and
getting the sculptures from Burning Man. This kind of looks like a little Burning
Man. Maybe it might find its way up there.

The Qantas Magazine is amazing. We have a delegation here from Australia. To see
the international interest in something like that, is where we would go. David, |
have to say, we like those Californians, we're very grateful far them,

| saw that Abbi is interested in helping you quantify your returns because it's going
to be much higher than you think, | believe. Any other questions, Claudia? No. Oh,

one more question from Don Newman.

Real quick. The ask or the deficit of $350,000, at the end of the two years or if we
extend that a little bit longer, is the reclamation in that budget?

Yes, everything.

Great. Well, congratulations and | am one of those that was a little skeptical, as |
told you. | will go see it, | promise.

Great, thank you very much.

Thank you.

Okay. Thank you, Claudia.

This is Claudia Vecchio for the record. It wasn’t on the agenda today as an action
item because | didn’t know how you all would react to this and I'm thrilled you’re
excited about what this team has done. | think it's an incredible opportunity for us.

We always knew it would have international appeal, so I'm thrilled that it has gone
beyond our expectations on that one.

14



CARANO:

SANTOS:

CARANO:

SANTOS:

VECCHIO:

CARANO:

SANTOS:

CARANO:

VECCHIO:

LUSVARDI:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

What we’ll do now is we’ll have the Museum folks put together an actual proposal
that we can present at our December meeting. We'll have a teleconference in
December, which is for the Grants Review, but this is sort of an appropriate addition
to that. We'll have that for your action as an action item in December.

Great. Thank you.
Can | ask a question?
One more question from Herb Santos.

Thanks. If we’re going to vote on that, can we maybe get those numbers as to what
the value is of the media coverage that we did receive?

Absolutely.

Yes, Abbi is saying—slam dunk.

Thank you.

They're texting. Great, thank you. Nextitem on the Agenda.

Terrific. This is Claudia Vecchio again. We are thrilled, as you can tell, we have a
tremendous audience with us today. Many of our incredible Nevada tourism
partners are here for the Global Tourism Summit. Thank you all for being here and
for supporting what we’re doing.

We also, at this particular meeting, have the incredible opportunity to hear from our
international representatives. Today we are a quieter room because our great
colleague and friend, Larry Friedman is not with us today. A little less joy in the
room today, but Larry is recovering from surgery and of course, his health comes
first. We wish him all the very best. Filling in for Larry today, David Lusvardi. David
will introduce the international representatives here today to provide a brief market
overview and some of the activities that they're doing. David, take it away.

Thank you. Good afternoon Commissioners. I'm David Lusvardi with the Division of
Tourism, Sales Manager for Latin America and Australia/New Zealand. Four or our
markets have new representative companies. Those four company representatives
will be speaking to you today. This is the order:

From Australia, we have Corey Marshall with Canuckiwi. From Brazil, Jason Schulke
with Wolf Propaganda. From China, Alina Xiang with East West Marketing

12



MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Corporation. Fourth is India, Sheema Vohra with Sartha Global Marketing. They will
be addressing you in that order, thank you.

Well, keyora Commissioners, and as David said, my name is Corey Marshall from
Canuckiwi. [Speaking in native language] That’'s greetings and welcome from New
Zealand.

Canuckiwi, so m a Canadian living in New Zealand promoting an amazing place in
the USA to Australians. I'm really just a little bit confused. What's not confusing is
I'm supported by an amazing team down under. It’s myself as the Account Lead for
TravelNevada. | have a media manager based in Sydney, Australia. A social media
manager and expert based in Sydney as well. My wife Karen is our Trade Director.

What's also not confusing and what really made me proud the last few days was
traveling with 29 other tour operators, five of which were from our part of the
world on Fam Tours to this great State. Experiencing some of it for the first time
myself, as | travel from Vegas up through Great Basin and then across to Tahoe and
here to Reno.

Today, I'm just here to give you 2 market update on the Australian market. It's an
important market and a strong ene. Then share some of the successes we’ve had in
the first nine months as your in-market firm. | share this with you and some of the
Nevada suppliers that | know are interested in the LZ market as well.

Why don’t we get started. Political landscape, it seems | turn on the television and
that’s all that’s talked about here in the USA at the moment. Similarly in the
Australia, we have a two-party system and it's been a pretty tumultuous last eight
years with more than five changes of leadership. You're going to say, how does that
happen? Well, in Australia, you can actually kick the person out if you don’t like
them in their term. That's happened on multiple occasions.

In New Zealand, it’s a little bit different. We’ve had a very strong conservative
government for the last eight years, in two terms. My point in this is just to bring to
your attention that we have been politically unstable. You can see now, even if
there was a vote today, it's very much split between the two-party system that we
have.

However, even with this political uncertainty, we remain resilient in our economy. |
think that's something to be said about Australians. Consumer confidence
continues to bounce along at a near average level. House price expectations at
4.4% growth again in Australia this year. OQur housing interest rates are 5.5%. We
are in a very macroeconomic climate in Australia. it's a goed time to be investing

13



Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

and I'm going to talk a little bit more about what that means in terms of access and
air support into this region.

Exchange rates, you're going to hear from a lot of people that there’s been a big
change in the strength of the US dollar and what impact that's had in Australia. For
the most part, Aussies are resilient. The USA remains, as you're going to see, the
top international destination for travel out of Australia which is great for us here in
Nevada.

That being said, probably the biggest change in terms of cost to travel to the USA for
land, product, because of that US dollar. However, what's helped us is air access. In
the course of the last eight months, we've had pretty much every major airline
launch new air services into the USA. No, not into Nevada, okay. However, Las
Vegas still remains the fourth largest gateway for the Australian traveler. They're
coming through LA, San Francisco, Dallas or Houston and on to Las Vegas.

To highlight those. American Airlines has launched a new daily service out of
Auckland into LA. United Airlines has launched new service from Auckland to San
Francisco. Virgin is launching new service next year from Melbourne to LA. Air New
Zealand has launched new service from Auckland into Houston, Texas. Lots and lots
of new aircraft.

What that means is price point. To give you an example, Flight Center has an annual
expo every year. It's probably the largest consumer expo and as Nevada, we were
there at that show. We saw airfare pricing, $699 return, okay, from Australia to the
USA. And a 510 add-on to any additional city. That's some of the air pricing we're
seeing. All of the sudden, even though there’s an increase in land value because of
all this capacity, we're in really good state in Australia.

Just a little about that Australian traveler. 9.1 million Australian residents will travel
outside the country this year. Currently, 70% of Aussies aged 14+ are intending to
take some kind of overseas trip in the next 12 months. Although we're small in
relative population size compared to some of our other important markets, okay,
we’re only 28 million people. Average per capita, we're traveling a lot and staying a
long time.

How are we able to do this? | know when | talk to many of our USA colleagues,
they're shocked to find out that an Australian, when they start in their workforce
get four weeks of annual leave. Even Australian University, they get four weeks. In
a management position, you're five or six weeks. As you can see up on this slide, we
have 123 million days of annual leave that's been accrued because we still do work.
Okay. But, it does mean that we have lots and lots of ability to travel.

14



Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Travel motivations for Australians really fall into five categories. To have fun, visit
new places, get off the beaten track, relax mentally and to really absorb themselves
in the culture. They like to get beyond the gateways. That's why Nevada is a great
fit. It's probably as well why we drive on the left hand side of the road while you
guys drive on the right hand side. We like to get out there and experience and
explore.

This is how the Australian traveler is searching for their information. It's a pretty
interesting slide. You can see that travel agents are actually on a slight decline,
although very, very important to the marketplace still with 27% of business still
being booked through that channel. You can see where the online is becoming
more and more important in the Australian market in working with our OTA
partners.

Of course, for Australians, the lure of travel is especially meaningful and one can
wonder as to the reasons why. As we said, the currency isn't particularly strong.
With our remoteness and the desire for our travelers to look outwards for
entertainment and knowledge, the result is that travel has become part of the
collective psyche. It's a way of life. Traveling overseas is a contributing factor to
most Australians cultural capital, their stories at home and their vis-a-vie amongst
each other.

Again, just to define that important segment of travel trade partners, this slide
shows you who the most important partners in Australia are. Flight Center
continues to get only 10% of the marketplace, okay, in the OTA channel and 'm
actually thrilled to have Yvette Castro with me today. She’s traveled all the way
here from Jersey, because she's Flight Center Global Product, but she is here to
represent that group. As well as four other really important partners. We have Zoe
MacFarlane from Jucy. Michaela Jlones from American Express/Centurion. Tim
Bowrey from Excite Holidays who was named Wholesaler of the Year this year in
Australia, and Bridget Fogerty, 2 long time Nevada supporter. She was here in
February for the Ski Fam and is back for this conference as well from House of
Travel. So, thank you for your attendance. | know many Nevadans will be locking
forward to meeting with you.

This is the trend in visitor arrivals to the USA from Australia. You can see we're up
to 1.45 million visitors. That’s expected to rise again this next year with all that new
air increase. This slide again depicts that the USA continues to be the first
international market, in terms of outbound travel from Australia and the third
overall.

15



Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

This is a survey by Visit USA and it again hits home on what the Aussies are looking
for when they come to Nevada. As you can see, at the top of the list, they travel for
vacation, to visit friends and relatives but then, all kinds of other experiences
they're wanting to explore.

The biggest thing for us in these macroeconomic times is Nevada. What our
approach is to obviously get them beyond the gateway of Vegas. Extend their stay
when they're traveling to Vegas. But also ensure we're targeting a repeat visitor.
With only 28 million people, we need to rely on people coming back to the USA and
to Nevada and staying longer and having an additional experience. We’re doing that
through storytelling and through some of the approaches that I'll share with you in
just a moment. For any of the suppliers in the room, if they want a copy of this deck,
I'd be more than happy to share it with them. | know you have some of the slides as
well.

As David mentioned, we were engaged January 1% to be your representative firm in
the market. Here's some of our achievements and some of our strategies to date.
That Wholesaler of the Year, Excite Holidays, we worked on a co-op integrated
campaigned that included digital print and online, as well as an agent incentive
where a winner of their best agency spent some time in Nevada. Additionally, we
were fortunate enough to have David Lusvardi and Bethany down for Visit USA,
which is a major marketplace in February. Met with and networked with over 1,200
travel/trade professionals and 27 B2B meetings in an international media
marketplace.

We continue to work on product development. That's probably my area of
expertise. Building new itineraries with our wholesale partners and tour operators
to explore more of Nevada. To get them on those self-drive vacations throughout
the State. Both in the three-season, what | would call and also with our winter
product at Tahoe.

Also co-op with Adventure World and House of Travel. Probably one of the coolest
things we did this year was, we were approached by essentially America and
Quiksilver, the surf brand, to do a national wide contesting campaign with them. In
addition, we brought two CTA or call to action partners to that piece with Intrepid
and Ski Max, so we had both the winter and the summer product covered.
Generated a ton of media coverage out of that piece, but also a good consumer
database for us to continue to solicit with Nevada product.

IPW. IPW you're aware if the major international marketplace and I'm pleased to
say that our team met with 75% of the attending Australian buyers. We also
supported United with their trivia events this year.

16



CARANO:

MARSHALL:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Speaking of United, we talked about them launching new service. Again, we were
approached, with our partners to the State beside us in Utah, to run an incentive
program to help them launch that new air service. What we did was, we created
basically an educational portal for travel agents. What they could do is, jump
online, do a couple of modules on United. There was then a module on Nevada and
a module on Utah. Then they had to achieve a 93% score and five of the winners we
selected will be traveling here in March, to become Nevada ambassadors.

On our media front, since being engaged, I'm pleased to say that we’ve had total
gross impressions of 80 million, in terms of the media exposure we've gained
through our PR and media efforts in the market. With total USA earned media value
of $1.8M. We do have that number, I'm sure we can share that with you if you're
interested in how that"s worked up.

How did we do that? Well, one of probably our biggest things was we did a group
media FAM with Las Vegas. Travel Nevada and Las Vegas for the first time and
hosted for the major media partners from Australian, New Zealand on a seven-day
itinerary. Additionally, Greg Granger came to the State and produced a 30-minute
television program called Aus TV that aired on two major networks in Aus. | know
you're interested in seeing that, so if you wanted to watch it tonight—I was going to
show it but then my colleagues wouldn't have any extra time, so | can’t show it
here. If anyone wants a copy of it, we do have the movie file and it makes great late
night watching if you want to see what an Aussie thinks of Tahoe. He went down
through Tonopah. He spent some time in Death Valley, as he traveled through the
Vegas, to extend that stay and the Red Rocks as well.

Excuse me, is that something we can put on our website?

I'd have to touch base with Greg to see if we can own the content or not, but we
can look into that. He has provided us the movie hard file, but we just want to get
his approval.

Some of our other media achievements. We had a 10-page spread in Let’s Travel
Magazine, Travel Inc. Memo and Carry On, from the Excite Campaign, both
publicized media coverage. There’s our Australian Bachelor. You know the show
The Bachelor. He came up to Tahoe and spent some time as part of his honeymoon.
Additionally we were featured in the Daily Telegraph and Traveler.com.au. Again,
stories that, yes, are about extending that stay in Vegas and Downtown Vegas and
also getting beyond Vegas into some of rural Nevada. More coverage in Escape.com,
Traveler.com.au and Australian Financial Revew.

17



CARANO:

SANTOS:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Finally, you do see here, those 7 Magic Mountains and that’s great to hear they're
also featured in Qantas, but that’s a double-page spread in Virgin Australia’s in-flight
magazine as well. You can see in the right hand side, our Governor’s mission
created some amazing coverage during that time.

Socially, where are we? We launched a new site for the Australian market
dedicated to the Australian traveler called Nevada Down Under. As you can see, we
were a little over 6,000 fans today, all Aussies and Kiwis. Total reach, you can see
was 149,000 to date. | checked this morning actually before this presentation,
we're now up to 7,500 fans and we're tracking by the end of the year to be at
10,000. Well and truly on our way to our KPI. We are targeting the 18-64 year old
with interests in the Nevada region obviously. Slightly skewed to women, to be
honest, because we know that they are making a lot of the travel decision.

Finally, probably the biggest test for us was being fortunate to host the Honorable
Governor Brian Sandoval in the market on his trade mission. We were engaged to
help put together two tourism focused receptions. We had such great support from
our Nevada partners. Cirque de Soil actually sent an act down for us and we worked
with Cirque to do that. We also were fortunate to have Tahoe and Caesar’s with us
as well, at these events. As you can see, the turnout was phenomenal. We had 130
guests in Melbourne. 170 guests in Sydney. These weren’t just guests, these were
the top airline executives and travel/trade management. It worked really well,
leveraging his visit. We also coupled it with the Flight Center Expos in Brisbane and
product development and training meetings as well. We leveraged his visit as best
as we could from a tourism perspective and we’re thrilled with the results. It was so
successful that a production company in Australia actually put a bit of a movie
trailer together. Check it out.

If any Nevada suppliers here or if you have any questions, | am available through the
conference and we're thrilled to be here. My wife and | have the best job in the
world promoting the great State of Nevada, across a really beautiful place we live in.
If there are any questions, | can address them or can turn it over to my colleagues
for the next market update.

Thank you very much Corey. Do we have any questions from the Commissioners?
Yes, from Herb Santos.

Herb Santos for the record. Looking at your slide on the Australian traveler, top
destinations for Australians, I’'m a competitive person so | want to know how do we
become the number one? What is it about the folks—or, do you have any statistics
as to why they pick, other than proximity New Zealand or Indonesia before they’'d
pick the United States to travel to?

18



MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

MARSHALL:

SANTOS:

CARANO:

NEWMAN:

MARSHALL:

CARANO:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

It's a good question. [ think you almost answered it with your question; it is the
proximity. | mean, when you look at the length of time that they stay and that’s
something that | didn’t touch on, when they come to America, they're spending 22
days on average here. The Australian visitor is spending 22 days. They do have to
carve out that time. Heading to those other destinations, it's closer and they can do
it for a three or five day window. They're planning, potentially multiple trips to
those places in a calendar year and it is all about proximity. As | was saying, cost
wise, we're competitive in terms of our competitive set, it's just proximity.
Although we don't talk about that at all, we are a 12.5 hour flight from LA and
probably 16 hours to get here.

So how do we market ourselves to get around that proximity issue or can we?

Through some of the stuff we're doing. Working with airlines on tactical
promotions, incentivizing agents to consider the USA first because they are such an
important thing, featuring ourselves with the OTAs, you saw the importance of the
online travel agent and making sure we're present over and above those other New
Zealand and Indonesia who are just ahead of us. Internationally, we are tracking
extremely well. Getting a lot of market shares from Europe this year, is also going
to—if I'm back next year and presenting to you, you're going to see an increase
from our market, again to the USA. Is it going to get to close to New Zealand or
Indonesia, probably not.

All right, thank you.
Thank you. Anyone else here? Don.

Just a comment. Corey, for less than a year, the results are fantastic. | think as we
saw with the 7 Magic Mountains, the ability to generate this much exposure is a
theme, hopefully as we go forward today, we're going to see, it makes me as a
Commissioner proud to see the exposure that the State is getting with all of our
partners. | think on the ROI side, you can’t pay for a lot of this stuff, so good job in
less than a year. We hope you do report to us next year. Thank you.

Thank you.
Thank you. Anyone on the phone would like to comment? Okay. Seeing none,
thank you very much Corey. It's exciting because we have the Marketplace for Sales

and Media, that’s tomorrow morning. You'll have a great opportunity to meet with
those folks. Thank you very much.

19



SCHULKE:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Good afternoon Commissioners, how is everybody doing today? Good? My name is
Jason Schulke with Wolf Propaganda. Propaganda in Brazil is advertising.
Sometimes in the U.S., you hear propaganda and you get kind of a second look,
right. It's not the first time we’ve run into that. Absolutely a pleasure to stand
before you today, as well as to finish up the Fam Trip. | went on the Ghost Town
Fam and talking with many people, it's probably a trip | would not have planned
myself. Maybe because | didn’t know as much about the ghost towns or other
draws, things that are more appealing, but it was really exciting to start in Las Vegas
and work our way North to Tahoe and Reno like we are here and understand more
about that destination.

We started our representation in January as well as Corey. My accent is so well
because I've worked on it for 39 years as an American citizen now living in Brazil.

To some of the challenges we have. Obviously Las Vegas is such a massive draw, but
what we’re seeing with the Brazilian is they're spending maybe three or four days in
Las Vegas, as part of maybe a two, or three or four week trip and getting out to
California and working up. A lot of our messaging, which we're going to get into
here shortly is Vegas Plus, you know, what else can we do after the Vegas, stay in
Vegas, explore everything about them or the California Plus. You'll see with some of
the actions we’ve been able to pull some of that California traveler [to Nevada)
because California is a big draw. They are LA and San Francisco travelers, getting
them over here, as they’re moving their way to Yosemite, get them into Lake Tahoe
because it just a fantastic destination, whether it's summer or winter.

We'll try to cover some things here today without taking up too much time. Clearly
we won’t be able to touch on absolutely everything that has happened, but we’ve
tried to pick out some of the highlights. We'll start out by talking about Brazil.
What is Brazil, how does Brazil work. | don’t know if you've seen anything in the last
six or eight months about Brazil in the media. Yeah? We've got mosquitos and
rioting. Being down there four years has been an absolute adventure, which | think
one day | might write a book about.

My wife and | own the company. She started the company 20 years ago as an
advertising firm and worked at the biggest destinations. We built Universal Orlando
Resort, as well as, Walt Disney World Resort was a client of ours for seven years.
We did their advertising, their PR and their trade. And other clients as well, from
the NBA to the Orlando Magic, prior to working with Visit Orlando. As of this year,
one of our big focuses as we mentioned has been the State of Nevada,
TravelNevada, an amazing destination.

20



Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

A little bit about Brazil. It's a massive destination. We have over 200 million people.
In San Paulo alone, we have 22 million people, we don’t get lonely. You see
probably half of those people every day as you go to work. it’s just a massive place.
As far as Brazil, it is the largest population of Central and Latin America. As well as,
we start to get into some of the economics as well, even with the difficult times. As
we said, 205 million people. 50 million consumers. There's a great opportunity for
growth, even with some of the downturn that we've seen, which is due to massive
corruption, poor exchange rates. We are seeing a rebound right now, which we’re
very happy about. It was very difficult. We did impeach our President and we have
a new President sitting in the term. We’re already seeing that consumer confidence
rebounding. The exchange rate is becoming slightly more favorable. It got as bad as
4.3 to the dollar. That's where we really saw the Brazil traveler slow down.
Teetering back and forth on the 9" or 10" largest global economy and we’re really
being optimistic in seeing that full rebound. We're hoping to see that closer to
2018-2019.

As far as GDP, you can see, Brazil is at the top, $1.8T and others that would follow.
Some more information, if you have any questions at any time, feel free to ask and
I'll answer to the best of my ability.

Carrying on, you can see some of our GDP growth, inflation, unemployment is a
serious problem. In Brazil, you have a very big split in classes, which we’ll get into a
little bit, but you're talking about somewhere around 40% to maybe even 50%
poverty. Right, | mean, sad to see, but on that other side, there’'s massive wealth
with your A and B Classes, that's what we really target. Carrying on, actually these
dates are wrong on the bottom. It says 2014, that should be 2015.

Looking at expenditures in international travel, you can see, this is for the first
quarter 2016, $300B. Carrying down, you can see we had that real big boom in
2014 with $25B. Over to the right, you can see some of the actual travel numbers.
Again, that big boom, 2014, 2.2 million visitors to the USA. Unfortunately this slide
is not updated with where we finalized at 2016, or where we're at most current
2016.

These travel numbers are so much like Australia. Even more so | believe, the US is
the top destination for the Brazilian. The love the USA. Their movies, their music,
their clothes, | mean, | think sometimes they love the USA more than some of us, us
Americans, right. It’s their number one choice to travel internationally, hands down.
We do have some challenges with Orlando. The parks are a big draw. But when you
talk about Nevada or really Las Vegas, very strong, competing with New York,
Nevada with Las Vegas is in that Top 3. A big split with Orlando. We're in a
fortunate position where for so many years, we built so much of that Orlando

21



Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

product. For 20 years, that's all we did. Now we’re working over on this other side.
We have so many of those strategies. We wrote the game book, right. We're able
to bring a lot of those strategies in which we’ll jump into.

Talking about the Brazilian, they are a traveling people. Some of the things that I've
been so impacted by—again, it sounds a lot like Australian. The Brazilian, by law,
has 41 days of vacation. That's your gas station attendant, and as you work your
way up—and nothing bad about being a gas station attendant. | worked in the
automotive industry for a long time. 41 days of vacation. As you work your way up
into any kind of management or senior |evel positions, it's manic that they will have
two months, three months.

The way that the Brazilians’ schedule kind of works is, we're the other side. So
when you’re enjoying summer, we have winter and vice versa. Again, trying to get
my head around the first couple of years being down there, the Brazilian will start—
like, December 19", they’ll start their Christmas break. It’s also their summer break
where the children are let out for half of December and all of January and
sometimes into February as well. In the US, like January, you need to get organized,
it's the beginning of the year. Where in Brazil, in January, everything shuts down.
People just don’t work. As well in December, they get a 13" salary. You will get a
double salary in December and then you'll have the next month to a month and a
half off.

The Brazilians travel. All year they talk about where they're going to travel
internationally. It's easier to travel internationally in Brazil then it is domestically.
Sometimes more cost effective as well. Hotels are very expensive. The
infrastructure in Brazil as well, though it's beautiful, I'm sure you've heard of
infrastructure problems with the World Cup and Olympics and things like this.
Outside of your Rio/San Paulo/Belo Horizonte, a few of these destinations, beautiful
places to visit, but again, the infrastructure is not there to really support anything
you'd want to do like eat or sleep. We've found all this out the hard way.

We've traveled in Brazil. We found the only way to travel is on Air BNB because
even the hoteliers, won’t work with the sellers of travel. It's just a very different
place.

The Brazilians love to travel. Number one destination is the USA. We've been
working very hard to increase awareness about Nevada and intent to travel which
we'll see a little bit more. Definitely a traveling people.

A little about the Brazilian, we talked about classes. You see a massive middle class.
Almost 60% and | think that’s a little generous to be honest with you. In 2014 when

22



Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

we saw that big boom where it was double digit increase to many destinations had a
lot to do with the exchange rate, but it also had to do with that financing options
became easier for the Brazilian that the middle class never had before. Those are
still there, but again, the exchange rate is kind of playing in that a bit,

You can't see on the slide well, but it’s very isolated as Brazil is a massive country, as
is the USA. Really your business is going to be primarily in that San Paolo, Rio de
laneiro or Belo Horizonte. 22 million people in San Paolo alane, 3.4 million in Rio de
Janeiro and 1.2 in Belo Horizonte.

As you go North in Brazil, it’s Amazonian. These people, many of them don’t have
televisions, haven’t seen things like this, so we don’t target that area quite as much
just yet for travel.

Some of the things we’re seeing? The internet, we've had a big shake-up in Brazil.
Traditionally has been an offline purchase. Brazilians like to have things catered for
them. They’re not fans of renting homes because they want that room service.
They want someone to take care of them. Also, they like the comfort of somebody
kind of reassuring that trip, where they're going, what they should do. What's
happened is the internet came from nowhere. Despagar, which we have
Decolar.com, came in with a force and really changed that market. It shook the
industry, prior to the economical problems we have.

The operators were at a point where they were not prepared for the OTAs, which
you know, being from the USA, | would use the internet and I'd order milk if | could
from the internet, right? The OTAs came out of nowhere, really Decolar and Hotel
Urbano and shook many of these companies to the core. | mean, taking 25%, 30%
of market share like that.

The big operators, if they survived that, they had to go into a recovery period to try
to become more internet savvy. Then the economy went down where we saw
many operators reporting 50-60%, 80% decrease. It was, | don't want to say it was
good, but there were many times of need for change in Brazil in advancements with
these operators. The ones that survived a lot of these parts have evolved and
become better sellers of travel, reaching consumers and providing better service.

We also did see as the internet moved in, as important as it is, we saw a big
backlash where people were very disappointed with the internet. Talking about the
internet in Brazil, we’re the first of many things. We're the first in internet fraud, so
the internet is not a trusted source for purchasing many things. For many Brazilians,
it's still really new. The point that I'm getting at is offline is still very important.

23



Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

We’re seeing somewhere around 70%, 65% offline. We'll talk a little bit more about
that shortly.

Quickly talking about corporate travel. We are seeing a big increase, a significant
increase in corporate trave! internationally. It's a bit more complex. We've got
visas and things like this but again, when you talk about infrastructure facilities to be
able to host corporate travel, incentive is really what it is. The USA is much more
accommodating. We’re seeing a big movement and so that's another area that we
focus on strongly, especially with having Reno and Las Vegas, | mean, right,
corporate opportunities everywhere.

Getting back in, who are the main players? Travel agencies really still do lead the
ship with over 11,000 travel agencies. And as you imagine, some of our strategies
are touching these 11,000 travel agencies. Making sure that Nevada is top of mind
and that they’re educated about the destination. Again, if somebody is coming into
a travel agency, the agency is the fower part of the funnel. | mean, they've been
impacted by medias or whatever. The Brazilian is making their travel decision a year
before they're traveling. A year to eight months. So they know January, we're
going wherever, Then they’re going to research for eight months about that
destination. Not all the time, but they see a TV show, they're going to go to
YouTube and look about that destination. They've been getting education
themselves.

When they walk into the travel agency, we need to make sure that the travel agency
is educated about that destination. A strategy in how we can get more. Again,
somebody is coming into a travel agency saying, we're interested in a San Francisco
and LA, whatever the case may be. You say, great, | think that’s a fantastic idea.
But, when you're in San Francisco, keep going. Let’s get over to Napa and you have
to go to beautiful Lake Tahoe, or whatever the case may be. Or, if they're saying,
we want to go to Las Vegas and we're going to leave Las Vegas, do three, four days,
whatever the case may be and work our way to LA. We make sure that travel agent
is educated enough to say, you know, go here, do this.

OTAs, just touching on them quickly. We did talk about them already but Decolar,
we saw a massive investment from Expedia. | think it was about $260M. As well as
Hotel Urbano. Priceline Group invested, they recently have sold that. CVC we need
to talk about if you don’t know about them. They're the big guys. If you get into an
elevator, you go on a train, anywhere you go, you're going to see CVC logos, right.
Over 1,000 retail locations. They recently purchased Submarino Viagens which is
like probably one of the largest online sellers of really anything. Electronics, cooking
supplies and travel. CVC, as they were 100% offline, they needed to compete with
the Decolars and the Hotel Urbanos, so hence that investment.

24



Nevada Commission on Tourism [ October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Again, kind of what we're talking about is you're seeing the strong survive and
evolve and become better. MMT Gap, as you know, they were here a few years
ago, they were purchased by Fly Tours which is a massive company. A lot of good
and positive things happening. As we talked about corporate travel is very
important.

To our operators, again, we talked quickly about CVC but just to give you an idea. A
counter for 4 million passengers and US $1.5B in sales. Again, 1,000 retail locations.
They're just aggressive. They're pushing and they’re getting bigger. We work very,
very closely with CVC, as well as many others. We won’t go through the list.

Consolidators. We work very closely with consolidators. If you're not familiar,
consolidators historically, again, very important, purchase and broker airline tickets.
They provide credit to travel agencies and other companies. You're seeing the
consolidators now as the tour operators, but you're seeing the consolidators now
starting to expand their portfolio where it’s not just airline, they’re getting hotels
and car rentals and trying to become z little bit more diverse.

Jumping back to tour operators, another exciting thing we’'re seeing in evolution, as
we’ve seen in many markets is the tour operators are slowly starting to go
consumer, which good and bad. | think it’s some good but we could debate that for
a long time.

Just kind of what's happening in general. Airline market, you can see in 2015, 4.5
billion. 2014, you can see 5.8 billion in international airline tickets. You see a little
decrease. This year, we're probably going to see a similar to 2015. What'’s
happened with the airlines, which is great, because the economy went down and
the challenging times, the airlines got very desperate where in the beginning | think
they might have been a little greedy. To fly to the USA, a simple flight to Miami,
back in 2014, 2013 was probably about 51,800 economy. We saw recently those
flights go as low as $300. A desperate situation for the airlines, but it's helped keep
that travel going. We’re not seeing those big increases yet. Like we said, big
decreases, sales down by 25% but flights as well, prices are down by 20%. Airline
really drives the travel decision, being able to have decent or affordable travel.
Again, talking about San Paolo, | mean, that's where you have to be. Everything
happens there. 60% to 70% just in San Paolo alone. We saturate that market very
heavily.

We have a full team. We have one person that spends 35 hours per week, Neto
Fernandez, he was just in town doing an emersion about Las Vegas and all of
Nevada. He spends 35 hours a week just doing trainings. | mean, he'll be at the CVC

25



Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

retail locations, he’ll be at the tour operators and we believe that’'s so important.
Kind of excited on a side note. Neto Fernandez is a celebrity in his little world of
tourism and the travel agents because he's done so long. When he announced that
he was taking over training for TravelNevada in Brazil, on his personal Facebook
account he had over 750 likes, | can’t get that on our social media account for
Brazil. It's really exciting the things that are happening.

Just carrying on here quickly. Challenges in Brazil, wow, where do we start.
Economy has been a challenging one for us. Brazilian people are a lot like the
Aussies, they're resilient. 1t's amazing as you talk to them their sense of optimism
when you know, you might see some things in the country that would not give you a
sense of optimism. They're very optimistic people. Economy is one.

The government is another, but you have to remember, Brazil is a very young
country. 20 something years old as a democracy and just trying to find themselves
still. One of the reasons | love living in Brazit is not the traffic, it's | believe, there’s a
lot of future opportunities as the country has massive economy and so many
opportunities haven’t been developed yet.

Again, challenges, we do have some competing destinations, no question.
Internationally, if we talk about the USA versus other destinations, we do run into
that some. Europe is a big draw. You have to remember that the Brazilian is not
Spanish. They're from Portugal so they speak Portuguese. They do love Portugal
and they do love European countries, they’ll go there for a month. Usually starting
in Spain or Portugal and working their way, all the way up to England or what it
might have. The USA is number one.

There's no question, you know, as we look at the Brazilian, we have different
markets that we need to target. It's a big family market, there’s no question.
Primarily, which you know, a lot like Aussies, we focus anywhere between the ages
26-49. We also focus on that woman as we all know the woman is the decision
maker in most households.

There’s a younger group of Brazilian. Talking with some of the Tahoe people, what
they see as well. There's a younger person that's single or a couple, very affluent
and very well traveled. As we look at competing destinations, if you look at it,
Orlando, they don’t even say Florida anymore, they say Orlando, is a big draw. The
benefit now is so many of the Brazilians have been to Orlando five times, six times.
What we’re seeing now with the Brazilian is they're saying, we need to see
something different. They’re going out into many places that before, they have not
traveled. This is how some of how our marketing goes.

26



Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

We focus on the skiing as well, because that’s a separate marketing message than
family. New York is a competing destination. We're seeing the Brazilians really
becoming more interested in other destinations. Through our content marketing
channels and advertising, we really try to get out a good quality. We can talk about
that shortly.

As we talk about a marketing strategy, we really try to work as a 360. Obviously
touching with the trade, which we talked about as your lower funnel. If product is
not loaded correctly, content is not populated right, the agents aren’t educated, the
operators don’t have proper contracts, all these different things, then it's not going
to work. We focus very heavily on that. Advertising, we do as well. Education,
along with trade, is huge. 1 think one of our key assets that we work is social media.
This year we launched the Travel Nevada Brazil. We've had some good results with
that which we'll talk about.

Last but not least is PR, an angle that we really try to work very well. We just
finished filming a TV show through Nevada. We started in Vegas and finished in
Reno. They literally left like two days ago so | don’t have any numbers on that but
the social media following was great. We've got more that we’re going to be doing
there.

Talking about trade quickly. We talked about working years of relationships. Again,
training, things like this. We participate in as many trade shows as we possibly can,
World Travel Market. Visit USA we did this year, which was fantastic. David
Lusvardi and Larry Friedman were down for World Travel Market. We had a great
opportunity to tag a sales mission on the end of that, which David was able to meet
all the most important sellers of travel in Brazil, which was a new market for him
and establish those one-on-one relationships. Visit USA was fantastic. San Paolo,
Campinas, Rio de Janeiro, touched over 1,800 travel agents in this effort.

Sales calls, you can see that we are very active. As of August, 93 sales calls with the
most important operators in travel. Talking about training, numbers of personnel
trained up to August, you can see is 1,996. Education seminars, again, very hig and
important. Two winter fam, or two fam trips we did this year which were 100% self-
funded. We brought 12 travel agents, the most important travel agents and media
for the winter fam, full self-supported.

Just finished a Brand USA fam with five of the most important operators of travel.
100% self-supported. | can’t give enough credit to the support from the Reno-Tahoe
people as well on that one. That was amazing. This was just some photos from the
winter fam we did. It was a Brand USA fam.

27



SPEAKER:

SCHULKE:

Mevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

We have a very active e-newsletter distribution. 18,000 agents in our database,
pushing constant contact and getting great results from this. Collateral distribution.
Obviously with our trainings, public relations being present and really trying to get
that content out there to have the reporters pick up the coverage. | can’t see that
final number on the bottom. Unfortunately, | don’t know if you have it in front of
you, but | want to say it's somewhere around 200,000. Primarily really from the
press releases that we’ve been able to pick up.

We had a media event, which Bethany helped us organize. We've got a short video
at the end and some photos of this and we have some return numbers. This is
actually an action from the winter fam alone. On the right, you can see this is the
most important travel magazine. They participated in the winter fam. They did a six
page cover on that event and they're going to do another one on winter. They
couldn’t do a winter cover because we were heading into summer, so it really didn’t
make sense for them to talk about that. We actually are getting another six pages
out of that. Media ad-value about $145,000 in some other medias that we picked

up.

We talked about social media. We push very heavily on social media in relevant
Portuguese languages. That's TravelNevada Brasil, with an S, if anybody wants to
take the time to look at that. With our advertising strategies, we really focus on
digital as much as possible because it has the best trackability, accountability and
really controlling and targeting your markets that we think are the most important.

Some of our KPls, the goals that were set, you can see trade shows to missions.
Most all of those we well exceeded, as well as our spontaneous media. You can see
on the right our goals for the current season that we’re in.

Just to close real quick, | have a short video. This is from the media event we did.
35 media participated. The numbers are continuing to come in on that event. This
is taking you to San Paclo. We actually did s'mores out on the balcony, which they
don’t even know what s’'mores are, so it was really cool. I'll just start with that.

They know now.

They know them now. It's funny, the chef came out and he didn’t even know how to
make them. He said he had to pull YouTube on how to make s'mores. It was funny.

It was really neat, the dinner and everything that went along with it, it was so
detailed, making it as close to American themed as possible with desserts like apple
pie. This restaurant did a fantastic job.

28



CARANO:

SANTOS:

SCHULTE:

SANTOS:

SCHULTE:

SANTOS:

SCHULTE:

SANTOS:

SCHULTE:

SANTOS:

SCHULTE:

SANTOS:

SCHULTE:

SANTOS:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Really, more than anything, thank you all for your time and we look forward to the
rest of the conference and getting to know each and every one of you, hopefully
personally. If you have any questions, feel free to ask.

Thank you very much Jason. From the Commission, yes Mr. Santos.

Thank you. On your airline and market slide, | don’t want to assume anything. The
numbers you have there, those are air tickets to the United States?

You're correct, yes. | believe, I'd have to look at the slide, there's a couple of
airlines, I'm sorry.

Yes, it says, we estimate the sales of international air tickets in Brazil in 2015
reached 54.54 million. That's—

| believe dollars.

Right. That's not international from Brazil to the United States?

International in general, I'm sorry, yes. As a whole, not just the United States.
Not just the United States.

Yes, I'm sorry.

So, is the money broken down, how much came to the United States and then
broken down further how much came to Nevada?

I can get those exact numbers but you're going to be looking at the USA holding
pretty close to 38%, if not more of that international market. The rest would be
different European countries and things like that. Probably 38% of that, | would say
is US.

All right. Then you made a comment that United States is number one, | just want
to make sure, does that refer to that, that when you look where international travel
is, the number one destination for Brazilians is the United States?

International, absolutely.

Okay, thank you.

29



CARANO:

SCHULTE:

VECCHIO:

XIANG:

Nevada Commissian on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Great, thank you. Commissioners? Anyone on the phone that would like to
comment? Okay, well thank you very much Jason.

Thank you all very much, thank you.
Tremendous. Our partners from China.

Chair and the Commissioners, it's a great honor to be here to introduce something
about China and what they have done in the past three months. We started to
represent TravelNevada in China July 1%, so they only work for TravelNevada three
months.

First of all, | would like to talk about the China Outbound Travel. In 2015, the
number of overseas tourists from China is 117 million and the total they spend is
$215B US dollars. That’s a huge number, of course. According to the report from
China Tourism Economy, nearly 70% is FIT, so the total number is 80 million people
travel as FIT. There’s a real difference in the past several years. We used to have
more groups, but more FITs play a really important role in the market.

All of this huge number, from the people who hold Chinese passports, you can see
that we only have 65 million people to have a passport. This is only 5% of the
population. That means that we have 95% of people don’t have a passport and they
never travel outside of China. You can see the potential in the future how many
Chinese visitors you will see.

For the China market, the Top 10 Overseas Market is—of course, most of them are
from Asia. You can see Thailand is number one and then Korea, Japan, Vietnam,
United States then Singapore, Russia, Australia, Indonesia and Malaysia. Right now,
Australia and United States are the only two countries with long haul. We still—
United States is a very popular destination in the China market.

We just had our national holiday last week. We call it the Golden Week because we
used to have only one day off for the national holiday. The Chinese government
created one week for us to encourage people the travel in the best season in China.
October is not cool, not hot and a really good season for people to travel. in the
past Golden Week, we have 589 million people on the road to travel. Nearly half of
the population, in only one week. 6 million people traveled out of China.

Through the most updated report about the Golden Week from CTrip, there—
because | mentioned that FITs is the majority. Essentially the number one OTA in
China, so the report from CTrip shows that 64% of people order the packages, or
hotels and air tickets through the app. Only 36% of people make reservations

30



Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

through the PC. You can see that ladies are the majority, 59% and 41% are male.
Even when we want to help people to travel to our State, | think we should work
more with females to try to attract them. Because, usually in the family, ladies are
the people who make decisions in China. Of course, for ladies, they care more
about the shopping. For guys, they want to see something, have local experiences.
Guys prefer to try some local food. For ladies, they care about hotels; if the area is
safe or the room is clean, something about that.

Through the CTrip, the characters for the Golden Week, you can see the majority
who are traveling post-80s. The people, like my age, people really enjoy traveling.
Of course, female is the most of people. Lots of people try the local experience. For
example, like my family just had a trip to Japan. We tried a lot of the local things,
like we joined some [inaudible] and we tried to wear traditional clothes, to have an
experience like that. The cruises are increasing in China really quickly. For senior
people or families, they prefer to take a cruise.

90% of travelers share their travel experience on social media. What they bought
overseas mainly are skin care products and souvenirs. That's why Japan and Korea
is so popular because for ladies, they can buy lots of things from there.

Then we can talk about China travel to the United States. In 2015 the number of
Chinese travelers to the United States was 2.56 million. Since November of 2014,
the 10 year visa policy started, we have 50% increase for visa applications. Now we
have 15 gateway cities to have fly service between China and the United States. In
2020, we can expect to receive 5 million Chinese visitors to come to the United
States.

Major Products in the Market. Of course the regular group package is still very
popular in the market. A lot of like, senior people or the people from some small
town, they have a problem in language and maybe this is their first time to travel
outside of China, so they pray for group travel. The most popular packages for
United States is: East Coast, West Coast, Hawaii — in 14 days, that’s crazy! People
messed up from one city to another city. The upgrade packages are like California
and Las Vegas or Chicago is close to East Coast, Florida, something like that.

Students are really, really a big part of the market share, especially for the summer
vacation. You can see that in first tier cities like Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou,
mostly families choose to send their kids out of China. Especially to the countries
who speak English like United States, UK and Australia. They have kids have like
summer camp or winter camp or home-stay program or some other cultural
exchange program to help them learn English, to try to get some information on
how to apply for the university there. So, this is a really popular program in China.

31



Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

FIT. | would like to highlight the self-driving. Self-driving is very popular in China
and it’s really easy. We just need to use our Chinese travel license and go to a car
rental company. For some companies, you don’t even need to translate the driving
license, we can do anything like you do to rent a car. So, lots of young people, even
senior people, try to decide to drive in the United States. The most popular routes
like Route 66 or Highway 1, or travel from the middle to the west are things that are
very popular right now.

Of course, amusement parks are popular with the kids and the beach. For young
generation, they don’t want to travel in 14-days to maybe 10 cities. They try to have
a very relaxed vacation. The beach now is very popular. That's why Indonesia is in
the Top 10 because of Bali. The only island make the whole country in the Top 10.
Skiing, and now the marathon. Outdoor activities are really popular to the young
generation. We just had a Chicago Marathon, there are over 700 Chinese runners to
run the Chicago Marathon and they brought over 4,000 family and friends to this
event. It does make things more festive for people choose the beach or some
outdoor activities.

The new trends in the China market is a national park tour. When tour operators try
to upgrade their packages, the first thing they did was to add national parks. We
have lots of [inaudible] nature in China but we have too many people. So this is
really hard to enjoy, the environment of the parks. When Chinese travel to the
United States, they really want to see Yellowstone National Park, Grand Canyon,
Yosemite; those are the top three national parks that Chinese kind of recognize.

The major gateway cities in the United States, we have: Los Angeles, San Francisco,
New York City, Seattle, Chicago, Detroit, Dallas, Houston, San Jose, Las Vegas soon
and Washington D.C., Hawaii, Boston. We will have non-stop service from Beijing to
Las Vegas December 2™ with Hainan Airlines. This is a very important thing for Las
Vegas and of course, the whole state.

The major carriers: Air China, China Eastern, China Southern, Hainan, Sichuan,
Xiamen, American, Delta and United. You can see some names that maybe you are
not familiar with like Sichuan Airlines and Xiamen Air. These companies are more
local but now they have lots of new airplanes. For example, Xiamen Air, they just
launched the non-stop service to Toronto and Seattle and very soon to New York
City and Los Angeles. Why Xiamen Air is so eager to do so, because President
{inaudible] used to work in the Fujian Province. His responsibilities were to be in
charge of Xiamen Air and when he went to Seattle last year, he went to buy some
airplanes. He said, | used to work in Xiamen Air and | hope Xiamen Air could have
service to United States, so they did this. So, lots of political reasons.

32



Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Digital China. Of course, digital is important everywhere, but considering our
engagement on the internet and the phone, you will see it's the most important
thing to do some digital marketing in China. We have 1.31 billion mobile users
which means, everyone has a phone in China. You maybe think, of course, everyone
has a phone in the United States, but consider the population and the economy
means that most people in Tier 1 cities have one, two or three phones. We have
980 million internet users and 620 million mobile internet users.

For digital marketing, | think in China we shoot for three things. Social media, of
course. The major social media channels WeChat and video and live streaming. Live
streaming is a very interesting topic. I'm learning that because | never used it
before. This is a challenge for me. My nights are spent with lots of time on that. |
didn’t get it right now, but ! tried to understand how it works and how it helps us to
do digital marketing.

First, | think no matter if we do social media or video or live streaming, we need to
find some people to help us to tell the story. We call it a KOLs, means Key Opinion
Leaders, which means bloggers or influencers in China, to help us to tell the story.
You can see that lots of KOLs have huge fan bases. For example, like this lady, Wen
Yi, she’s a gourmet and has followers of over 4 million. This is much higher than
maybe some media circulation. | can give you an example of how she works on
Weibo. Whatever she recommends or sells, people really buy it. During the last
Chinese New Year, she created gift bags. Only one red envelope and one notebook,
which was sold with a price over 200 RMB which nearly is $30 US dollars. That’s
really expensive in China, you know. In China, people would buy a notebook and
maybe only 10 RMB. This is over 200 RMB but she sold 60,000 gift bags in two
weeks. That's crazy.

These KOLs are influential in a way to have them to tell stories, maybe on Weibo or
WecChat. First of all, | would like to talk about the Weibo. | think most of you have
heard something about Weibo. Weibo now has 236 million monthly active users.
Some people said maybe Weibo is dead, but no, actually Weibo is now alive again.
During the 2016 Olympics, Chinese female volleyball team {inaudible] we had over 5
million discussions on Weibo. Weibo is more like a broadcast platform to help
people to discuss some societal topics. This is a very good platform to release our
information.

WeChat. Now in China, everyone—even for the international market, everyone is
talking about WeChat. If they don’t have a WeChat, that means we lost the people.
WeChat, they have 806 million monthly active users. How do we describe the
activity—that means you have to chat with your WeChat over 20 times a day. You

33



Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

spend lots of time on that. For us, we even use WeChat as a working tool. We have
WeChat on the PC, which means when we work, we can type something on WeChat.
We can create a group chat to communicate our work mates. We can share files on
that. WeChat can do a lot of things. | will show you later.

WeChat is more like combining Twitter, Facebook, SnapChat, Apple Pay, everything,
but it’s really personal. For example, | don’t care if | follow anybody on Weibo. That
means, | don't care if | follow anybody on Facebook. 1 just see something very short
and | don’t care about that. But on WeChat, we only want to follow some people
like friends, family or some people that have a relationship with your work. Any
things you post as a public account, should be fun and fast. For content, it's really,
really important for WeChat. Usually for one post, we spend at least six hours on
one post on WeChat because first of all, we have to brainstorm on the topic or
theme. We have to have everything related to a current hot topic in China. We
cannot say very old-fashioned things. Then we have to collect lots of information
together and translate it. We cannot just translate things into Chinese, we have to
rewrite in a language to help young people to like it and forward it. The content
should be very creative, inspiring and with high guality.

| will show you how WeChat works. This is my husband’s WeChat account. I'll show
you how it works. We can text message, of course and that’s my kids’ picture. | can
take a picture or short video and send it using WeChat. It's very easy. You don't
need to open your camera, you can just film everything through WeChat. Then we
make a video call or voice call. That's a really important thing. | transfer one RMB
to him.

These are red envelopes | did every year during the Chinese New Year to my team.
It's a tradition in China to give people red envelopes during the Chinese New Year
and this is a money transfer. They can transfer money to anybody we want. Only
want to transfer one RMB at once. Don’t want to do too much.

You can send a location. It's really easy to tell your friend where you are. You can
share some posts you like, a file or report or PowerPoint or Excel, everything, you
can share on WeChat. You can send some people the content and information so
people can follow your friends directly.

Then | will show you how the public accounts and the moments work. This is a
public account. For public accounts, we are allowed to post one or two posts a
week. Every article is really, really long. This is an example about the food in a
restaurant in Texas, where it collects a lot of information about the very special
restaurant. There's a picture with a description with address, website, everything.
This is one long article. That's why we have to work on it six hours.

34



Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Then | will show you the Moments. The Moments is a place for people to share
something. You can share pictures, video, content, location, everything. This is a
picture of the restaurant and this is the article. It’s an interview for OTA.

This is a very short video. This is my son’s school. The teachers post something like
that to share with the family to see how your kid is doing in school. That's how
WeChat works in our daily life.

Another important thing about WeChat is WeChat Pay. Now in China, less and less
people are paying in cash or credit card. We use WeChat and AliPay, very often. In
Beijing and Shanghai, very big cities, you can use WeChat Pay in every store or even
in very, very small store. If you just buy some fruit, you can pay with WeChat Pay.
That's very convenient. Even friends when they have dinner together, they don’t
need to pay separately. One person pays on WeChat and then she can send a
payment request so everyone can pay her via WeChat. You can see on WeChat Pay
we can do money transfer, mobile [inaudible] or even some charity. For the third-
parties we can order food, order a taxi or some hairstyle or people to come to your
home or office to give you massage or nails, everything. That's why in China people
are lazier and lazier. We don’t want to work out of a home, we just want to stay
there to order everything.

What can we do with WeChat for destinations or the tourism companies? First,
beyond all the public account functions, we also can do the online training
programs. For example, we used to do some destination training programs on PC
but now people spend less and less time on that. If we do something with WeChat,
the industry people can do the training maybe on the bus or the subway. Whenever
they check WeChat, they may spend several minutes on the training. That's more
convenient for people to learn destination information.

For restaurants, even for me, I've traveled to the United States many times, it is still
very, very difficult getting to sit down in a restaurant to understand what they offer.
I can read the words, of course, but | don't really understand what food it is.
Whenever | order something, | just expect a surprise because it's really hard to
understand. In China, we have everything in a picture. it's really helping you to
understand what you order. We have a system on WeChat so you can translate
everything in Chinese and explain what the dish is and there’s a picture. People can
see it, then order it and then pay with WeChat.

For hotels. Caesar's Entertainment just launched their WeChat Booking with
WeChat. This is the first United States company to do so. It's really a big deal in
China. People don’t need to go to an OTA anymore, they just check the Caesar's

35



VECCHIO:

VOHRA:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

WeChat account and then book the rooms directly. For our hotel partners, if they
can—if they don’t have the booking system, that’s fine, but at least | think they can
have a WeChat account. When Chinese check in, they can just scan the QR code
and then follow your account. All your hotel's information can come out to show
maybe where the restaurant is, where the gym is and lots of things about your
hotel. | think that’s really helpful for people staying at your hotel to feel welcome.

We started to represent TravelNevada on July 1¥. Our team members are Laura Li,
Account Leader and then Chloe Wang, Trade Representative and Jess Wu, PR and
Social Media Representative. Both Chloe and Jess are here, so if any partner would
like to talk to them, they can just find them.

A very quick review about the first quarter. We conducted 15 sales calls and the
most important thing; we talked to Hainan Airiines and tour operators to try to
develop some packages with non-stop service from Beijing to Las Vegas. We also
brought Hainan Airlines representatives and some tour operators here, to try to
figure out how they work together. We conducted 15 media calls, which brought us
$1.428M in media coverage value in the first quarter. We just got our social media
accounts ready in September; we have 53 posts on Weibo, with nearly 3,000 new
followers and 7 posts on WeChat with nearly 1,000 new followers. Of course, we
will work hard to push more in the future.

This is an example, the clippings of the LVCVA Sales Mission we attended in July.
We started the first cooperation with the top OTA in China, Tuniu. We also brought
Tuniu here and we will have an online promotion with them very soon.

That’s all from China, thank you.

We're thrilled with the partnership with East West Marketing. Although they're
new to us, they have been working with Nevada since the beginning. Daniel Chen
who is the President of the company went on one of the first sales missions that we
did with NCOT, way back when. They bring a fresh, new perspective with kind of
age old eyes, which is a really nice combination for us.

I have a couple of copies of their quarterly reports since | know they had to go
through that very quickly. | will bring this up to you all and you can look it. They're
doing a great job and we really appreciate them.

Sheema, we're going to have to run through your presentation so quickly. Sheema,
are you here?

Yes.

36



VECCHIO:

VOHRA:

CARANO:

VOHRA:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | October £1, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Sorry about that. We have no time left. We need to be out of here by 2:25. We
may need to forgo some of the rest of this. This is incredibly important and these
folks came a long way, so we definitely want to hear from them. You hear from us
all the time. Sheema, take it away.

Thank you very much. What an honor to be here. We are the tiger that's really
waiting to roar. I'm going to try my best and technology hates me so | have my
colleague here to help.

I'm Sheema Vohra, the Managing Director for Sartha Global Marketing. We are a
very unique company in India. We provide services in-house for both public
relations, consumer marketing, digital and trade representation. We're very
privileged to be representing several very prestigious US accounts, including LVCVA
and Brand USA. And, | have another secret to tell you. | belong here. I'm so happy
to be home, I'm from UNLV. Thank you very much Nevada for always welcoming
me home.

Go Rebels!

Yes, Running Rebels with Tarkanian. | was of that era. Okay, just a little joke and |
promise it's going to be a second. | taught the Running Rebels English, so that was
fun.

Really a quick market overview. I'm not going to get into a lot of these details. |
think all of this, all of you know. I'm going to really try and pinpoint a few things
which might he very interesting.

The fastest growing economy, which | think is very exciting for us and a very stable
government at this point. It's never been a better time for the alliance between
India and the United States. | think our Prime Minister has been here more often
than he has been to any other country and so has President Obama been back
twice. | think it’s a great time to be getting into any kind of alliances.

Our population is 1.2 billion people. Let me talk about the youth market. We are a
very young nation. We have 50% of our population under the age of 25, 65% under
the age of 35. It's a very young nation. Let me go back a little and explain this to
you in context. We have 700 million under the age of 35 but these are from all
economic classes. They’re not our only audience. From this 700, we're really
targeting about 20 million. That's important to understand because as we get
forward in the presentation, when we talk about digital and what the influence of

37



Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

the digital marketing has been, | think this should make you understand that a little
better.

We have a growing middle class increasing their disposable income and also with an
attitude change. Our fathers always wanted to save money, our kids want to spend
money. They've grown up in an era where India is really doing well. They don't
know what unemployment means. They just want to spend the money and spend it
now. Of course, English, | think that's a very important thing in our favor. English is
the business language and very viably spoken.

Here again in the India outbound market, by 2020, they predict that we’ll have 50
million people traveling. The beauty is that all segments are seeing growth.
Whether that’s special interest, groups. FIT I think is the growth for every market in
the world today. And, MICE which I think is a very big advantage for Nevada, given
that we have Las Vegas right there, which is the most preferred MICE destination in
India.

The Indian travelers are changing a lot. They are very well informed. They're
sophisticated and educated. They're looking for new activities; out of the ordinary
experiences, living like a local. | think all of these are great words for us in Nevada.
We get it all here.

Major drivers, | mean, entertainment, nightlife, obviously with our young
population. Also, given the fact that we don't have a lot of that back home. We
have a lot of restrictions on the kind of entertainment and nightlife in our own
country. Theme parks, family attractions, beaches and water sports are picking up.
Shopping is, | think there's no other place in the world than the United States that
offers the value for shopping. Of course, adventure and outdoor activities.

In these segments, I'm going to just talk about three of them which | think might be
interesting. Honeymooners; all honeymoons are paid for by parents. So, very, very
high yield. They want to do anything different, what they can come and brag about.
Those bragging rights become very important.

The VFR, it's a changing profile. Indians don't like to be alone. We’re not loners.
We hate to be traveling, eating alone, going out alone. We like to be in places with
friends and family, but we’re not living with them anymore. A lot of them now are
living on their own so they’re really tourist. Then of course the student traveler,
which is about schools that travel out. The business and leisure traveler is what we
call pleasure. Again, a very big advantage for Nevada because all people coming on
business, whether it's to our gateways of Las Vegas, Los Angeles, San Francisco, all
can be doing an extension into Nevada.

38



Nevada Commission on Tourism [ October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Lift into the West Coast. lust to give you some idea, I'm going to go back and talk
about two of these. One being the first direct flight to San Francisco by Air Indian.
It's running at a premium. | think it's a big advantage for us. Because anyone that
comes into the United States will not just be doing one destination. They're going
to travel all around.

Of course, the gulf carriers. They’re our national carriers, honestly. Qatar, Etihad,
Emirates, 50% of their lift and more is from India. Of that 50%, almost 85-90% is to
the United States. It just tells you, we have some good news, | see Raphael here,
but | think it might happen. | think Qatar will be coming to Las Vegas, they told me
just before | left. It's probably going to be some time next year, | don’t know when,
but | think that will be good news for us.

Just to give you another snapshot. Fairly similar when you look at airlift in the US.
The reason | put these two slides here is, we Indians are a little strange in the way
we buy our tickets. If | get a better deal to New York, I'll probably buy that and then
take a Jet Blue into San Francisco, Los Angeles, Las Vegas, that's just the way we
think. | think entirely, the whole zirlift to the US, also benefits Nevada.

Our key travel periods. Our normal summer holiday is from April to July, depending
on where you're located. We get approximately about a month, month and a half.
Currently we're in a Dusshera, Diwali celebrations. Diwali is our new year, which is
at the end of the month. Normally, this used to be like Thanksgiving, people would
not travel. Now they're all traveling. Of course, the December, Christmas, New
Year holidays.

Just look at the growth there. You're looking at 17%. We've crossed the million
mark. We were very excited. Recently we had our road show in India. We had the
US Ambassador come to our VIP dinner in Delhi. He said that the Embassy and the
Consulates in India have already crossed the million mark, by September. So, |
mean, that’s really fantastic.

We get a 10-year visa and we’ve always been getting that and it’s fairly easy. | have
this very interesting math that we did in office. In the next two or three years, you’ll
have 5 million people who are ready to hop on a flight and come to the US. They
have their visa. They can come in here. It's a good deal from Etihad, let’s just go
there. | think that’s all very good news for us here too.

Money spent, we're high spenders. We're at an 18% growth. Just look at the
difference between ‘14 and '15.

35



Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

Millennials, | think are very interesting for us. Obviously adventures, sports,
experiential holidays, connect and share. | think these are fairly common about
millennials all over the world. There was a film made in Bollywood called [in native
language] which means, you only live once. It has done wonders for [inaudible].
The reason | put the video in here is, | hope it helps to change the stereotyping
about how Indian travelers are. | hope this will provide some change.

This is really the new traveler. They're really hungry for new stuff. That's what they
want to do, they want to be free. | think this is what something that United States
owns and every state and every city in this country owns is that sense of freedom
that you get when you come to the states. What better than what we have here. |
just put this down here for our diversity.

The unique sites, I've just come back from the outdoor. We've been so excited to
see what we’ve seen around here. Unique experiences, the little pleasures, you
know and the outdoors. | think that says so much about our state.

Just a snapshot, 'm not going to get into this detail, but we all know social media is
everywhere and India is no different. The growing mobile market is the fastest
growing smart phone market and everything is now in mobile. You know, gone are
the days when you did anything else, everything is on mobile.

As a matter of fact, | was on this FAM and | would like to point out, | have two of my
colleagues here. We have Sunila from Vena World. She’s probably number three
today in terms of the numbers coming in from our tour operators, so thank you very
much for being here Sunila. We have here Veneeta from Amazing Vacations. Sunila
taught me so much on the strip when | was with her on smart phones and how to
use my smart phone. She said | didn't deserve an Apple. Hopefully I've done a little
better now.

Really Facebook, Twitter, LinkedIn are the three most popular and Instagram picking
up very much. Again, keep in context, that's why we say in India, you cannot just be
doing social media. If you go back to what | told you about where our target
audience sits, we've got to do a combination of both. Traditional media is still
working. Print, television, still rule. Again, a little bit of digital is important and it
will continue to grow.

Just a little on our industry. We have wholesalers, retailers and you have your
region tour operators. Of course, our active travel agents that are there. They
prefer to work through DMCs or receptives. One of our biggest challenges is to
continuous train the travel agency stuff.

40



Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

I'm going to start getting into what we've done in terms of activities. We've had the
honor of representing Nevada since October 2015. Just some tactical co-ops that
we did with Flight Shop.

This is one of the things we did with our major tour operator. He was with us here
last year and he actually put it into his major brochure program.

Trade is really important. Trade outreach, we've had the honor of having the
Lieutenant Governor in market. We hope to welcome him back with Governor
Sandoval in November/December. It was a really good visit. It was during one of
our major shows called SATTE. We got huge media, fantastic VIP, [inaudible] major
captains of industry of the travel trade and airlines. Just to give you some other
snapshots. This is the US Ambassador. He had come to the Las Vegas booth.

Our educational seminars. This is a very important part. We joined hands with
Brand USA in doing the educational seminars. My colleague Varuni is right here,
she’s the one who really worked. Everyone here, please see that you meet her.
Varuni is the Account Manager for Nevada. | think we trained almost over 550
agents to date across almost six cities in India.

Some of the in-store branding that we’ve done for Nevada. Our FAM trips, our
objective is obviously to go a little beyond the gateways and we've had a lot of
success. People have already started to put a lot of Nevada product into their
programming and itineraries.

Brand USA Mission, which is a mission that happens for the US every year in
September. We have active participation from Nevada. There you can see Larry.
And Donna right there too.

We've done a Facebook page which has started to become fairly popular. We just
launched it this year. This is our consumer page for the Indian consumer. We are
just putting a lot more things which are India specific. How to get their visas, etc.
We have also a travel trade page, which is used for the travel trade B2B.

Our PR activities, again, some FAM trips here. It gives you some of the fantastic
media coverage that we've been able to obtain. Qur team has done quite a
phenomenal job there on a [inaudible] basis. I'm just going to run through this.
There’s one thing mare | wanted to show you.

This kind of gives you a little bit here. There’s one thing | want to put out here. We
are working on a major project which we hope to involve Nevada. This is going to
be with a major digital influence and the TV channel called MTV. That’s going to

41



CARANO:

Reports

VECCHIO:

Mevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

probably be about really experiencing the outdoors. We hope to partner with
Nevada, our state next door California and Brand USA.

| hope we can meet all of you. | had to rush through this, but | hope you got a sense
of where the market stands. If there’s anything else | can help you with, any
information, please feel free to see me, I'm here for the next few days. Thank you
very much,

Thank you Sheema. Amazing. Congratulations. Thank you, what a year.

IV Reports, A. Vice Chair’'s Report TABLED
IV Reports, B. Administration a-c TABLED
IV Reports, C. Public Relations Update a-b TABLED
IV Reports, D. Sales & Industry Partners Update TABLED
IV Reports, E. Nevada Magazine Update TABLED
IV Reports, F. Department Agency Updates TABLED

We need to wrap up this meeting because we need to start with our other
proceedings. Thank you again to everybody who has been here. We just need to
do Commissioner comments and public comment and then we can adjourn.

Commissioner Comments

CARANO:

STOLDAL:

Public Comment

CARANO:

VECCHIO:

Okay, great. Do we have any Commissioner comments? Seeing none. Okay, on the
phone? Bob, did you have any comments?

No, thank you.

Okay, thank you. And, public comment? Seeing none. | apologize to all the other
pecple on the Agenda. Nevada Magazine, we have a tremendous strategic plan
update. We'll have to get those in the future. We have a great agenda for the rest
of the afternoon. Everybody has their book. Is the Governor going to be here?

He's here.

42



Adjournment

CARANO:

SANTOS:

CARANO:

NEWMAN:

CARANO:

GROUP:

CARANO:

Nevada Commission on Tourism | October 11, 2016
Department of Tourism & Cultural Affairs

The Governor is here. Thank you very much. Maotion to adjourn?

So moved.

Second?

Second.

And, all in favor say aye.

Ayes around.

Thank you very much.

The meeting adjourned at 2:22 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Dee Chekowitz-Dykes, Executive Assistant
Department of Tourism and Cultural Affairs
Nevada Commission on Tourism

43



=

—










NEVIMUSI|OF
ADAIEUMIART

Donald W, Reyroids Cernter tor the Visual Arts | E L Wiegang Gallary

An update and proposal to
The Nevada Commission on Tourism

For continued support of
Seven Magic Mountains

1|Page



Seven Magic Mountains - Status Report

Seven Magic Mountains (7MM) upon opening in May, has become a resounding success, evolving the Nevada
brand as a cultural destination and helping to support existing tourism efforts. The Nevada Museum of Art
submitted its initial request of $250,000 to the Nevada Commission on Tourism in 2013 in support of this
landmark work. In 2015, the Commission generously supported 7MM with a grant of $100,000 with the
agreement of additional funding providing the project’s initial success. We ask the Commission to continue its
support of this important project with a remaining grant of $150,000.

At the November 11, 2016 meeting, the Museum presented to the Commissioners a project update proving
tremendous success. The following proposal outline serves as a status report for the Commission.

PROJECT FUNDING STATS
Overall project cost: $3,500,000
Total funding raised: $3,150,000
Total funding needed: $350,000
NCOT sponsorship request: $150,000
Publicity Update
PUBLICITY VALUE

Updated publicity value is $6,495,282 (this is a $700,385 increase since the October 11 report).
PRESS HIGHLIGHTS

*  About three weeks after Seven Magic Mountains opened, the Museum received a call from the editorial
board of The New York Times to inform us that in all their years they've never seen an artwork or exhibition
receive the international buzz that 7MM has.

s Top tier media placements include The New York Times, CBS Sunday Morning, The Guardian, CNN, USA
Today, The Huffington Post, LA Times, The Telegraph, Harper's Bazaar, Slate, Elie, Qantas Airlines in-flight,
ArtNews, Juxtapoz, and many more.

= Stories have appeared around the world: UK, Belgium, The Netherlands, Germany, France, ltaly,
Switzerland, Sweden, China, Japan, South Korea, Thailand, India, Mexico, Brazil, and Australia. With
Australia, the Museum recently learned 7MM will be featured on the cover of Quantas Airline's in-flight
magazine in the November issue. 7TMM was also on the cover of Juxtapoz magazine.

= Features have touched multiple verticals: travel, luxury, mainstream news, fashion, art, academic pubs,
science, and lifestyle.

2|Fage



MEDIA SUMMARY

+ 565 news stories

* Total National TV Audience: 5,044,662

* Total Local TV Audience: 1,682,124

* Total Estimated Online News Visitors: 151,577,950

SOCIAL MEDIA

s #7magicmountains and #SevenMagicMountains combined average more than 200 mentions per
month on Twitter;

= More than 500K likes on Instagram since opening with incredible engagement (averaging over 3K
comments per month);

s Facebook page has almost 3,500K organic likes since the opening.

FUTURE MARKETING/PR PLANS

* The Museum will hold a one year anniversary by staging a press event, bringing Ugo Rondinone aut to
speak, gathering people from around the globe to convene once more in celebration for this landmark
installation. The milestone anniversary provides new energy, reason for another onslaught of press stories,
and additional social media opportunities.

= Seven Magic Mountains has created global interest, spawning new commissions that raise visibility. For
instance, the artist created "Miami Mountain” that was unveiled this week at Art Basel Miami, a major art
fair. The Museum is in attendance representing Nevada. The project was sponsored by MGM Resorts
international Art & Culture Initiative, a focus driven largely in part by their association with Seven Magic
Mountains. This new single mountain has created additional buzz and attention for the Nevada
installation.

e  Throughout the two-year duration, the Museum will continue to program meetups and talks in the Las
Vegas area.

A|Page



— 1 «_J



Reports

TRAVELNEVADA.COM % #TRAVELNEVADA






FY17 vs FY16 vs FY15 vs FY14 Tourism Category Expenditure Update Through November 30

|Category Description FY17 FY16 ~ FY15 _ FYia
CAT 02 Out-of-State Travel
Legislative Authority Amount: $49,406.00 $49,406.00 549,796.00 $49,796.00
Actual Expenditures: $11,168.48
Remaining Available Funds: $38,237.52
% Spent YTD: 23%
CATO03 In-State Travel
Legislative Authority Amount: $43,496.00 $38,096.00 $45,735.00 545,735.00
Actual Expenditures: $12,358.03
RemainInE_Available Funds: $31,137.97
% Spent YTD: 28%
CAT 30 Training
Legislative Authority Amount: $7,086.00 57,086.00 $6,485.00 $7,086.00
Actual Expenditures: 5945,23
Remaining Available Funds: $6,140.77
% Spent YTD: 13%
CAT 31 Promotion & Advertising
Legislative Authority Amount:| $11,309,367.00] $12,168,367.00] $9,163,563.00| 510.049,870.00
Actual Expenditures:|  $1,850,249.55
Remaining Avallable Funds:|  $9,459,117.45
% Spent YTD: 16%
CAT 43 tnt'l Trade/Tourism
Legislative Authority Amount: $753,306.00 $753,306.00 $698,368.00 $698,368.00
Actual Expenditures: $173,250.00
Remaining Available Funds: $580,056.00
% Spent YTD: 23%







12/7/2016

2016
NEVADA GOVERNOR'S
‘ GLOBAL TOURISM
SUMMIT

2016 Nevada Governor's
Global Tourism Summit

Thursday, November 03, 2016

A WORLD HITHIN,
A STATE APART.

Poweind by

80

Total Responses

Date Created: Thursday, September 29, 2016

Complete Responses: 77




12/7/2016

Q1: Why did you attend the 2016 Governor’s Global Tourism Summit?

Plea_s_e_s_elect all that ap_ply.

Answered: 76 Skipped 4

Get the latest
forecasts am..

Leatpnew -
applicable.. | e

[
Hetwedhing [

Twasa
masdetfof,.

My
of panization..,

Professional
development

Attend the
Medly..

o

Attand the
Slee.. |

U e el T

0% 0% Aqs % AL &% 0% 0% L% 20% 100%

Q2: Which of the sessions did you f‘u_'lcl r_nost_ v_a!!_tﬁble?

Answered 77 Shipped 3 =
Torbtinmi.

Millernal
Clineee..

Heveds endtna 77
LU ERLY T P |

tssuas
N acami Thoa

‘Habaw
Maukotplecn

Muwdia |
Martninisee

Pasatid &
Cartdiad.

Frovduvg Your -y

Paspingm . |10
Dewintai o
Taamtum.,

Gesnminnal
Talew aint..

Chorna b0 Hon '|'
wAh Chwise |

Diher iplesas
apacay)

0% o = W d0% 3o L) e e

e 100




12/7/2016

Answered 63 Skipped 17

Q3: Which of the sessions did you find least valuab_le?

Trovaland |

Towismo i

= w T
ammp
Haveds and the

Intatristiens..

LI
Impactmgih.

Sales
Mathetplacw

Media |
Mathelptotr |

X Ll ©h (1 T o B S R

Answered: 77 Skipped: 3

QS5: Did you attend the sales marketplace?_ _

e B g s -l

% % 9% 100%




12/7/2016

Q6: What did you find most valuable at sales marketplace?

Answired: 58 Skipped. 24

Clanccto sett |
Ry proparty —

i

Chance to nell
my property .. |

Opportunity La

Chance to meet
sithne.

Opportunity tn
meet with.

Chanee to hene
hvy perdonal.,

Kleet locy
sclicisio..

l %
b 5
e

Othes (please F o0
specify) | ¥
0% 10% 0% 0% 4C% 0% EL% % 20" 90% 100%
Q7: Did you attend the media marketplace?
Answered 71 Skipped 3 o
Yes :‘
€0% % B0 90% 100%




12/7/2016

Q8: What did you find most valuable at media marketplace?

Answered 27 Skipped 53

Opportuniyto |
phcls .., L

iy
the media.., B, et

TR ;s:-n:q'.,v.wwm. A
Learn aiout L= Ty .- e 1 1

Chance ta hone
piching shifls

Learn mare
abour llevada...
Cther {please
specity)

0% 10% Yo% e Ll 5% % s Bi% 0% 100%

Q9: The conference has evolved from the Governor's Conference on
Tourism to the Governor's Global Summit on Tourism. What is your
opinion-of the-new.direction_of the Governor's_Global Tourism Summit?—

Answered 76 Skipped 4

I stiongly i
like the new— |

1hika the now [lamietdet Sl s Bl
direclion of.- |

Fam peutiat
lothe~ |

| dinlike the
new direclio_.

I strongly
dislike the ..

0% 1% 0% 0% 0% e % % 80% 90% 100%




12/7/2016

Comments from participants

Excerpts by Topic

Date Created: Thursday, September 29, 2016

Complete Responses: 77

Comments regarding international

“falt it was too focused on China, | understand the theme, but there is a lot more
going on in tourism outside of China”

“With the number of international visitors rising, information on customs, etc we
should know to make our visitors feel welcome would be good. Perhaps an [app] for
our phone that could translate would be good.”

“Our property does [minimal] international [business].”

“Itinerary building for international travel agents”




12/7/2016

Comments regarding _rnarketplace

“Please schedule the Sales and Media marketplace at different times so we don't
have to chose either/or. | would have done both.”

“The sales marketplace is invaluable and worth the cost of the conference. | would
like to see speakers that can correlate more data and information directly to all of
Nevada not necessarily just Vegas or Reno. The state as a whole has such varying
degrees of tourism and interests, this can make the speakers not as relevant to all
attendees.”

“As agent, great to hear pitches for real folks.”

Comments regarding marketplace

“As a buyer it would have been useful to have a list of the suppliers ahead of the
summit and also the opportunity to pre-schedule the 7 minutes appointments as
there were more buyers than suppliers in attendance and for a few slots | was sat
with no ane to talk to and only got the chance to meet with half the suppliers. If the
meetings were pre-scheduled | would have been able to meet with everyone and it
would have been more beneficial. This is the way that other summits are organised
and it seems to work better. “




12/7/2016

Comments regarding local/rural tourism

“As Nevada's corporate business changes it would be helpful to incorporate this into
the Summit. A certain amount of this qualifies as Global.”

“I hope that Global will still have a focus on national travel and tourism as well as
international”

“To include the rural areas as a source of historical education and diversity, and to
offer a panel of large city tourist specialist to work with the people from the rural
areas.”

Comments regarding local/rural tourism

“More ways and ideas for the Reno and Vegas to help reach out to rural
Nevada....group tours or weekend adventures, sold or pitched by the cities and
coordinated with rural area chambers to help bring a more diverse crowd and
introduce them to the cultural Nevada experience.”

“More on rural Nevada and the cultural experience to be had”

“Pronounce Nevada correctly :) “




12/7/2016

Comments regarding the conference time

“It was a good conference but some of the sessions were very long without breaks. |
noticed much of the audience going in and out during the sessions due to lack of
breaks.”

“Timing was an issue. Some had to rush and others seemed to have no regard for
their allotted time.”

“I think this was the best Gov's Conference in years - good job team! The energy was
great and the topics were relevant. Perhaps have a dedicated timekeeper to keep
speakers and panels on track...so that we have the opportunity for Q&A at the end of
appropriate sessions. The timekeeper does not need to be an executive type, just
someone who everyone understands is in charge of the schedule.”

Comments regarding the conference speakers

“really enjoyed the gentleman that traveled through Nevada”

“Dr Salz presentation was great, more of the same would be good. It's always
interesting to hear about what is available in Nevada.”

“Dr Jeff Salz - most enjoyable”

“Stagger the sessions so that you can attend more than 1. | wanted to attend both
the Chinese sessions as well as the Food Tourism but both were at the same time”

“PR coaching on how to pronounce Nevada! | think it was great that we had a
variation of hard data in inspirational travel speakers at this year's conference, great
blend that didn't make it overwhelming.”




12/7/2016

“Dr Salz presentation was great, more of the same would be good. It's always
interesting to hear about what is available in Nevada.”

“Dr Jeff Salz - most enjoyable”

“Stagger the sessions so that you can attend more than 1. | wanted to attend both
the Chinese sessions as well as the Food Tourism but both were at the same time”

“The breakout sessions were not organized well. | would have liked to attend both.”
“PR coaching on how to pronounce Nevada! | think it was great that we had a

variation of hard data in inspirational travel speakers at this year's conference, great
blend that didn't make it overwhelming.”

Comments regarding the conference

“The suppliers display area seemed less attended.”
“Cover all those in the audience including wholesalers and airlines.”

“Breakdown of activities tourist choose and their interests. Tourist planning
steps/websites utilized for research.”

“Burning Man should have done a presentation and an exhibit”
“Generational tourism - not just millennials”

“How to train front line employees/services to improve visitor experience and
appreciate their contribution to the local economy”

10



sded|t

's19sn padedua

40 J2qWINU 3Y3 S3PNJIUI JUSWSINSE3LW
sdwis ay| ‘Sunwwesdold eipaw

je1nos Jayyo pue Bupeys ydnoayy
Juawadedus J3Wnsuod asueyul

-Ang 03 s19WNsuo3 Joy

snyadw ve Ing ‘uaieuLIojul Ajuo Jou
SJ34JO pue asn 0} 5JaWNsSu0d 10} Asea s)

~ %0S 2]I5gaMm WOD BPEABN|BAEI] 8Y] aJnsu]
(21ep 03 Je3A)
|eos 03 Suppdes) {1a3senb Jad) Ayanay B I

‘sa1lA0e Juswadedua Jasn

Yyoes uj aseasdul 1eah-13n0-1eaA e U0 PIseq aq ||IM IIUBWIOUA siauled pue sjeuoissajosd aped) [aAed) ‘s1awnsuod Joy Juawadedus puelq asiey 7

%S¢

‘Adenuer Jo 33am 1511) 3y} B|qe[IBAR 3 [[IM €D *Awou033 apimalels ay) uo Joedw)
5,2peaan|aaeL) Ajnuapi 0} (sawelyau
udiedwed Supinp Ajpewnd) xe) Suiwed

pue juatuuieualua ‘Suldpo| yoes)

(e1ep-03-483A)
|ecs 03 Sunjoes)

{1912enb 13d) Ayanoy IdX

*S3INAIIDE WSLIND] puE [aae) SN0yl BPeASN 4O 31B1S 3Y) O} anuaAal aaugd T

s|eoy [enuuy Suydiesang

9T07 ‘pT Jequiadsg
yoday LTAd 4aneny .2
wislINO ] JO UOISIAIQ EPEADN

14vdy JLVIS ¥
"RIHLIA TT40M ¢<=
~



aded|z

‘anusod Alaa sem saaulied wody yoeqpaay “Juaas Aep-auo auy)
papuane siaing 09 Ajatewxoiddy Y1/ T JOQUIDAON ASH 20 BULIBIN Ul P[3Y JUDAD
Sjuey L SO EPPAIN([IARIL J9AR-1541) 3] 40y sn pawol saauped epeasp (og) A1yl

*Jaqwaidas ul ouay ul pjay
SEM UY2IYM V1SV 18 Y100q epeaaN|aaes] ul lediijed 03 pajiauL 3.3m OS|e siauped

*1aqWaydas ul Moys aINJulApY
PUB [2ABJ] |BUDIIBUIZIU| J2ANCIURA 24} JB sh wiof 0) s1aulied pajAul BPRABN|SARIL

‘apedJ) |aael) 3y} pue S1aWwnsuod
yum siauped Aujsnpul WISLINO} BPEASN

%095 3ui8e8ua Joj sanunuoddo Ajiuap)
"W0J'EPEAIN|IARI | WOLY )P 135N
91e4831u1 01 auroOW uaidjye4 pue duuj Iy Yiim Juawdo|aaap Jaylny usag sey aJay |
‘UOJJeLLIO)U] |BUOIIeINPS PUE [SAEBI]
yrog sapiaoad 1eyy dde ue Suipnjau
%0€E ‘slwJojield ajqow 1snqou aleas)
UI0J'BPRASN|DARBIL UO ,SONY JU3IU0D,, SB JI. |Im Jey) Sisulied
Joj sajisoiw Jo yuawdojaaap Asy-uan) 12410 0] BIP3N UIPPe paziioyine os|e
BABY M "LUOI BPBRAIN(DARIL JO J&100} a3 Wi padejd ulaq sey sayls Aoluus] 03 yul| v ‘siaunied Ansnpuy
SpIMIILIS 01 YU)| 0] SISWNSUDD
%GZ 40} sa1unuoddo pasealdul apIaoid

"sdii) peoy pue ‘siapisu] BPEA3N ‘3UNIUIAPY (Sa11033)ed
Jualu0d aauy) Loddns 01 saded Buipue| Mau YIIM ‘A1 MOU 51 3)IS JAJUIA/|ed BYL




sded|¢g

%05 $30U2J2JU02 |BNUUY

‘wesdoad Bunaysew dood asawop ulepuely ay) Sulpiedas
Ansnpui wswNo) epeaap ayl 03 eIP3IA UBPPRIN AQ PSIBUILIASSIP UOIIELLIOU|

J)|gnday euozLy
aunqu] uotun o8aig ues
salw)] saj28uy so7
JRUIWEXT 0IS1DURl4 UBS
UBLWSIIBIS OYep| asiog
sunquy Ay) axeryes e

Ojul papasul pue payajdwod Jasul (e

%09 wesdoid Sunayse aanesadoo)

's133l04d 68 40} OEZ'40SS Suipsemy puswwoday ‘Buipuny ul GpT'Ep/S Sullsanbal
suonedjdde QT panaas — wesBoad Juess Bunayiep |einy 9j2A) ol LTOTA4Y
{swesdoid Juessd

O0M] UO paseq) %0s siueln Sunasyleln jemy
(o1ep-03-1e34A)
jeog 03 3uppdely {1231enb sad) Aynitoy td)

‘YIMo43 seai-1an0-1e0A Ag paunseaw SuiwwesSold epeaap|anes)
ur Sujediansed siauped jo Jaquinu 3yl UO Paseq aq |jIm duewwIop ‘saiunyoddo Juawdojaaap ssauisng pue Sunaxsew Jauped puedxy p

‘duisipanpe (Ajuo)
pied 10} T:EE S) 1QY JUBLIND 'SHOY3
BIp2W (pauJea pue paumo} B120S pue

%0S paulea ‘pied uo paseq PauLIRBP 10Y
(a1ep o3 Jead)
Jeos 03 3uppesy (1o1enb sad) Ayranoy ) 1d)

JuBLWIsasul-uo-uinyas udiedwed Suijaysew pajesdaju) 213salop aseasdu| g



sdedl|tw

elpaw
|BI20S BIA UOIIRULIOIUI BPRADN|BARI |
Suneys sJsuped jJo Jaquiny

%0

2)ISQOM WO RPEADN (AL
3l] UO UCHEWIO] pue
sa8ew duipeojdn sisuned Jo Jagquingy

%0

311503M ZI BPEABN|SARIL 3Y) JO 3sN

"L10Z AMeniqay
10 pua ay3 younej |im pue paudisapal Aja1a)dwod aq |Im ausqam uolensidai
Y1 ‘suauodwod Suiaysew 30ualajuod ||e pue wesdoad 3yl uo Aeadapun si HI0M

-1aquwadag A|Jea Ul pauluwLIRIap 34 ||IM S3RU3A 3] JO
AUOC Y1IM 12BJ3U0D 03 JUIIUI FYL ‘SUOIIBIO| DAL O} IPBLU BIDM SHSIA 2115 “papuodsal
saiuadoasd ease se8ap se7 uanas "pajajdwiod sem U0I1eI0| /TOTZ 24) 40) d4Y Ayl

oejdiaiey elpaNy

J3[|1IA SuMIn) paeyaly uoissas Suluado — spual] WSLNO] Pue [3A.S)
(12ued) peougy puesg sn 8yl Sunoedw sanss|

LOISSas UOayaun| Z|es J4afr

oejdiayely sa|es

- Mmoo

:aJe 3|genjea Jsow Juiaq se palou suoissas ayl "Ajyay
Alaa pajes Ajjesauad sem a0us43jU00 YL 'S33pudlle j|e 0] papinoid sem Asains v

‘0uay Ul pjay sem aJualajuod siyl awll 1se| ayy
JBA0 3SBAIIU) %6 B SJuasaudal siyl sIsieusnol pue sJ2Ang |BUOIIBUJBIUL PUB S301Y)0
|[euOIIBUIZIUI YADAT YL PUB BPEASN|SARIL Y10G WoJ) saallejuasasdal ‘“Aisnpul
WISINO} BPEASN 2y} j0 pasudwod ajdoad ggz pa|e10] S3uUBepuslly "ouay Ul oS3y
B4J3IS PUBRID 33 18 ZT-TT ‘190 P9y Sem Juwnsg Wwsung| |eqo|9 S JOUSSA0H ayy




aded|s

£°0 :48m0||0) Jad syuawadeduy o

Jauenb snoinald 1940 % 67 Aq paseasdsp siuawadedua jo saquny  ©
LySTisan o

FL [SIUBIWOD YYM S}9aMIay  ©

L0/ 519aM18y O

zg:sayday o

(sjer01) sona wawadesuy o

Japenb snonaisd JOA0 %8 pT JO ISERIIU| ‘879 PAAIAIRI SUCIJUBN e
Jauenb snojnaid 19A0 % T°ZE JO BSPALIBQ 'gLT (Juas sisod |e10) e
Japenb snoinaad JBA0 %G E JO ASEDIIU| "OST'ZE :509M0)|0) |BI0L

Ml

T2L'8vL'T :paydeal 5135

Jarenb snonald 1an0 92 T Aq paseasdul ‘g7z sz siuawageduy 1504
€ZP'648'E :suoissaudun jejoy

Jauenb snowna.d 18A0 %t AQ paseasdu| "8 EET (SUB) [B10)

{£ 19quiBdag - 19¢012Q) yoogadre4




aded|og

Suipueisiapun uayiduans 01 ssauned
10j saiunyoddo yuawdojanap
%0E $53UISN{ PUE [BUOIIBINP2 Ja0

‘eJefejepeno pue AlI) 01XaA Y10Qq Ul SIUBAS
8uiuana elpaw/sajes pue ‘siaulied Ay yum Jujisaw auc-uo-auo ‘suonejuasald
Juady |aaes] Suipnjaul 0JIXa|A 0} UDISSIA 59(eS EpeAaN pajesado pue pauue|d

‘Sa41y SOuaNng Ul suoijeluasasd pue 5jed Sa|es pue ‘suojieluasald Juady |aaeiL
‘MOYs |aAel | Opewesy Suipuanie Suipnjaul |1Zeig 0} UOISSI §3|BS YAIAT PapUally
S1@YJeW Paluapl 03 YIea1nNo

%St Supassew pue s3jes JUISISUOD eau)
{s3ep-03-223A)
[eoD o) Supjrea] {1a11enb sad) Aynioy Id

$19%4EL {BUOIIELIDIUI PIYIIUBP! UIYIIM UOIIBUNSIP LISLINO] B SB BPBASN JO SSOUIIEME 3sies 0) dnuUo) 'S

*SIUBYNSUOD
Po19RIIUCD UNO §O auo Yim 1aaload AydesBoapia |21U3E UD SYIE 31L1S YUM PINIOM
dujwweidoid ajeudosdde ul
00T uoisnaul Asuade 131515 Jo adejualiad

J91enb snoinald JaA0 %"/ JO 3SeaIdU| "p'p96 ;elpaw 1ad syjudwadedul e
Jouend snonasd Jano 947°¢ Jo aseala] "6528°GQ :sluawadedua |eJ0) e
UI2W3dU3IUOP§H
‘epeaauy ‘esnaylIsiAg ‘EPRASU|DARINY WPy SBeIYsey PISN JSON e
Japuenb snonaud JoA0 %78 PASEaIIU| "69/ 67 (SI9MO||0) JO JIBqUINU [RIC] e
wesdejsu|

Japenb snojaaad

J3A0 948°8 PasealIu| "%e'R 18am Jad suoissaidun Jo saquiny
045 7 uoissardwyj s2d sjuawaSedul

0'96T°Z :32am] 19d suoissauduw)

566G :@am] Jad syuawadedul

1T 1amoj|o} Jad suotssaidw|

C 00 0 0




ased]|g

ouay ut Suilasw Alojua] aoye)-ouay vT/ZT

Ay uosie) uj Bupaaw Asojuia) velpu) 9T/1T
syueds u) Suilasw AJojuI3) 20ye)-0udy 6/TT
ysean v Sunssw Anuno) Aogmao) sz/0T

A3 w Bunaaw Asonuia) ssasdx3 Auod TZ/0T

AND uosie) w Bunaaw Aloyia) uelpu) 1Z/6

A3)je uosie) ul Bunaaw Aloyuia) aoye-oudy pT/6
:sFunaaw Aoyl Supuany

‘Ansnpui wsunoj pue

|2AeS] 243 uo 2duelal 5,AI01L043) Yoes
01 duiuienad uonewsoju) SuwAanuod

%0S Ul 5314011113 WSIND] 5, BPBASN 3A|0AU|
‘yedouo] pue dwniyed

‘1anopuapn ‘Javeg ‘enaun3 ‘Aj3 ul s1apes) Allunwwod Aay yum adejd ool sSunasiy *S3IOU0I2 |el0| uo joedw)

S1I PUE WSIINO} JO anjeA 3Y) punoJe

%02 U0N1ESJAUDD 3Y) ul Asisnpun ayy a8e3u3

‘S|S8Q JUIISISUOD
pue Ajawi) e uo paAaAuc3 aJe 3Juaipne
yoea 03 Juai|es safessalu ainsua o)

%S2 weJsgoad yoeanno Japjoyayels 19npuo)
{a1ep-03-1e04A)
jeon 03 Sunjdes) (s21enb Jad) Ayanoy IdX

*AWIOU0I9 S,318)S 3y} UO SBY WISLINO)
Jo uaising 3yl 03 papiaoud Buipuny sy 1aedw ay) pue A1snpur WSLINO) PUE |3ABL] 341 JO anjeA 3y) J0 Suipuelsiapun Japjoyayels Aay asueyu3 -9

NWWING WSO |
|EQO|D S JOwIaA0D ayy Suipnjoul
*pa19jdwod JWwWNg WsUNoy |Eqo| dunaysew [puoneusul |NYSSIIINS JO




sded|g

{o1ep-03-4234)
|eoD 03 Supyaesl . (1911enb J3d) Alanoy td)

{std)} s103e31pU| B3UBWIOad Aa)

WEeldoid JUnIEN IS0 PAIEddalu| UaAg SUONRE|aY J)jgnd

"3)is 8y) uo paiaauod Buiayiols
pue wids ,u) 3 aaua4 1,u0q,, 34l YUMm Spuajq 1eyl sAem mau ul epeasn 38e8uad Pue J3A0ISIP
‘ato0)dxa way) sdiay 1ey) uoljediaeu ay] anjea s1asn Jey) sajedipul udiedwed J2uim/)jed

3yl yum payaune| jey) saded Suipuel-gqns mau ay} uo dduaadxa 49sn syl Supjaed) sugiedwed

Sunaysew jje oyl pajesodioau

%0€E SI 421e3534 aunsu3j
o T Apnis pedw) o1woucds

%00T jenuue-iwas alajdwo)

‘ugiedwed Jajuip/|e4
ay1 jo dn-desm sy Jaye ‘Yaurepy Apes anda0 1w Buip|sly "ua4d|yeq pue epeasn|anel]

Aq paJsojuow Ajaso2 ase pue padde) uaag aney UO-5ABM|E ZTA4 pue uSiedwed Jayuipn/iied | (2aunm/ied Jawwns/s3unids)
SIIPNIS SSIUDAIIDBYD

%0€ Suisiuanpe 219|dwo)

v/N ) |2poiu Y3ieasas | azijeulq

(a1ep-03-aE3A)
[eoD 03 Sunpiedy {120enb s2d) Ananoy 1dM

{SId}) s103e31pU] BdUBWIOLDd AdY
yaieasay

Suaniey pue sajes amsawoq Ajljdwy T

s3|nsay AlJaneny — saaneniu] Ay



sded|6

‘pasiaaL suawade|d
pue paysaiya osje asam spe jendig ‘Adajesis ,uo sAemie, Ul anuuod |m jeyy usiedwes
J31uIp/lled ayy 1oy padojaaap sdiyssauried mau pue passasse aiam siaulied eipaw pred
wuojied ,uo shemje,,
ocy ue 0} Sanow 3uisiape pied

“T:05 P4 S Sem aead pauiquiod ay) 1oy |0Y
a3 pue pajajdwod uaaq sey elep uSiedwed Jawwns/Suuds ‘gz/, Apnis ssauaalIay

Je3A-J9A0-1R3A SISEAIIUI

%S¢T JuRUIISaAUl-u-uInlas usiedwe)
(91ep-03-a234A)
jeo9 03 Suppdes) (1auaenb Jad) Ananay Id)

ISI01EJIPU| 3JuBWIORd Ay

ISawoq) JUoWdojonag 9AREAI)/SUIS|IIIaAPY pled

*J9A0D BY] J0) S|3pow
3y} se {031x3y wouy pueq Aog snowey) 6QD dARY OS|e ||Im utzeSew ay] ouay 1 aSe|IA
3ulpu| ‘aoye] e JO 28elan0d Ja)uim e 3uilooys ag jjim suizeSey 4 0]1353 Jaqwiadag uj

siapno elpaw , Ajuoud

%0S ¥,, ul 98e1aa00 ainjeay ApayenDd
JUBLWI]SBAUI UD WINJAJ T:GT B
{4211enb 104) 25001 | 15e3) 18 sapinold aBesanod eipaw

Yyoea Joj paunuiz1ap |10y

diy yum ‘seak sad pajsoy pue
padojaaap aie eipaw Jisawop
%52 10j sduy ssaud 194etu-u] oM

JeaA Jad paindaxa
pue padojanap ale s1axyJew
%001 Jolew 0} SUOISSIW BIPSW OM]




saded|ot

Jead Jad suonowosd Jawinsuod
%095 [euOsSEas 0M] 1583 1B Janpuo)

suonowoud [e13os
sanunuoddo Sunooq Joaap PalR|as PUB WEd'N] uo  Suijioney, 1350 Jo Juawdo)ansp Jayung pue suSiedwe) juswasedua
‘uonanpoad Juauod

JiweuAp ajqeus o) Adojouysy
M3U JO uojeluau|dun

%0t pue uonesyads
(o1ep-03-1834)
1209 03 Fupjae.y (453ienb Jad) Aoy 1aX

{sid)) sdoieaipu} azuewopiad Aay

juawdojanaq |[endig

spredw wesdosd

ajqiBuelu) pue a|gi8ue) yoes

0} 2oejd w1 saunseaw dysuoie|ad
-uo-uin3ial yym payoune|

%0 s1 weiSoud AyeAo) anjjeaouu|

"3JuIpne mau siyl yum adesua 03 Ayunpoddo ue siaulied
8ulayo ‘sn 3yl ug suaeads uuepuey 23eSua 01 paudisap s) wesdold “‘epeAaN|IABIL
Aq panoudde pue uappey Aq padojaaap sem ASalesis uBiedwed uuepue|y d1sawoq JusWIsaauy Suisipanpe

|euoilippe 000‘005S B 01 puesq
3] SpUaIXa pue (JeaA-Jano-1ealh)
siauped apimalels alow sadedus
%05 wesScud Sunayiew aaesadood

“payaune| 2J3M SWUNBSNW 81€15 PUE JYN JOj S31Sqam

papuesq map "vIL1d Incydnoyl sienplalpul g7 01 paINqUISIP a42M SPJBD SSauisng papuelg
Bunaysew uy

pa8eSua sa1oua8e aje)s ||e 550408
%0t paleagajul 51 pueag IpIM3IBIS




aded|Tr

(93ep-03-1e34)
|eon o3 Supjdes)

(+331enb Jad) AjiAndY Id}

{sid)) s103ed1pU| AJUBWIONAd Ad)

Yoeanng s9|es Jnsawog

%Z8 £ S1 3dejuadsad Jusun)
"31B1S a3y} uiyum Sultanes)

%0 SUEPBADN U BSE3IIUI UB MOYS
98eJaA00 BIpDLU P3UJED BIA
%0 10Y wesdoud T:GT e ajesauan
“Jead yrewyouaq
B aq ||iMm 9TAd "1eah
-1ano-1eah ¢t Ag uonowosd
Sy} 03 anp suepeaan
%0 Suowe Annbui asealadu)
(o1ep-03-1E3A)

|eog 0} Jupes]

(1211enb sad) Auanoy IdX

{s1d)) sa03ed1pU| B3UBWIOLIBd Ad)

EpEADN AN0A JOADISIT

)]
‘siaaoaye) weadeisu) Suipnppul
SI11DE} SAIBAOUUL ‘MBU ¢ 15€3)

%aT 1B yum Juswadedua ajejnwils
speaj |lewa mau duipnjaul

‘Yiuow yiea sajuaipne euossad, pajuawdss Jnoy 03 JUIS SIS JAWNSUOY) |, ANUNWIWIOD JBGUISENS,, |B10}

3Y1 SE [jom SB ‘Sjauuey?d |e1dos

%05 l1e vl JuswadeBud AseasIu|

"s|puueyd
[e1205 NJY3 Jepuajed Jualuoa o} paje|as suoiowo.ld dogdsayo Alyiuow Jo Juawdojanag




sded| et

aseqelep
J3WNSU03 15004 0] 1S33U0I MOYS
aimuaapy pue [aaed] dojaaaq

"parsanbal

Se 31NGLISIP 0}
s31103119) 03 saping
|3ae) Buipiaoad aq
1M ap 7|eIs) Sy
J0 J3puleLWwal 3y} 10§
panpayas 1,us! Jye1s

pa8e8ua s1auWNsU0I JO
J3qWInU pajewiisa ‘paInquisIp

10) SMOYS J3WNSUBD $3pINS J01I51A JO Jaquinu

ul uonedpiyed apn]Iul 0] JUSWIAINSEIW ‘SMOYS

y8noy) Suo8up Jawnsugd e 3ouasasd yoea)

v sJaAng

sawop yum duy wyd 19ew

% 00T -ul (1) auo 1soy pue dojaaaq
Jaguiadag uy 08aig ues ul pjay aq

03 afueyax3z A3snpu| [aAeJL 3l 18 Jjels yum jedidnued o) pallaul a1am siaulied epeasn SMOUYS

apeJ; [9ARJ] 1R 20uasasd e wmed

-Juana Aep-auo ayj papuane siaAng g Aj21ewnxosddy "ylLT JBQWISAON A3Y [2Q BULIE UI o1 sseuped Joy sanuniioddo

%0S P2y 1UaAa SHUBY ] SAAID BPBABN|SARI L JOA3-15J1) 31 40} sn pauiof siauned epeasn Ayl |[eUQINPPE OM] 31R34)

%08

JeaA-rano-aeah ‘moys Jad
%2 AQ SPE3| apeJl |aAel] 15009




aded| et

Ajuap) auzedew ay) djay uea
840 1ey] |12unod AI0SIAPE Ue 3)eals)

SMOUS '8 SJUBAJ JO
*1aquIalaq JO §2am ,,7 5524d 01 0F |pm | SUOISIIA LIAYLIOU pUE UIBYINOS
%08 | LT0Z Aenugag/Arenuer ‘painquisip ;g paysignd uaaq sey auizeSew 1aquiazag/iaquancy | ayl yioq anquIsIp pue 3anpoud

sapingd jendip auyuo ySnoayy

SE ||aMm SB gl auzedepepeaan
PUB WO BPEAINIBARI] JO S13SN
"AJenuer jo 3sJiy ay) peojdn Joj ajgejieae | 01 3jqepIeAE S| Jey) aping s5,Joysia

%001 aq {|iM UISIaA |BNBIP B4 pue 9T0¢ ‘ZZ 12qua2ag uo ssaud 0] 03 ||1m 3pIND S J0NSIA ay3 Jo uoisian [eNSIp e aonpoayd
25BN 45

0S8'LLTS LTOT S3|eSs 3pING SIOUSIA JeaA-1an0-1e3A BpINS SIDYISIA

%St 00S'04TS$ 9T0T S3|eS BpIND SIONSIA | 3y Ul SUISINBADE 2J0W %0T I35

Jead yoed jo
9T "UB[ 210430 JO UQ LONNQUISIP
L10Z ‘ST 581N5U3 1Y) auijatul} ay) yum
%00T Aenuer Aq painquisip aq [im pue 9T0Z ‘ZT Jaqwiadag Jo aiep ssasd e sey aping s 1olisip | apind sionsia jenuue ayy ysigng

s3)ep anss| pajsod ay)
0} Joud yluow 3yl JO 33am 1SE)
"J3qwiada( Jo y3am 7 ssaid o) o |im £TOZ Aensgad/Aenuer ay: vonnguIsIp yum ‘euizedew
%08 "pajlew 13 paysijgnd uaaq sey suizeSew Jaquadag/laquanoN Alyauow-iq ays ysyand

ISEIIIUI % § JESA-IN0-IBD)
£55°95$ 91 23@/AON
8EV'ESS ST 23Q/A0N
799'59S$ 91 WVO/1das

T18'29% ST R0/ 1des
JeahA-isno-Jeah

jeod 03 %09 o6 Ag s3jes Suisiuaape aseasdu|

{81ep-03-seah)
[eon 03 unpelt (1211enb sad) Ayanoy Id)

:(s1d)) s103e21pu| SduEWIOjIad Ad)y

SUIZEJEA EPEASN



sdedl]yr

%05

UOISSILL JO MOYS 3y} JO pua ay)
JO %23M 3UO UIYNM SIEYD AICYIIBL
3y} 03 a)NquIsIP pue spea) yoesL

suadxa
124w 3leisul woly Indul Suunsua
ued uoijealae eipuj ue dojaaag

0Z/v ‘lenpiapu)
%00T :dul dnouo

‘(4aquiazag) odxan wouy
dnoid a1snw QD Yyum 100oys o3oyd 4Q 01153 Yl U0 WeS] SSES Y YUM Payiom

'513)JBW |BUOIIEUIIIUI
1ySi2 woyy sdas eipaw pz Yum sinoj ssald JwWwng wsuno) |eqo|o piaH

‘(1aquiidas) dug dnoud ueipeue) ((1aqwaldas)
Mmaud AL uelzesg ‘(1aquialdas) sisijeuwsnol ueljesisny !(a1aquaydas) J23301q youal4

Jugh
Jad sduny ssaud jenpipul (paipenb)
0z 01 dn pue dnoJg auo 19npuo)

L1007 Yy2e Apea ‘Aenuga4-piw ul duy euly) e Joj AeMmiapun ase sue|d

(uoissiw 031xa 8yl 01 uonIppe ui)
J9)JEW [BUOIIBUIIUI UR 0] UDISSIW
S3|BS PaJ0suUOds-epeAaN[aARL]

B 12npuol pue AJi3uap|

"esefejepent) pue A)) 02X Yl0g Ul SIUBAI
Buluans eipaw/sajes pue ‘siauped Aay yum Sun@aw auo-uo-auQ ‘suoejuasaad
juade |2ael] Suipn|au] 0J1X3|A 0) UOISSI|A] SI|ES EPEASN P3INJaXa pue pauue|d

uolssiw

%00T S3|BS 0JIXD N |ENUUE JONPUO)
{a3ep-o03-aeak)

jeog 03 Suppdea) {1214enb J3d) Ananoy N IdM

(SidN} s103e31pU| PIUBWLIOLSd AD))|

UOREISIA [EUOIIBUIAIU| DA T

s3ydisul |elsoyipa apiaoad
pue saunuoddo anuasals mau




afed|st

%001

‘easoy ‘euly) wouy sao1es3do Jnoy doy pue sdas Aiqunoa-up ano Juipnjaul ojdoad
87 Jo papnpul diuy wey syt ,'Wweg ainieN pue sxyied, Pajiil JN0Y uoezLIelIWe)
32U3J3ju02-34d JUIWNSG WSUNG] [eqO|D) SJOUIAADD B Paziuedio epeAsn|aAes |

HWLWING WsUNo| |eqojo s Jo0Ut3A09
|enuuE 343 1B JUIAD adejdiaxeln)
EPRAIN Y} JINPUOI PUE 31BUIPICOT)

%05

"INo) 131dodi|aH uoAue) puess) uoljiided 3 Jajjoy YSiH ‘sinol

31poo4 Supdewsdn) ‘seBapsepaads ‘weq 13A00H ‘uoAue) yaelg pausia dnoad
341 'SBUINIY pAaun woly aallejuasaldal e pue sjuade (SAeS ZT JO PAISISUOD NV
3YL "seaA e Ul SeM VS BUIYD S3UNY PAIUN/YSN PUBIg 9TOZ ‘SZ-2Z 19G031I0

aoye) axeq g Aud elwdna ‘Aajjep

uosie) ‘ouay ‘Bunisia aq |im dnosl ayy ‘v eSa ayl jo 1ed aq o3 spuale pz
133195 sauljay e}(8g pPUe SN puelg zi 0 dnodd ai) woud Isie1ads ysn awodaq
sjuage |anes) A3y zy 21aym wesdoud isiiedads sn Suopiead e suni easoy ysn puesg
"WV4 Y1 Jo Led 3q 0] PalI@|as 2J9M 20ye] 3HET '3 BPRAIN UIAYMON ‘W4 eFan
Isienads ysn e Sulp|oy aq [iim SaulIy e312a/vSN PueJg 1910z ‘T 190 -2 1das

"0udy pue aoye] e o} Jay1ad03 BuIW0D Wayl YIMm 56 AMH
SMOY||0} 3UC puUB £6 AMH SMOJ|0) duQ "seSap Se7 U] 1Ie)S Y10g ‘pualle 0] $3IYJ0 pue
s12Ang |euonewIIUL INO JO) NWWING WSLINO) |2GOIS 2y} 40§ Stwey-a1d om} paIsoH

Jauenb sad 23u0 JsB3)
1e duj uonezueliwe) 31eI5U) UB ISOH

‘uoijejnojed Jeai-jo-pu3

SUOISSIL SI|ES JO JJNSaJ B SE JedA
-13A0-Je3A SPES| AI0W YT 10§ AL




sdeqd|ot

%05

‘sjuawiuiodde Ayyenb

JO 3INpaYIs |y E peY pue S3|BS PUE Y Y10F JO) SIAIIRIUSIIdSI JUDS EPRASN|DARIL
*§S3UISN JINPUOD PUe Y10M]3U ‘133w 0] 1aylew |aaed] [eqo)s ay) 10y Ajluniioddo
anbiun e sapiaosd pue sjeuoissajold [aael) [RUCIIBULIZIU| PUE YN ASY JO 28uel

3pim e Bunuasaad JuaAl ss3ujsN( 03 SSBUISNY PuUalle 1SN e S ) "Ansnpul |aaeJ)

33 404 SIUDAS [eqO|S SuIpEa) AYY JO BUO S1 UOPUOT LA "YADAT 24T 1M JoNgIYxa
-0 € SBM pue g/0T-£/0T UCPUOT U) 1BYIBWN |9ARI] PO DY) PSPUBIIE BPRASN[BABL]

a1 pue (LM}

19BNl [2ARI] PHOM ‘Md] 1ISED| JEB
Suipnjour smoys speJ) |euoijeusajul
Jolew e epeaap Juasalsday

%05

‘9T/LT/6 U0 Yaunjyl Ul 3210 sdaleiny a3yl 18 AUBLLIBD BPRASN|SABIL UUM 13N

'9T/6T/6 U0 Sued uj 32140 sdaJeiny DY) I8 3Juel4 BPEABNSARIL YIM 1D

BIP3W pUe 3pel] |9Aed)

ay3 ‘swuy das 3yl yum 133w 01
Jead Jad azuo 1583 12 19)Jew/adlyo
|EUCHIBUIBIUI YIBS HISIA

%05

Zig epeaaN|aALs ) uo pajsod
aJe swiiy das jeuoiyeusajul ayl Aq
papiacsd suodas Apauenb aunsu3

Buodug

210°BPRASN|SARI] UO 150 “Jaliq
12)Jew jenuvue ue dojaaap o} swuy
aA11e3us31dal 13)JBL-UI YUM SO

-aae|diajiew Janddns/iadng, ay) Jo Led ag 01 NLWNS WSUNG] (80|
siouwsaaog) ayj Je 3uiysiuy AJID eiBIIA pue BOUSD ‘3SINID JBUUIP 135UNS 30YEeL
e ed LIS I0YE] e, BIUBWY Ul peoy 1S3YSUn,, 9yl ssosde dul v ‘peoi)iey
UJ3YLON EpeASN 3yl Suipu ‘1n0) aae) uewyal “jsed |[guonen uiseg 1ealo ‘28109
Jespayie) ‘pes 3ye] ‘aid Jo Agjep ‘seSap seq pasds ‘anoj sa1dodijsy uojded

e se yans syydysiy papnpoul pue sedap seq ur pareuduo duj ayy ‘spugayiaN

3yl pue pue|eaz Map ‘wop3ury pajlun ‘epeue) ‘elensny ‘Auewag ‘aduely ‘elpu)




aded| LT

%0S

"sje1aads 3upjooq Buiia)jo esopesadQ 19816 Yiim uonde O3 |jed Iselq

Jlewa ue pajeald osje edwelsiin g "S19|aAL) ABDI|OY O3IXAA JNO YIIM 15004 € 3)eaud
dj3y |iim pue SaNIANDE J3JUIM UO Paseq S| [BLI0LISAPE 3y J3GLUIDAON JO Yjuow

ay3 Joj pajeass sem edwelsing g YSn puesg woly |erousape Aejuswydwod v

siseq

|ENUUE Ue uo sJapjoysels/siauned
01 paAaauad aJe s3nsal

pue 3jqeainseaw aJe swesSoud

l|B 34nSud 0} YSnpuesg yim 3Jom

saImae jeuoljowold J13y3o

pue smoys apeJ) ‘sduileaw Je pasn
pue paIngLIsIp [eJaze||od dunxiewl
pue sajes ||e ojul pajesodiodu)

S| puelq epeasy syl ainsu3l

5340439 Suplaysew pue sajes
{euojjeusalut ay} woJy Suwals
S}NsaJ pue spea| ‘saijlanoe Jo uodal
jenuue ue aanquIs|p pue dojaaaq




sded|gt

13313|5M3U
-3 pasnaoj-Adisnpul Ajyjuow
%0T "JUaS Spewa /£ — S159 uo SNJoj Aldaend -1 e 31nquISIp pue dojaaq

21’ epeAan|9ARL ]
03 pajsod ||e yum — s3ul1ayo
|euoneanpa auuo Apayenb

%0 15e3] 1B 5J24J0 PPRASN[ARL ]
o O R T jeuod Anisnput ue
%S¢ 0ju| padojanap si ZI EPEARN|BARIL

T:5 15€3) e JO spunj asay]

40 104 241 MOYs JBY] SWsiueylaw
Hupyoesy syesdayu swesdosd

v/N Sunaxsew ul unedidied siaulied

Jeah-sano-lesh

oG 1Se3| 1e saseatou) swesdosd
epeaap|aael) u Sunediped
v/ sJaupied jo Jaquinu ayj

{a1ep-o03-ueah)
jeoD 03 3uppdely {1230enb Jad) AlAnioy Id}

{std)) s1o3eaipu) 2auewaopad Ay

sdiyssauped 3soog g



oded| el

1odas

A Asenuer uj juud Joj ‘Juawdo@asp v | jenuue ue anguIsIp pue dojaaag
yiuow yaea

1oday pasni0y-1auoissILIWo?)

%57 Jaquaidag pue isn8ny ‘Ajnr oy painguisip 0T uo Ot doy e a1ngu3sip pue dojanag

pauljIno se andax3z
‘ugjd ~'sueapy WSUNO| SUO0ISSaS
70 U1 padojanap aq oL aA1e|5183] 6T-8TA4 dOjaAQ

pau3No se pajnaaxa pue ‘910z
‘T uer aJ0jaq Jo uo uejd uopoe

%ST paja|dwod s)se3 1D juawadeuew uonendals yei)
{a1ep-031-aEDA)
jecs 03 Supjoel) (4331enb aad) Ayanoy Id¥

(s1d)) s103e21pU| dueLIIOIg Ad)

anjep Aaauo) pue ajeasy p



cded|oT

dde ajiqow ayj yaune| pue 32dwod

JJawwins ayl Sulnp pajjeisul aq ||im
SUBIS “JWWNS WSLNO| |Bqo|D ay3 18 suBISap ay) pajiaAun Jousaog ay] "payajdwod sudis
suBis mau 1sod pue sanpoad
%06 1s3]u0d udis AemAalud JPINpuo)

*sadpo| yJed |euorjeu
pue ajels ppng 03 Auedwod 3wi3po|
v/N e SuiAyiuapl Joy) yiomawedy dojaaag

321095

Jte Supueyus 03 Sujuielsad sanss)
diyssauped pue Adjod ‘ssauisng auy)
SS21ppe 01 9240} 5} Jusawdojaaap
%0 321AI3S JIB BpIMI)R]S B 3leal)

auino ajuduadxa

J0YISIA pue sjuawaja Bulpuriq
Suipnpou ‘uisap [enul 2)ea12

- juawdojanapal eate 1594 Suneiul

< — —— - —_ Joj |eaotdde aanejsida) uieg
{a1ep-01-4e3A) e
|eos) 03 Bupjdesy (4ouienb Jad) Auanay | .

{sid)} s103ea1pu) 2aUBWIONId AD)

JANPnjsesju] asueyug g



aded| iz

‘PaIndaxa 317 AV
Yum aseaq "panciddy (pardadxl) 308 JaqUUISAON UO ases| - adeds 3dljjosedapse] e

paInoax3 asean

sjelalew
|J31))02 WISIINO] JO UOISIAIQ 3INGIASIP 0F 138JJU0D MBN — J3P|04 PAUIIE) e

saijod
Buiseyaund 31e1S Yiim asueldwod

%S¢ u{ P31IeJIUOD SIOPUSA [BUIDIXD |V
(91ep-03-123A)
jeoq 03 Suppoel) {1230enb Jad) Aoy 1dY

(51d)) s103e31pu| 23uewiopad Aay

Ssaulsng IAdayj ue uny °9



sdegd|zL

%EE

saJnpadoad
pue sapyod AJuade yum
Ajdwod pue puelsiopun s1ayels ||V

‘gT 32 P8y 8q 0 Funnasw Jeis 0

i L Sy 1HUw ¥l

Jauenb
Jad a5uo0 pjay s3unasw Jeis-||v

%05

198pNq 6T-8TA4 241 Yead 0} 331440 198png
ay) se ||am Se yJ1Q Ul ul SaUaFe (|2 YIim uoIIeIogqe| |03 Ul S3NUIIU0D JJ0M Juedijiudis

1a8pnq
pancadde uiynm saresado Aduady

%05

198pnq
paai8e ulylim SI0pUdA 0) JuawAed

%09

saaijod
pue 13e1juod Yyum Juawudije
ul paajdwod Buissanoud anoau|

dep 21815 =
{pasea|al spiq Jukid




b d
NEVAD A WORLD WITHIN,
A STATE APART.
REVADA COMHISSIOK ON TOURISH | TRAYELKEVADA COM

Tourism Means More

Strategic Plan Initiative: Create and Convey Value
Public Affairs Plan

Overview

The Division of Tourism {TravelNevada) FY16-17 strategic plan outlines six key agency initiatives, one of
which is “Create and Convey Value.” This initiative is designed to heighten awareness of travel and
tourism as the state’s leading economic engine through helping all stakeholders understand the
importance of the tourism industry and its capacity to create jobs, drive the economy, generate a global
brand for the state and enhance the quality of life for all Nevadans.

TravelNevada has achieved proven results in driving tourism throughout Nevada. Providing a series of
strategic programs and activities to support these efforts as well as those undertaken by in-state
partners, the state has realized increased traveler visits year-over-year through rural grant programs,
aggressive marketing and public relations campaigns, comprehensive and interactive social media
campaigns and through the development of tools and resources designed to attract both domestic and
international visitors.

TravelNevada, in collaboration with partners like The Abbi Agency as part of the integrated marketing
team, will execute a strategy to inform, educate and engage in-state partners and influencers, the
critical audiences, as part of a robust awareness campaign. This will be accomplished through the
creation and employment of communication platforms and opportunities that highlight the overall
impact of the industry, the efforts of the statewide partners and the agency's achievements.

TravelNevada understands this initiative will work most effectively if the programs undertaken by the
agency are operating at the highest possible level. Trust among all constituent groups is imperative for
this initiative to be successful.

The following plan outlines the programs and timeline for helping the agency to Create and Convey
Value of the Nevada tourism industry and TravelNevada.

Goals
® Raise awareness of the value of the Nevada tourism industry in creating jobs, driving the
economy and raising the global brand perception of Nevada.



e Help legislators and other influencers understand the importance of retaining revenue-
generating dollars in revenue-generated activities, while identifying solutions for innovative
financing of other agencies.

e Enhance relationships between TravelNevada and its key constituents.

Strategies

To achieve these goals, The Abbi Agency will execute an omni-channel public relations campaign rooted
in a microsite as a central hub of information and communications. The campaign will be supported by
digital marketing efforts, proactive public relations outreach and an emphasis on external
communications. A more in-depth look at the strategy is below:

Digital Outreach - Through an engaging and informative microsite all campaign tools, such as a video,
infographics, links to resources, and annual recap, will together provide an engaging, informative, and
shareable experience. The information will be shareable ensuring that stakeholders, legislators and
Nevada citizens are able to educate themselves about tourism and its impact within the state of Nevada.

Influencers Outreach - Identify those to whom the messaging will be conveyed within the key audiences
and prioritize according to sphere and potential; identify opportunities to engage with influencers.
Engagement with influencers will occur through a series of personal outreach such as one-to-one and
event attendance, as well as digitally via newsletters and social media.

External Communications - Create opportunities for consistent public appearances and media coverage
that generate awareness in the tourism industry’s position as an economic engine; develop and employ
a two-way communication tool for TravelNevada and in-state partners to maintain constant contact and
communications with the following messages; coalesce educational messaging, agency RCI numbers,
and economic statistics derived from proprietary and secondary research sources, highlighting the value
of the industry and accomplishments of TravelNevada based on proven resuits.

Message
Due to recognition of the campaign, hashtag and branding, the agency will use the pre-existing “Tourism
Means More” campaign brand throughout the evolution and implementation of this campaign.

Target Audiences
While there are many important audiences that TravelNevada communicates to on a regular basis, for
the purpose of this campaign, the agency will focus all communications and outreach on reaching

influencers directly. TravelNevada will employ a variety of communication tools to reach the following
audience.

Influencers inciude elected officials statewide, Federal agencies that provide grants and oversight of
arts, history and cultural entities, and statewide vertical industry partners, e.g. Chambers of Commerce,
Economic Development organizations, regional marketing groups, municipality governance
organizations.



While legislators are the primary audience, the media throughout the state are a second target. The
media across the state helps to inform and educate residents and legislators thoughts and opinions on
TravelNevada as well as the great tourism industry in the state.

Tactics by Audience
TravelNevada will achieve its objectives and reach its defined audience through the following tactical
elements:

Audience: Influencers

TravelNevada will define the individuals and leaders who comprise this informed group of decision
makers. This group includes and is not limited to: state legislators, political action groups, travel and
marketing industry associations and co-operatives, economic development regional agencies, county
commissioners, city mayors and managers.

Identify influencers by organization type, sphere
Work to develop key legislative initiatives that TravelNevada can employ with influential
politicians.

® Key legislative initiatives for the 2017 Nevada legislative session includes meeting and arranging
one-on-one meetings with new legislators as well as current legislative advocates to provide
education on TravelNevada’s initiatives and impact.

e Define and schedule industry association speaking engagements involving associations, civic
groups, business organizations, etc. throughout the state of Nevada.
Identify and apply for award opportunities for TravelNevada.
Define a selective list of events in Reno/Carson, Las Vegas and rural Nevada TravelNevada can
attend to connect with local representatives.

e Educate each community through developed collateral and messages informing them of the
programs, effectiveness and vision of TravelNevada.

e Create and implement a bi-monthly newsletter to these influencers with updates on
TravelNevada activities

e Create and distribute electronic and print copies of infographics and an annual report, all with
the message Tourism Means More, to legislators.

e Create a video with testimonials of the immensely positive impact of Nevada’s tourism on
Nevada’s economy and residents.

e Execute a stunt on Nevada Tourism Day in the Legislative Session, TBD based on day assigned by
legislature.

e Enhance TravelNevada.biz to provide messaging and opportunities for partners to help convey
consistent information regarding the tourism and hospitality industries.

¢ Pursue highly visible opportunities for TravelNevada and key constituents {Commissioners,
brand champions} to participate in meetings and in special appearances that offer opportunities
to interact and influence key stakeholders in the public and private sectors.



e TravelNevada will provide training to the industry to enhance understanding of the legislative
outreach process.

Secondary audience: Media

The statewide media must be informed as to the value of the industry to help ensure the stories written
represent the true picture. The media can be a tremendous partner if they have the stories, insights and
vision required for them to consider TravelNevada a trusted source.

e Identify a list of key media and outlets in Nevada that have potential for conveying the tourism
business message.

Develop an editorial calendar that builds a strategic framework for messaging and story pitches.
Coordinate and host two regional media mixers per year allowing the media to meet with
TravelNevada and industry champions.

Plan and execute deskside meetings as needed with key TravelNevada representatives.

Provide rigorous media training to any TravelNevada representatives who will be speaking with
media.

e Craft and publish a series of op-eds and other expert positioning pieces focused on high-level
topics that are currently trending in Nevada. Work with TravelNevada to draft thoughtful,
impactful responses.

e Work with in-state journalists to highlight the state’s programs and year-over-year results
through data-driven storytelling in up to ten {10) pieces in a mix of the state’s media outlets.

Key Messages

e The tourism industry employs more than 474,000 Nevadans, offering jobs at all levels of
professional growth as well as entrepreneurial opportunities and jobs for retirees. This makes
up roughly 30% of Nevada’s workforce.

e Travel and Tourism (including hospitality and gaming) continues to be Nevada’s leading
economic engine. In 2015, just over 55 million travelers visited Nevada {up 2.9 percent over
2014), with Las Vegas experiencing record-breaking attendance at more than 42 million visitors.

® Just over 13% of Nevada's GDP is attributed to the travel industry.

Travelers visiting Nevada last year spent $62.2 billion, a year-over-year increase of $3 billion.

e For every 51 TravelNevada spends on marketing and advertising, it generates $77 in local and
state tax revenue.

e TravelNevada offers $1.4 million in marketing grants for rural communities per year, and
$100,000 in infrastructure grants for infrastructure improvements every other year.

e Tourism affects the entire state, not just metropolitan areas. Elko saw a 22 percent room tax
revenue increase from 2011 to 2013. Over the past four years, room tax revenue has remained
steady at an increase of 9 percent.

e TravelNevada is one of the only state entities to generate money for the General Fund each year
without drawing any money off of it.

e The state of Nevada has a statewide room tax of 1 percent, TravelNevada receives 3/8ths of the
tax and 5/8ths is returned to the local convention and visitors bureau or fair/recreation board to
spend locally.



¢ TravelNevada's marketing support has helped increase airlift to North Nevada by five flights in
FY 2015/2016, and at least three additional planned flights for FY 2016/2017.

e TravelNevada’s marketing is impactful. 61% of people exposed to a TravelNevada
advertisement, owned page/image, social media chatter or article/stories/blogs are able to
recall them, of that 47% of people said they are extremely likely to visit Nevada overnight in the
future.

Evaluation
TravelNevada will track its resuits through the following key performance indicators (KPIs):

e Enhanced commitment from lawmakers and decision makers to retain agency’s budget.

® Increased support among state influencers through shared information and advocacy of
TravelNevada and its programs.

e Scheduling and pursuit of twenty (20) meetings with lawmakers and influencers (conducted by
champions outside of the TravelNevada staff).

e Eight (8) secured speaking engagements for TravelNevada leadership among political, industry
and regional groups.

e Secured placements in ten (10) state-based media outlets on TravelNevada efforts, programs
and achievements.

Travel Nevada will measure these efforts in conjunction with work done by the TravelNevada team and
Commissioners on whether or not legislation changed in a more favorable manner.

Timeline
May 2016

e Done: Outline plan/budget — Abbi, Marty, Bethany

e Done: Begin content collection for microsite, infographics - Abbi

e Done: Define decision makers to align with and schedule meetings - Abbi
June 2016

» Done: Research and launch other paid-content opportunities (i.e. This is Reno) — Abbi and
Bethany

July 2016
¢ Done: Media relations outreach begins and continues throughout entire campaign — Abbi
e Done: Research/gathering of all incumbent Nevada legislators - Abbi

August 2016
e Done: IFC Meeting, August 23: Talking points provided, letter to be provided - Abbi
* Done: Messages outlined for annual report — Abbi and Bethany (Claudia has suggested some
input)
¢ Done: Refine messaging around TravelNevada's return-on-investment and KPIs — Abbi, Marty,
Bethany



e  ONGOING: Execute meetings with key decision makers and lawmakers when needed - Abbi and
Bethany
e Done: Create inserts in NNBW and Jon Ralston’s The Flash— Abbi and Bethany

September 2016
e DONE: Continued coordination of NNBW and The Flash inserts — Abbi
¢ ONGOING: Exploration of PAC begins — Abbi
e Exploration of standing booth at Nevada legislature begins - Abbi

October 2016

e Provide media training for TravelNevada spokespersons — Marty

» Editorial calendar is created for external communications {Newsletter, press releases, social
media, op-eds) — Abbi and Bethany
DONE: October 10: Northern Nevada Business Weekly insert goes live — Bethany and Abbi
DONE: October 15: The Flash advertising insert goes live - Bethany and Abbi
Microsite map developed, to live on travelnevada.biz — Abbi and Marty (out of existing Fahlgren
digital budget)

¢ ONGOING: Execute meetings with key decision makers and lawmakers — Claudia

November 2016
* Microsite content developed — Abbi
Video storyboarded- Abbi (out of existing budget or TN's internal P.A. budget)
Monthly newsletter communications begin to zll elected legislators - Bethany and/or Abbi
ONGOING: Execute meetings with key decision makers and lawmakers — Claudia
Op-ed outreach begins — Abbi
Microsite to go live — Abbi and Marty
Shareable social graphics with stats are created and sent to TravelNevada — Abbi (out of TN's
internal Public Affairs budget)

December 2016

e Review Governcr's Recommended Budget to refine messaging — Abbi, Marty, and Bethany

e ONGOING: Execute meetings with key decision makers and lawmakers — Claudia

® ONGOING: Monthly newsletter communications continues to all elected legislators - Bethany
and/or Abbi
Ask grant recipients to send thank you letters to legislators — Abbi
Plan Tourism Day at the Legislature (Feb. 15) — Abbi, Marty, Bethany, Claudia
Annual Report is finalized — Abbi and Fahlgren

January 2017
e Mail TravelNevada annual report to all legislators — Claudia
e ONGOING: Execute meetings with key decision makers and lawmakers — Claudia



Mail infographic 1 to legislators — Claudia
ONGOING: Monthly newsletter communications continues to all elected legislators - Bethany
and/or Abbi

e Second phase of op-ed campaign begins - Abbi

February 2017
® ONGOING: Execute meetings with key decision makers and lawmakers — Claudia
® Execute Tourism Day at the Legislature — Feb. 15 - ALL
e Mail infographic 2 to legislators — Claudia
¢ ONGOING: Monthly newsletter communications continues to all elected legislators Bethany
and/or Abbi

March 2017
¢ ONGOING: Execute meetings with key decision makers and lawmakers — Claudia
¢ ONGOING: Monthly newsletter communications continues to all elected legislators Bethany
and/or Abbi

April 2017
® ONGOING: Execute meetings with key decision makers and lawmakers — Claudia
® ONGOING: Monthly newsletter communications continues to all elected legislators Bethany
and/or Abbi

May 2017
® Measure effectiveness of campaign — Abbi and Marty






TravelNevada
Public Relations

Among the results of our pre-GTS American Indian media
familiarization tour in October, Nevada was on the cover
of the monthly travel insert for Folha de Sao Paulo, the
largest newspaper in Brazil. Folha is the main print
vehicle in Brazil and also has a strong online presence
(total print and online audience is 20 million per month).

We also expect a story soon in O Globo newspaper, a
leading publication in Rio de Janeiro. The paper publishes
a travel section weekly, and enjoys a monthly audience
of 14.3 million.



7 £ AU R B oA Y RS - ;%
-“'...-x- & : . == : 3 j ..‘- s t-j = “-'- Eerprghra

0O Estado onde fica Las Vegas é também o lugar de parques naturais com desertos e lagos gigantescos,
cidadezinhas que lembram filmes de bangue-bangue e atragdes que vao muito além dos cassinos - inamsste sasor

Y

AMADD B Ao horzone

Sive ot

(et al Ak sl e

LTl s 2XSEMJUROS




D2 turisme *

¥ % QUINTA-FEIRA. 1° DE DEZEMBRO DE 2516

SOBREVOO

n l-h\ CALMA A :
do Estado & ln:nvll

£VEAGEN
T |

lnh.
dl i

L

T

FARAHA

FOLHADES PALLO

l:ur& fod um dos destines escolludu peln lniunln uam Anknsqul. &8, p:n passar as férlas, em mmhru deste ano: "A costa este
nita mnqullldad: e 0 s0l & garantide’, vonta ele, que § fol duas vezes a0 local a passedn; veja mals lmagens em foltu. com/turismo

Marco das Trés Frontedras (PR) éreaberto  AGENDA
0 Complexo Turfstico Maro Coma rud:a!lu;in adiea DEZEMBRO
das Trs F loeatiza- de de onle & posst: Inauguracle
doemFozdolpuaqu{PRynadi-  vel ver o pr do sol, serd am-  deexpasiciodo artista
visacuma ArgentinasoPara.  pllata. Além disso, serd cria.  plisticn Alex Flemming
guai, serd reinauguradonase- oy uma vila cenogrifics que 13 Biblicteca Mirio de
mla. quinzena ue L M" a arg e po- tmmmms:nm
r h voudos Il 1 o f 5
em outubrode 2015, parjesul fculos 17 e s, e nete
o mlndpall simbolo da lo O complexo terd alnda o= andnimos do lugar, mais
cal § um obel isco elt\.l.ldo em  1ras airagdes, como um show ghvhi
1907 que b limi- ded 1! I Lo =
:e tenitorial do Bmﬂ ﬂ'lll Te- lmmi".ﬁmwmm'
agdo 208 outros dois palses,  rante, O valor da eirada ain- EZE
que também 1ém monumen-  danicloldefinido. Moradores @ Dmm..ﬂgno
1 doM; das Teés Fronteiras, em Foz do l]u:cn 108 préprios. de Foz do Igeagu ndo pagam.
trenolo da Feira da Providincha,
B4, inbnnas op;des de Riode
Lazer, uma nica cubindria £ um . L Jasekro, que
pova educada £ um desting FRECALCAD ‘. APP mummacﬁe:;mﬂlmrauo
Extiemaments mlerelsante ¢ erta
et Turquia emile alerta de viagem para os EUA NA BAGA u“"‘m"“‘““““um “f"“
mm_ & vagem aindalem um Apés 2 onda de protestos an-  fisicasd ¢ A partis de R$ 9; mais:
Bpeks emocional poriu ox: u-Trump nes Estados Unidos, :aclsumpalumano. feitadaprovidencla org br
descendente de japoneses o Ministério das Relacnu Ex- Dministériocitou o caso de O Exploser & un apleabiva onada pelo
terlores da Turqui, um um folbalea: Musgu de Hritdrip Hatural de Nova York
Py alerta aos eidada lonodiaiie it (EUA) que ajuda visitantes a conhec et 1 DEZEMBRO
""-7-"-:.' Ful prefendem vmu!m pats  dadede Porttand, emou-gnn. 0 lugar de uma forma mais interativa Expressa
= A ouwrmmpotl quesejam  durante um protesta, Com ede. & possivel comprar ngreysos tusdstico da CPTM realiza
Lt — 3 e adotem mex. 09 Estados Upidos 1am- sem filas, saber cartosidades sobee viagem até o Festival de
San Andreés (Colémbia) deagummmnnmm bém emitram um alera para o1 dmmich eapeaic, realizas testes Orquideas, em. das
Apetar de sar um bugar muty O3 mativos para a declara- o3 americancs, ho Aim de ou- de conhecimeno & tontas yrn roteito Cruzes {Grande $), a
bonta, nda tem inlraestrutura ¢lo, segundo o drglo, foram  rubro, sobre 2 ameaga de ata- personahizacs pelo muses 18 45 {ida o volia) mais
adequady para receber unsiay 03 episbiios de violdnda nas  quesiervorisias paTurqula, te RoME Exploryr me'nm g
Asmobilidade urbana da itha ¢ I B [ lando g ih PLATATORMA And e ¢ 1T
ruzm, abém de e 4 nimerad verbalse  semos riscos de viajar parali. Guanto grivs

consepund mfurm‘bﬂwru
Foratsio, no k.

e bquet haspe:ladnalo
inha dgus guente

[ cttpumiznta em idr

m it ‘ﬂ-‘-mmm rimogtycupsotha com,

“immmnhmvhmu-dhu“mq

am A

O "Era Uma VeZ' é agora...
para realizar o sonho Disney!

EMATE

10X

Grupos Fantastic Lazer ¢ Compras Grupo Teen&School
Comadiad holel 8 taro i Wen st P
""" T bt Mir, Vi, =Ty v nil:h_si-iq_xn_"_'o
v ded sy ks 1. oaleflpudn
“1.._; by r T
m?..“: """"‘"'"""""]10)«.5;133

E:"

Gl br iy acurryparhams dosde 2 leost
» Linpart vagas Wil Min
A g

T

34 Ko Travfl ot ing rram na iyt
ABAnr b HS L R
BT s i, Diwey Wagaa
s Manmra L

hparir iy

J_m
L 90X Uss 307 =iz

Hetraerynisyeldinbie ey areteiyted




D4 turismo %tk quUINtA FEIRA, L* DE DEZEMBRO DE 2015

& {romanl Street
em [as Vigas,
colierta por um

Cassino cede espaco paralazer a céu aberto

FOLHA DES.PALLD

o

‘Capital da jogatina’, Las Vegas ganha atragGes que ndo envolvem apostas para agratlar jovens avessos a caga-niquels

— — - "7 7 | Parque, todedos, shows  para o dltimos més do ano  diffci) de se vet no centro de
¢ apresentagBes de apresentagies de oultas &5-  Sdo Paslo ou do Rio.
trelas do eletsfnlco, como  Nenhuma aposta ali € be-
mli el;‘;‘ﬂ:lll’uﬁ“ . Calvin Hariis e Tiastes, nemerente: nO ehotessn de
calen eevenins o, Comprou
CENTRODAS ATENGOES tertenczda teghio, enquanta
3 iduieamerns Uma outsa Vegas resiste, olerectaincentivos adezenas
mesmo dl das zonas  de negboios para abriz $uas
CHIco FEUTTE mais turfsticas. O Attique Al- - portas ali, Um dos exessplos
W ENVIAPOCLRECEAL &A1 TEGAY ley, ou beco das antigulda:  mals vistosos & o Conlainer
e, des, é um exemplode negd-  Park, shopping formado pot
w11 E Y Ummédioqueabrigmvaes:  clolocalquesobrevivedsom-  contlineses, comlojas locals
,.l : '-r‘-_\\ cifiGeivsde cassinosnaSuip,  bra das luzesdos os.  que ofesecem bacon felia 3
3 avenida tenlstica de Las Ve Aslojasvendemiefugosdo 3o vy fantasias politica-
TR o gasondes= concentrzajoga-  que sobroy das casas de jo  mente corretas paracriangas.
’ - una, além de uma repody.  gosapbsasconstantestefor-  Para nuem gosia de aven
¢30 datorre Eilfel e uma pl: - mas —umareproducdodole-  tura, bl a Fremont Street, co-
TALANDIA CANCUN NAVIO MONARCH rimidedoEgtocenogtifica, treiro da cdade custa USS  berta por um tetode uzes de
THAI BOUTIOUE Parte terrmiiee com traslise de  CARIBE LENDARIO Taz mirues fol a0 chio. 5000 (em tomode R$17mill.  LED alucinantes. Como na
e etTal s s Teaite It Nasceu no lugat dele um Al petta Nica o centro de  Strlp, os cassinos ali nunca
Do o | MmeshenChenCrered | paiue{uosimulagodeum  Vegas. que seteeruedepols  fecham, pot mals que sejam
Bethothm, T ow Chung o o Toim  dubushehics fevingim Do ol puoraiimon . parue, ¥ queestamot [alan-  de décadas de decaddncla.  menos sofisticadas, coma su-
Chiang Mad som tH dn iemd) el lTORT. Apsrrde do de Vegas. onde tudo é 2 Tony Heleh, presidentedosl-  asopgoes gasiondmicas —o
ity eyl 1Y Seds 2057008 Jmitagio de algopeom alan:  te de venda de sapatos Zap-  testatsamte Heart Autack, o
bl ribl e B L ) ¥ Aprmiy chonele Shake Shack, bares,  pos, levoupataaregiiones  Indarto, em portuguds, ofcre-
Cuse S0 Do tdjsn. b D mar W BV RS L0, o ""“.’l‘ Srvores e banquinhoy. Essa  exlt6rin de sua firma. Junto  ce comida grits para clien
:L’;_ 10xas 1239 mudanga arquiieldnlca £ 0 comoshunciondroes, veisum  tescommalsde 158 kg,
10xns 3562 Totalh vhta RS 1549, » taxxs puntado ceberg doque e3td  caminhio de dinheiro, Para quem atndatem amor
o s 8 1k, AT orontecendonacapiialmun: O ProjetoDowntown vaiin: s artérias ¢ fpeer se aventu-
i et ik dial dos jogos de azar. vestit USS 350 (inaisde RS | rar na mesma qua, yecomen:
3 Asopcdesdelazerquenio  bl) navevitatizaclodolugar.  da-se a tirolesa SlotZilla. 0
envolvem fichas, dadesens  Clincaancsapéa seu nfclo, 0 sujelto desliza pet uma cor
tas de um dlar $30 a hova  projeto inaugura o primei:  da, a34 metros de aliusa, na
adosgrandesempesh-  ros prédios residenciais, f‘): posi¢3o de voo do super-ho-
rlos, smotivados por pesqul-  ra sumentar adensidade ho-  mem. Aaveniura sal por US$
$at que apotiam a prefoén-  bitagional da regido. &5 {cercadeRS 160).
cladejovensaduliospocpro "Alndandoéolugarmais  Ouw.comodiia o vendedor
gramas a céu aberla, segurodamundo, massaiok  Marcelo Kein, que enfzenigu
“Euachtiqueniofossever noite sozinha sem proble-  abrincadelra e julho: *E a
netadessaddade Acheique  mas®, diz a barwoman Kelly - mesma adienalina que eu e
lose= tudo dentro o cassl-  Soura, 77, qee hi dois anos  ria foganda, por exemplo
no”, disse o empresitiobra-  moranacddade. Andandope-  Mas custa menos®.
. silelrn Celsa Vianal.‘:gir:&e 1a &rea, a tegta € ver pessoas
= estavana cidade LTI LT T T e ————
g&"ﬁm 06! m&fmnﬁ PRATAGY RESORT ravezparaafinaldeumdos  mio, despreocupadis, cena Hieroriimy et
FERIAS DE JANERO o L Inchindy bihite birww bn Bl e o
e e s s oo, vessse smmpeaomilore. | A compeliin prémmn seu
U =
e Snod V:,. pore » BT raitrk e ;M e O namac Oy hecpedagees | vmmiurp:mlg;lmlllﬁo NEVADA, EUA
e s 1 e oo %07 S i e TR 1T, | o o b4 000 202, | | o craptapa final na TMo-
e 10xr8 3992 30uns 3992 bile Arena, estidia com 20
e aeex (B kI G SR o) e, St
b 1, & T E = ftm do ano thows de Bon [o- Rese
A nogas s o 4 12 b b TR L 412 et Ly b 8t g vl & Bruno Mats, além de ,)"'-"m"-"l
e e e ST b Lot & WY P et g S SR et Mesino o casiings mals Sauthy s Jahos EUA
e e e ea Ty FRaTa 1 W0 4700 Vot s b ot s brkit Tt St U8 15 Kocncn % | AKLEDS CoMTEm atrds de pro- S lavVagn munng
SIS A TS R ST TR DA i T T/ IUTT | wamas paraatralr jovens que
e G Wt T At WA o e s | TR x “aren | HOCEMO RArtz para caga-n|-
A it G e e b A0 T A4t quels. Numa noite de sexta,
* CONSULTE 36U AGENTE DIt VIAGENS DLl LGt cenlenas de petsoas paga-
vam centenas de dblases pa-
vrsisis 30 IR, (GEEDSIEE (3
e feisusl 1ureme
L x ki ho clube noturno do hotel
wea et W ST G e e | el T "
e ey S MGM Grand Estiomareadas -




D6 turismo # * * oumtarerra, 1v e nezewsno o 2016

i
|

FOLHA DES.PAULD

MARCHA PARA O OFS

Estado americano tem cendrio que
lembra filme de faroeste, com lago
gigantesco, deserto e monumento
de pedras, em regido considerada

sagrada por tribos indigenas

WALTER PORTD
ENVIADO ELPECIAN A NEVADA [TU4)

Pavoado por dwum co—

tribo te desmembrar pela Es-
tado. Nos anos 1940, o gover
no construiy um tdnel pas
sando pot thejoda rocha, ho

que, do ele, (o} cons-
¥ i e

rastro sobrevive a stculos
expansio utbana, o Estado
de Nevada, no oeste dos Es-
tados Unldas. & repleto de lu-
garesconsiderados sagrados

frita o8 provos indigenas.
© lago Tahoe £ 0 malor
exemplo .Incrustadona
fronteira entie Nevada e Ca-
I{érnia, era onde o3 Inte-
granies da tribo Washoe se
rcuniampala ecagar
s‘rdtnpeala o era tha
e que o3 indios evita

navegd-lo,

Soulh hlm Tahoe, cidade
fjue coficentta a estristura de
hotéis e agéncias de viagens,
Mca a cerca de 45 ken de Cas
son Cliy (capdial do Estado).
Mas hi muito o que explorar
s margens desse lago de
Imensas pi

Com Area equivalents &

trosa contra s kndigenas,
Contomandeolago, {4 pm
terras californlanas, & poss{
vel aproveitar Areas de prala
como Meeks Bay e a Baldwin
Beach. 0 eutloso £ que, ne-
las, o turista pde os pés na
arela a quase 1900 metros
acima do nivel do mar.

DESERTO

0s vestiglos dos nadve-
americanos também sdo en:
contrados em parques nafu-
rals de clima oposto,

0 Valley of Fire, maior par
ﬁue do Estado, fica no melo

o deserto e também impees-
siona pela siléncio e pelas
mon

locallzado a 79 kmde Las
Vegas, ovale dconheddopot

lmaﬂbeswcﬁmque

tnals de 45mil o de lu-

tebal & com 500 mietros de
profundidade oo

teddo do lago seria suficien-
\e para cabely toda a Califée

nla com 20 cm de dgua.

- Aprincipal enttada parda

inien-
S¢com o beledmladn a
varlacho de cores se deve 3
diferena da quantidade de
fetto nas pedras serdimenta-
das ap longo dos sécules.
um punln especial para

) it ltf abriga-
do T de nativos

c devi
sitantes Taylor Creek, potto
departida pwa quatratrithas
de caminhada (a mais tm-
mumle delas chamada
bow Trait).
All, 0 lurista pode desbra-
Var a mats obsetvando suas
[ormagdes de conlfy ea

conhecidos como "lazedores
decesias”, que viveram li de
3,000 2 5.000 anos alris.
Entre os cinions, ¢ possi-
vel encontrat mtlllns da
exisiéngia deles, como os
chamados peur dghilas ~dese-

[auna que vive liviernente en
tre rlachos ¢ gramados vir
gens. Hi alnda um espago
subterraneo para othar a vi-
daaquiticadentyodoTahoe,

Renite aolago, fica aforma-
a0 rechosa conhedda conto
LaveRock, Dy xamds da islbo

a3, 0% guias do parque dio
aos turistas a oportunidade
de elancaraarma
Jos indigenas para
ngll.. nome “aifat*
meloa esse cendriode
faroesie ~¢ de lats, a!luns
foram oy 14, coma "
Proftssionals®, de Richard
Brooks— € possivel acampat,
tazes piquenique ¢ escalar

mo lidet espiritual IandE;

Bevida




FOLHA DESPALLD

Museus e caverna ajudam turista
aexplorar pré-historia da regido

°; l‘l“l!ﬂlltim

Paraexplorar aculivrados
Povos ori deNevada,
op;bes que viode muscusno
deserto a1é vlslla!':lrimlilas
:xﬁedicﬁesatquco

ma aliernativa & canhe-
cer hacaphaldoEstado, Car-
son Clty, o Stewart Indian
School, escala fundada em
1890 para ensinar culnaa e
topela 3 nalhms =que c1am

raeseviemum ede
oca fetade terra batida.

Outraopedoéa visita aHid-

hi den Cave (caverna escondl-

da), formada hi 21 mél anos,
2120 km de onde hoje é Car
sonity. () local fol enconiza:
da por quatro estudantes qui
gonavam debringrde cxplo
radozes nos anos 1920 Esca-
vaghes nas dicadas seguintes
revelaram artelatosintocados
de hahltanlcs natlvos que vi-
hdmaigde 3.000anos,

flias. As
altvidades escolarestermina.
ramem 1980, e hioje o espafo
&um cenuo culural,

O Lost Ciry Museum, auma
hora de Las Vegas e betn ao
lado do parque Valley of Fi:
1¢, & a melhor n[:lu para
amia‘nlel ehisim

s ipBeaivapoas
1dncla 2 aa
ﬁ?bo ule—shashnnelzn.::
giZo. Donna Cosselle, antiga
il gy
niza 3 pelo ue
slopimeladol;:om msil}ul
mentes de seus ancesirals so-

nhnmarufalmhulbzlcosda
cultura doy Indies palute,
além de entrarem em conta
(OO UM E5CAVRCAQ arqlies
olégica real, preservada inte:
gralmernite erti uma sala den-
tro do musen.

Ural Begay, representante
datibo, quehojetem apenas
150 pessoas, conta que mu
Seus oo esse s3o Importan-
tes para esermu.ma cul
raca elol ra
diciomlmeme otal, “E uma
manetea de proleger a nossa
histdrla e a nossa lingua.”

Datado de forado museu,
h.‘i amostras depeunlilns e

brea Adrida hoje a
comunidade preza pela pre-
dareglio,

Alé 130 coragdo de Las Ve-
gas vel enleat #m con
lata tom a historia ricadoEs-
tadozntesdas cassinos luxn
osos. A cinco minufasdocen
o da cldade fica o Spaing
Freserve, muscy insialado
ondeantes craafonle quesu
ptiasdguadacidade —eque
sev:a:u e I”égdcdl adlo, 0l

espaca cado, nio
pot acaso, & sustentahilida
de. Etambém a contar a hls-
ria dos povos que restdiam
ali ki mithares de anos.

0 0ifgen Muscum, dentto

1éplic

nhlgmcuuuuldnspelmha

o ¢ 1 traz artefalan
pwsm:uins das pojrulagies

& histricus de Ne-
varla g visitante entra num
burare de um metio de aliu-

0 nanue
Walley ol Fire

Garimpo abandonado, trens e carros
antigos narram passado aventureiro

BEINYLADS AMLTLDA

Nevada, asiti ot Es-

que tem puum menas de
3000 h

&M OCUpar i
tode Mojave, onde hoje selo-
callza a cidade. wey

US4 281 (RS 957)

Sem adieo. pacole de
quitro nottey no Luxa Hetel
H30 nelut passesas nem
#atras Por petios

4 Valencia futisma
walenciatur o combr

RELTS0

Pacote de 1615 noddes em

L Wrgas, (oon adrea Valor
pot pessoa, para haspedagem
naLonghorn Casng & Hatel
e Degedat com

RELTTY

Valor para quatio no:les o
Las Vegas. com hospedagem
no hoted Siratorphete. sem
PASIRITL MEMM X428 RO
pacote Por pesica, tom
areo Ma VO ovt com B

1154 BA7 {R$ 1.020}
[mjaneio, sete noiiss na
trdade e 1ake Taboe, com
d:dnas no Hard Rock Hotel &
Casno Lnclue sery dras de sk
pa3s ra seg-do Por peisod,
sem adreo nem e me de
almentacdo Na Interpoint
interpownt com bt

WSS 1100 (RS 3.748)

Cinco no:tes em Lad Vepas,

ro Hard Aock Hotel & Casno.
€onh padser nolurno & OLEID
detompiss inchiusos Valor
por pessod. om afreo no
patoie Ha Tereza Ferrar
teveralestanyizgens com br

US$ 1.216 (RS &.141)
Sem aéreo, outo nozes em
Las Vegaa com acomadag 3o
em molorhome para vt
#0lrand Canyon Inchs

tadoamericano, guardauma

Mads p . Reng,
nh:ddacm am’.\lo:cid.a

sétie de
rllal Carson City, por

" abdn -] Nevad:

SIII

J:uuvam trensqui :da
século 19, posslbl[l

land
mhealﬂslédatiaslmwlu.
cenlrais no descenvulvirento
de um Estado cuja histdeia é
calcada na mineragio.

Em Tonopah, & 350 lon da
capiial, éintetessanie conbhe-
cer 0 parque Mswrlcodemi

neracao que deu ao Jugar o
el
posda Prata”, pelaahtanuan.
udade de meial exiraido da-
1. 0 local fundona comoum
museu no meio da ddade,

1223% et  pacote
e rmul m:fbas (1 609

) pasis roda Yalor por
pessoa Ha Advenuure Cib

uma popula;ﬁo nque passa advemturechi combr
dos 200 mi) & wa:dn atra-
daMuseum 1156 1.399 (R$ A.TE7)
ol Alt ~(nico musew de a1-  Roieiro de tete novet ¢m
1e do Exfado- e 0 National  Mevada, como visitay 2 Reray
Museum, dedl-  &Lake Tahoe ¢ hospedagem.
tado aos automdveis, a4 duas fidades Sem
03 da Por pesiod. com
ainda encontram refliglo o aéreo Ma Dan:elle Bedwo
Pytamid Lake, reservamasu:  deturismo com by
ral que leva esse nome pela
pedra em formato tangula:s  USH 1,656 (RS 5.639)
vistvelnomelodolago, eno  Incul pussen de um S g
Greal Basin Mational Patk,  Lee Lanyon, com ainndades
oulito ponto deteserva entre  de esqui & snowboard Walor
ns emnEensal:  por peisoa parapamte
vidades podem desde  deoinco noutes emilay
plmmuqueutéauplma 'Wrgat Sematreo NaRCA
¢do de cavernas. por reatrisma com be

tas % k ok turismo n?

QUINTA-FEIRA, 1* DE DEZEWA

DR s A hves, RS, 8.k
[PET—— i G Lot 1
i i o b P VEERARS i P e e Ba NTSAND M P

s D930 Limte e o9 A5D
1587 1113213 01295+ 11401105
Fothhn.ct Gramada,

|u ) (-ni-unun

e

iy B ]
o a1 013.970 Pova—y [erreres Y F -1 S
2781 110m309 nd20. 1150 5214+ 1ta 070

EPRE_cospaoru ONATS ™ n-;‘a;r.;.,‘gr.
pars COMPAAS ANTLLADAS .E Y -._4“"-._
w150

[
Ez'lm AR 301N | Paiie .mm.n‘!.,,iru
Aproveite!

dewpnmhlrh

Ve BAP ke (1l e Wi e
5

Wby ipmsa a4 DT,

=

§ Tidnguio Escandinavo il e

munn-u

A

Sukca Fisdinante @ M
- L]

Fosituggal & Eigirha |
3

u11.926 [ 149398 tomn u?. 974
I35 . mus) 05O a1 nud2S - ETTIG
luh Austrs, Suka e Franca I I
Tomg e mrarias el |0 Circwrte das 3 Capiti B-aan '
A e . lnnnn AR
a1 7998 e e 12937 [ i
2ALT o0 51879

I_n!.Si!unlh‘l g

Bl o U 4 D O

& bt 4 s
w4
e 1]
o A54 . 3824

| BUA # Canadd Expresso 1) as
I o LR
Mt et Pl |

| s 11026 .
2305 -0 1980

FO e NgmAN b AR ) AR
WIASGITO 113 M TLMSA0 31}

[T
[reiresraey
Chunsi el 6 AV, T

Bars®

| R Wt ¥ sttt W

ey
[ren——Ty A 1 B
2312 s a3 186

it 1o 0V TR
7314, m 40

Canudmn.Nlut Lo
worins s ou wro -
I-ﬂﬂ »

[y X2 L e 82249
03492 s 0t 217 23449 o 1y 300
1

Até 15 Dezembro XESIERTYIE

Expresio 10 2 Essérclas do Mixkco 'lu

Ménico

i g o (i

5 dreard < § o g vl .-..-.n-:--u-l—---u
g A

CosaFasinoss, Bahial, s o
Preroyirtpiiming e
W

# ot a B T Ay

I 171
| uBdd w375

| ot ke o e ot s Pirrs wes azr,
PCRLACOY W13 ML D MPCSTG SOPRE BEMISRAY F VAICALS A9 JTIREEA, FaLi PAGAWINT) [ DTS ST M0 TMSN LA mrguad

i Mt Do (3o boves Ferend ey SUMEISS A0 |

| o ATT A IV BRI s et - v T o M paedad 12 rk o T 2 k] Pt £ dreip L el
PALTOU oo v o e . i L TRL TR P JLL LB e L)
1 ORI 2 % L e k. Lrapnad e e e S N L o T LT T

I F R Rt LR rzlalh'vll =2 ﬂll.n;ﬂ!l’wuatbn'hl

ok, Lonmt g s Ve otk e es LT MTECL, DAVETE
e S gty iy AT i awl:u;nm Blegentin  iperelbdeds MEDDN arertmety W sk B |
IR 4L e | e ] 0 D ke s o e R T L6 S a0 e e [T
LEAT - EA R EY-ISAVANE TY B R g e a5 IF S0 A TEG § o D i i RLOREE 2 el o e
203 A L B O s D02 g A e o g e B e Gy e b e b Mo d it s | D

T i samets a1 4o antae 1t wetpemae st - 37021040
i | Marablbapytng 510 L Lo b 7L PO LD LU e ... 2BE0-1840
i | Shopping AndisFrame © 254 drashancaater 4 , 1860-184%
: | Shoyplag Pat Highaadgally ¢ 1o bt o) kS Lowh s poerer 38701950
| n | M eprng Oty Bo Poe 1= o 23311819 itpie b St £ 0o 3702-1842 |
D e R 3702-1847 |

1 Cxchainnr cors st e i Ju vagent 90 Capiad ) L LT R T




prr——

En Diamond Peak Resort hay actividades para

NEVADA

A WORLD WITHIN.
A STATE APART.

adultos, jévenes y nifios.

ingiin otro estado de la
Unién Americana
representa el

verdadero espiritu del Ocste
como Nevada.

En Nevada se respira la
promesa del Ocste, ese aire
especial que s¢ ho mantenido
puro a través de las
generaciones y que refleja el
espiritu emprendedor que
flevd b la gente aventurera y
emprendedora en  una
migracion del este al oeste y
del sur al norte para poblar
este gran estado de la Unidn
Americana.

Nevada ofrece amplias
extensiones que siempre han
simbolizado el espiritu de
libertad de hacer lo que se
quiere y cuando se guiere.

Para los viajeros es casi
inmediato darse cuenta que
en Nevada se borran las
barreras de lo ordinario y cl
turista se siente a sus anchas
con Ja libertad de divertirse,
desplazarse y disfrutar del
séptimo estado mis grande de
fos Estados Unidos.

Nevada es una tierra de
aventura y descubrimiento.

El viajero quedard
maravillado de las altas
montaias que durante las
cuatro estaciones ofrecen
bellezas contrastanies y
complementarias que invitan
al vinjero a conocerlas y

disfrutarlas en el inviemo al
igual que en el otoiio, ¢l
verano y la primavera,
Ademds de las imponentes
montafias, los valles de
Nevada también son muy
hermosos. En las montafias y
valles se puede apreciar desde

(<] a o ]
.0 .= Qoen o089
oeroe 00 0: L
O © ¢ 90 o008® O
oD o0 o008 o .. -]
ae °9 IB. o
.D..g. 09 .. 0: 8.i.
... L IG.' a0 o

VlSltTheUSA.mx

Nevada:

El verdadero espiritu
del Oeste

Nevada, un destino con vistas sobrecogedoras.

pequeiias y coloridas flores

silvestres hasta
impresionantes pinos
centenarios.

En la noche, basta voltear
al cielo para disfrutar un
universo repleto de estrellas
tan dificiles de apreciarse en

Lake Tahoe, uno de los lugares favoritos que ofrece Nevada.
Foto: Lake Tahoe Visitors Authordty

B TURISTAMPA: EL PERIODICO DE LA INDUSTRIA TURISTICA NACIONAL « MEXICO, DF. 5§ DE NOVIEMBRE DE 2016

otras partes det mundo. De
hecho, el clima y Jocalizacitn
geogrifica de Nevada
permiten que en ella se
aprecien las estreltas mis que
en otro estado de Jos Estados
Unidos.

En Nevada se disfrutan
algunos de los mejores resorts
de esquf en los Esiados
Unidos, como Lake Tahoe, ¥
5i 2 eso le afiadimos que en
Nevada se disfrutan mds de
300 dias de sol al afio, la
experiencia del esquiador es
fabulosa e inolvidable.

La temporada de esqui en
Nevada no solamente se
disfruta duranie e] invierno
sino que el estado ofrece
excelentes opciones y
oportunidades para esquiar en
la primavera.

Ademis, el resto del aiio
se pueden disfrutar otras
actividades al aire libre que
hardn de su estancia en el
estado algo inolvidable. Por
supuesto que Nevada no es
salamente naturaleza, y de sus
excelentes opciones de
diversion, entretenimiento y
compras hablaremos en la
siguiente edicidn.



¥

DESCUBRIR LA MARAVILLA ¥ LA EMOCION
QUE VIENE CON LA EXPLORACION

. A

LIS IraS e Gl

1ernc. Lo sno Ié 3 NEVAD A WORLD WITHN
SHCUSANIG cOn os Carbof 125, (Fla} (i A STATE APART,

irdee Aeaten Toftd

TURISTAMPA: EL PERIODICO DE LA INDUSTRIA TURISTICA NACIONAL + MEXICO,DF. 5 DE NOVIEMBRE DE 2016 9



S Bz

V@  HAINAN AIRLINES

T

INTLANATIONAL ATREORT

Las Vegas Welcomes Hainan Airlines and the
First Nonstop Flight From China

Long-awaited link between Beijing and Las Vegas becomes a reality

LAS VEGAS (December 2, 2016) - History was made today when Hainan Airlines’ first
flight from Beijing to Las Viegas touched down at McCarrran International Airport filled with
excited Chinese travelers, media and company officials. A traditional water arches salute
greeted the aircraft as it taxied to the gate.

"We have just made history," said Mr. Hou Wei, Senior Vice President of Hainan Airlines,
“flying the first commercial aircraft from Mainland China to Nevada, finally linking the
capital of the People’s Republic of China with the Entertainment Capital of the World, Las
Vegas!"

With China considered to be one of the leading growth markets for visitation to Las Vegas,
the accessibility of the new route introduces Las Vegas to millions of prospective visitors
and will be instrumental to increase international visitation. It has been a longtime goal of
Las Vegas to have a direct route from the historic Chinese capital. Previously, travelers
between the two points had to connect via a third U.S. or Asian city. The new route cuts
hours off the previous trave! time. The service operates Mondays, Wednesdays and
Fridays. Demand for the inaugural flight was so high that the airline switched to a larger
aircraft, a Boeing 787-9, with an additional 76 seats, to accommodate everyone.

"Today's arrival is the culmination of many years of hard work, ushering in a new era of
connectivity between Las Vegas and China,"” said Rosemary Vassiliadis, Director of
Aviation for Clark County, Nev. "McCarran has expanded its international capability
specifically for moments such as today, and with the amenities of our new Terminal 3, as
well as custom-created Chinese signage and Mandarin-speaking ambassadors, we're
confident that Hainan's passengers will enjoy an unparalleled airport experience beginning
the moment they enter McCarran, and again before they return home." Chinese travelers
are one of the fastest-growing and largest-spending groups of international visitors to Las
Vegas. With the reciprocal 10-year tourist visas and the introduction of hotels,



programming and amenities geared toward Chinese visitors, Las Vegas has established
itself as a major draw for Chinese traveling to the United States.

"We are thrilled to welcome direct service between China and Las Vegas with the new
route from Hainan Airlines," said Rossi Ralenkotter, president/CEO of the Las Vegas
Convention and Visitors Authority (LVCVA.) "China is a very important market for Las
Vegas. Expanding air service is a long-term process, and we share this successful
achievement with the talented teams from Hainan, the LVCVA and with all of our resort
and allied partners. Our partnership offers additional flexibility and convenience and
increases opportunity for future growth.”

Special introductory fares from Las Vegas also make China accessible to residents of Las
Vegas.

o For economy class travel, fares to Beijing and beyond are available at affordable
pricepeints

« For business class travel, round trip fares begin at $2588 (including taxes and
fees) for outbound travel until Jan. 18, 2017. These fares include complimentary
limo service in Las Vegas and Beijing.

Hainan flight 7970 departs McCarran International Airport at 1:10 p.m. and arrives at
Beijing's Capital Airport at 6:10 p.m. the subsequent day, allowing for connections to other
points in China. Flight 7969 departs Beijing at 2:40 p.m. and arrives in Las Vegas at 10:50
a.m. the same day. Las Vegas times are one hour later during the summer season.
Nonstop flight time is approximately 13 hours westbound and 12 hours eastbound. (Friday
flights depart and arrive 55 minutes later.)

The new route features Boeing 787-8 Dreamliners with 36 business class lie-flat seats and
177 economy class seats. Hainan is the airline with the most nonstop 787 Dreamliner
routes between China and North America.

Hainan Airlines is Mainland China'’s largest independent airline, and is the enly Mainland
Chinese airline with a perfect five-star rating from Skytrax, the international airline ratings
agency, six years in a row. Members of Alaska Airlines' Mileage Plan may earn or redeem
peoints on Hainan Airlines flights.

Business class passengers enjoy priority check-in and can reserve complimentary private
chauffeured car service between home, the airport and their destination in both the U.S.
and China. Michelin-inspired gourmet Chinese and Western cuisine as well as award-
winning wines, freshly brewed espresso and high-quality teas are available inflight. A state
of the art entertainment system offers more than 100 movies, audio selections and games
on demand.

For images and video of the Hainan Airlines Las Vegas arrival, please visit
press.lveva.com.

LVCVA com
About Hainan Airlines

Hainan Airlines was founded in 1993 and has grown to be China's largest independent aidine, with a fleet



of over 170 aircraft, including wide body Boeing 787 Dreamiiner and Airbus A330 jetliners. The airline is a
subsidiary of the HNA Group, a Global Fortune 500 company from China, which has interests in logistics,
tourism, hotels, financial services, as well as air transportation.

Hainan began service to the United States in 2008 and has progressively grown internationally,
transporting hundreds of thousands of passengers o and from China and North America. The airine has
a wide domestic network in China, serving more than 500 routes linking 100 cities, as well as points in
Europe, Southeast Asia, Australia and the Middle East. Hainan prioritizes elite-level service, earning
numerous awards for safety, punciuality and a high-quality product, More information is available at
www hainanairlines.com.

About McCarran International Airport

McCarran Internalional Airport is located in the shadows of the world-famous Las Vegas Strip and is the
gateway for nearly half of the people who visit Southern Nevada each year. Including arrivals and
departures, McCarran hosted more than 45 million passengers in 2015, making it the eighth-busiest
airport in North America. With 30 airlines providing nonstop service to more than 140 destinations,
McCarran makes it possible for the world to experience one of the most alluring travel destinations.
McCarran International Airport is owned and operaled by Clark County, Nevada, and does not benefit
from local tax dollars.

About the LVCVA

The Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority (LVCVA) is charged with marketing Southern Nevada
as a fourism and convention destination worldwide, and also with operating the Las Vegas Convention
Center and Cashman Center. With nearly 150,000 hotel rooms in Las Vegas alone and more than 11
million square feet of meeting and exhibit space citywide, the LVCVA's mission centers on altracting ever
increasing numbers of leisure and business visitors to the area. Download the virtual reality app, Vegas
VR, to experience Las Vegas from your iPhone or Android by visiting http://www vitv vegas/. For more
information, go fo www.lvcva.com or www.lasvegas.com.

Heidi Hayes

Director of Communications

Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority
3150 Paradise Road | Las Vegas, NV 89109
hhayes@I|vcva com | 702-892-7669






RENO GAZETTE-JOURNAL

Wednesday, Nov. 9, 2016

Tourlsm hfeblood of Nevada

ONE VIEW
MARK BUTCHISON

During this elec-
tion, Nevada hasthe
chance to speak to
the national candi-
dates about our. val-
ues, our prized in-
dustries and our top concerns for
leaders to address. Not all states
have this opportunity, and we are
going to ensure the leaders we
send to Washington know full well
how to deliver for Nevadans, par-
ticularly when it comes to. eco-
nomic growth.

It is for this reason I am so
pleased the travel and tourism in-
dustry has come together to speak
with one voice to the candidates’
campaigns in our state. Dubbed
“Iravel '16,” the collective goal of
fhie travel leaders across the coun-
try has been to communicate with
the presidential, congressional,
state and local campaigns so
elected officials are aware of pol-
iciesto promote growth within the
travel and tourism. mdustry

The Reno-Tahoe region has
been fortunate to capitalize on Ne-
vada’s pro—growth pro-busmess
. fax climate in attractmg compa-

nies. However, tourism is still our
top industry. As chair of the Neya-
da Commission on Tourism, I've
been working to promote the state
— including Northern Nevada

In this marketplace, hospitality and kindness win
the day. There’s no better industry to showcase

these Nevadan traits than the tourism industry.

and rural Nevada — and the tour-
ismindustry.

Why are these issues impor-
tant? Tourism is the lifeblood of
thisregion. Annually, we welcome
approximately S million visiters
to Reno-Tahoe alone. Taxable
roomrevenues are up 16.5percent
from fiscal year 2014-15 to fiscal
year 2015-16. These spent dollars
stay here and benefit our commu-
nities.

As an industry, we should pno-
ritize policies that strengthen eco-
nomic growth. A key policy item

for the travel community is infra-

structure. Federal, state and local
governments must cooperate to
identify priority projects and act
quickly to get the job done.
Another major policy priority
is airport modernization. The Re-
no-Tahoe International Airport
has moved ahead to support
growth and interest from the cor-
porate and traveler communities.
The airport has successfully pur-
sued numerous new flights and

reutes to the region, and we can-

now boast connections to cities
such as Guadalajara and New

York City.

Despite this success, Nevada’s
airports and the nation’s airports
lack the ability to raise sufficient

funds to embark on capital im-

provement projects, such as ter-
minal or runway expansions. Pol-
icy makers should be urged to
think outside the box and enable
tourism related entities in Neva-
da, like our airports, to access
smart financial tools which ulti-
%t_ely benefit the state economi-

y.

In this marketplace, hospital-
ity and kindness win the day.
There’s no better industry to
showcase these Nevadan traits
than the tourism industry. Join us
in communicating and connecting
with the candidates and the cur-
rent officeholders after the elec-
tion about how critical travel is to
Nevada. Let's make. sure our
state’s leaders go to Washington
next year to get the job done right
for Nevada’s economic power-
house

Mark Hutchison is the lieuten-
ant governor of Nevada.







NEVADA

A WORLD WITHIN.
A STATE APART.

NEVADA COMMISSION ON TOURISM

Marketing Committee
Wednesday, January 18
1:00 p.m.

MEETING SCHEDULE 2017
- PROPOSED -

Spring/Summer planning; overarching content planning; print concepts

Wednesday, February 15
11:00 a.m. ** NOTE TIME CHANGE

(Tourism Day at the Legislature Breakfast 7:30 — 10:00 a.m.)

Full Commission Meeting

Wednesday, May 17

1:00 p.m.

Full Commission Meeting
Legislative Session Update

Wednesday, June 28

1:00 p.m.

Full Commission Meeting
Teleconference — Grants Approval

Marketing Committee
Wednesday, July 12
1:00 p.m.

Fall/Winter planning

Wednesday, August 16, 2017
1:00 p.m.
Full Commission Meeting

October/November (TBD)
Governor's Global Tourism Summit
Full Commission Meeting

Wednesday, December 13

1:00 p.m.

Full Commission Meeting
Teleconference — Grants Approval






